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Chairman’s Statement

ER|E

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to present
the annual results of Eminence Enterprise Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2018.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group’s profit attributable to
shareholders of the Company was HK$53,539,000 as compared to the
loss attributable to shareholders of the Company of HK$26,627,000 in
2017. This year’s gross profit margin was 94.2% compared to 99.5% in
2017 and consolidated revenue advanced by 35.8%. The basic and diluted
earnings per share for the year ended 31 March 2018 were HK2.31 cents
and HK2.15 cents respectively (2017: basic and diluted loss per share was
HK1.95 cents and HK1.95 cents).

This year, the Group successfully acquired through auction the remaining
units of Matheson Building in Causeway Bay and acquired Units 01, 02, 03,
05, 06, 07, 08 and 09 on the 12th Floor and ancillary car parks of Capital
Centre, No. 151 Gloucester Road, Hong Kong. The Group will continue to
focus on its strength to diversify its non-residential properties portfolio and
strengthening the income base of the Group.

The Board and | would like to express our most sincere gratitude to our staff,
our shareholders and our business partners for their continued support and

are confident that with such support and a strong management team, the
Group will continue to grow and create value for our shareholders.

Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 May 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENRR DN

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Eminence Enterprise Limited (the
“Company”) is pleased to announce the audited annual results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended
31 March 2018 together with comparative figures. These annual results
have been reviewed by the Company’s Audit Committee.

FINAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group’s profit attributable to owners
of the Company was HK$53,539,000 as compared to the loss attributable
to owners of the Company was HK$26,627,000 last year. This year’s
gross profit margin was 94.2% compared to last year (2017: 99.5%), and
consolidated revenue advanced by 35.8%.

The basic and diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 March 2018
were HK2.31 cents and HK2.15 cents (2017: basic and diluted loss per
share was HK1.95 cents and HK1.95 cents) respectively.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2018 (2017: nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group’s revenue amounted to
HK$49,605,000 compared to HK$36,518,000 last year, which represented
an increase of HK$13,087,000 or approximately 35.8% as compared to
last year. There was a profit for the year attributable to the owners of the
Company of HK$53,539,000, as compared to a loss for the year attributable
to owners of the Company of HK$26,627,000 last year. The profit during
the year was mainly due to the gain arising from changes in fair value of
investment properties amounting to HK$72,337,000 as compared to a fair
value loss of HK$12,792,000 in last year.

The basic and diluted earnings per share amounted to HK2.31 cents and
HK2.15 cents respectively for the year ended 31 March 2018, as compared
with basic and diluted loss per share of HK1.95 cents and HK1.95 cents
respectively for the corresponding period last year. The review of the
individual business segments of the Group are set out below.

Property Investment

During the year, the total rental income of the Group recorded
HK$33,012,000 (2017: HK$29,384,000), representing a 12.3% increase
over the last year. The increase is primarily due to the contributions from
newly acquired properties, as well as continued management of tenant mix
and rental reversion at major investment properties during the year under
review.

Hong Kong

In Hong Kong, the Group owns residential units, commercial units and
industrial units with a total carrying amount of HK$1,156,000,000 as at
31 March 2018 (2017: HK$910,903,000). For the year ended 31 March
2018, the Group recorded property rental income of HK$16,516,000 (2017:
HK$14,892,000).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRE DM

Singapore

In Singapore, the Group owns 3 residential units with a total carrying amount
of HK$162,456,000 as at 31 March 2018 (2017: HK$142,298,000). For the
year ended 31 March 2018, the Group received property rental income of
HK$2,719,000 (2017: HK$3,086,000).

People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)

In Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province of the PRC, the Group has 12 blocks of
factory premises and 4 blocks of dormitories with a total carrying amount
of HK$338,177,000 at 31 March 2018 (2017: HK$267,168,000). For the
year ended 31 March 2018, the Group recorded property rental income of
HK$13,777,000 (2017: HK$11,406,000).

Property Development

(i) Project Inverness

As at 31 March 2018, the Group wholly owned this development
project located at No. 14, 16, 18 and 20 Inverness Road, Kowloon
Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong. This development project is a residential
property with a total gross floor areas (“GFA”) of approximately
47,000 square feet (“sq.ft.”). Construction is expected to be
completed in the third quarter of 2018 and is expected to launch of
the sale in the second quarter of 2019. This is our last residential
development project, the Group will focus on commercial property
projects in the future.

(i)  Project Matheson
The Group owns 12 out of 14 units of a non-industrial building at
Nos. 11, 13 and 15 Matheson Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
(the “Matheson Building”). On 29 September 2017, the Group
successfully acquired through auction under Chapter 545 of the 2
remaining units of Matheson Building (the “Remaining Units”).

Following the acquisition of the Remaining Units, the Group had
100% ownership of the Matheson Building with a site area of
approximately 2,857 sq.ft.. The whole site is under development
construction. Redevelopment is expected to be completed in the
third quarter of 2021.

Investment in Securities

During the year under review, the Group has adopted a prudent attitude
in its securities investment. The Group had acquired listed securities
under held for trading investments and disposed of some shares in
the investment portfolio. The Group recorded fair value loss on held-
for-trading investments of HK$2,195,000 (2017: HK$2,374,000). The
impairment loss on available-for-sale investments was HK$3,406,000
(2017: HK$14,176,000) and greatly reduced as compared with last year.
As a result, the Group reported a reduced segment loss of HK$1,316,000
(2017: segment loss of HK$14,705,000) during the year under review.
The Group received dividend income from the listed securities under held
for trading investments and available-for-sale investments of HK$41,000
and HK$4,496,000 respectively during the year under review. The Group
considers that the prospects in respect of the shares still held-for-trading
investments are healthy. The Board understands that the performance of

EMINENCE ENTERPRISE LIMITED | 2018 Annual Report
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENRR DN

the investments may be affected by the degree of volatility in the Hong
Kong stock market and subject to other external factors that may affect
their values. Accordingly, the Group will continue to maintain a diversified
portfolio of investment of different segments of markets to minimise the
possible financial risks. Also, the Board will closely monitor the performance
progress of the investment portfolio from time to time.

At 31 March 2018, the Group held securities for trading investments
amounting to HK$3,436,000 (2017: HK$4,505,000). It was derived from (i)
the purchase of held for trading investments of HK$2,540,000 during the
year under review; and (ii) the securities held for trading investments which
had a cost or fair value as at 31 March 2018 of HK$1,414,000; and (ji)) net
decrease in market value in the amount of HK$2,195,000 of held for trading
investments. This value represented an investment portfolio comprising 3
(2017: 4) equity securities which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Available-for-sale investments
The Group also held significant investments under available-for-sale
investments as at 31 March 2018 as below:
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Other listed shares included 3 companies whose shares are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange.

Note: The Company’s shareholders passed a resolution at the special general meeting on
7 March 2018 to grant of disposal mandate of HKEx (‘HKEx Disposal Mandate”)
to the Directors for the disposal of all or part of the interests in HKEx for a 12-month
period commencing 7 March 2018. During the period from 7 March 2018 and up to
the date of this report, the Company did not dispose of any shares in HKEx pursuant
to the HKEx Disposal Mandate and therefore, the Group beneficially owns a total
of 686,523 shares in HKEx as at the date of this report. Details are set out in the
Company’s circular dated 12 February 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRE DM

Loan Financing

During the year, the Group recorded interest income from the loan
financing business amounting to HK$16,593,000 (2017: HK$6,939,000),
representing approximately 33.5% of the total revenue of the Group. The
segment profit of loan financing business was HK$9,208,000 for the year
ended 31 March 2018 (2017: HK$6,774,000). The outstanding principal
amount of loans receivable as at 31 March 2018 was HK$265,297,000
(2017: HK$264,395,000). During the year under review, the Group did not
record any doubtful or bad debt in its loan financing business. The Group
will continue to develop in this segment in order to earn a higher interest
income.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

BEXmE

RER REBESRSBSREERMEEKZF
B g A 16,593,000 7t (2017 4F : 6,939,000
BIL) G AEEBEEELNI35% - REZE
2018F3A3THILFE  EXBEEKZH
B5% #1145 9,208,000 7 7T (2017 4F : 6,774,000
BIL) o M2018F3A31H EREFZ K
& 8 /X £ %8 /5265,297,000 7T (2017 4F :
264,395,000/ 7T) - REIBFEN - AEEMN
EREE 5 ESR ST RESIER - A%
B S BT R % BABRENE & K B ©

g dE)

Year ended 31 March
HE3IAZHIEEE

2018 2017 Change

2018 F 2017 F b))

HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FiERT FHET FA&T

Revenue E L 49,605 36,518 18,087

Gross profit ER 46,725 36,347 10,378

Gross profit margin EH=E 94.2% 99.5% (5.3%)

Distribution and selling expenses KLSH PR AR 40 13 27

Administrative expenses THRAX 35,525 32,911 2,614

Finance costs A& PR AR 31,373 19,213 12,160

Profit/(loss) before taxation BEATEF,(B5E) 54,608 (29,592) 84,200

Taxation BIE (1,069) 2,965 (4,034)
Profit/(loss) for the year and BATRRREEREE

attributable to owners of wR(EE)
the Company 53,539 (26,627) 80,166
Net profit/(loss) margin FHER(CFEER) 107.9% (72.9%) 180.8%

Basic earnings (loss) per share SRERBR (FE) HK2.31 cents (HK1.95 cents) HK4.26 cents
2.31384l (1.957%(1) 4.26 71l
Diluted earnings (loss) per share SREERR (BB)  HK2.15 cents (HK1.95 cents) HK4.10 cents
2.15 % (1.95734l) 4.10 74
Revenue B

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group’s revenue increased by
35.8% to HK$49,605,000 as compared with last year which was derived
from the increase in the rental income from the property investment
business and interest income from the loan financing business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Gross Profit/Margin

Gross profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018 was
HK$46,725,000, representing an increase of approximately 28.6%
or HK$10,378,000 as compared to HK$36,347,000 in 2017. Gross
profit margin for the year reached approximately 94.2% (2017: 99.5%),
representing a decrease of 5.3% percentage over the last financial year, as a
result of the increase in cost of services rendered, which contributed a lower
gross profit margin.

Profit/Loss before Taxation

Profit before taxation of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018
was HK$54,608,000, as compared with last year loss before taxation of
HK$29,592,000.

Distribution and selling expenses of the Group increased from HK$13,000
to HK$40,000, an increase of 207.7% as compared with the last year.

Administrative expenses of the Group were HK$35,525,000, a slight
increase of 7.9% over last year of HK$32,911,000.

During the year under review, there was a gain on changes in fair value
of investment properties amounting to HK$72,337,000 (2017: loss of
HK$12,792,000).

Finance costs of the Group was HK$31,373,000, increased by
HK$12,160,000 or 63.3% for the year from HK$19,213,000 in 2017, of
which HK$17,128,000 (2017: HK$11,050,000) is the effective interest
expense on convertible notes.

Profit/Loss Attributable to owners of the Company and Earnings/Loss
per Share

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2018 was HK$53,539,000, as compared to last year loss of
HK$26,627,000. Net profit margin is 107.9% as compared to net loss
margin last year of 72.9%.

For this year, the taxation charge was HK$1,069,000 whilst last year was
taxation credit for HK$2,965,000.

Basic and diluted earnings per share for the year 31 March 2018 were
HK2.31 cents and HK2.15 cents respectively as compared to basic and
diluted loss per share HK1.95 cents in last year 2017.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

At 31 March 2018, total assets of the Group amounted to
HK$4,011,917,000 (2017: HK$3,407,650,000). In terms of financial
resources as at 31 March 2018, the Group’s total bank balances and cash
was HK$125,422,000.

At 31 March 2018, the capital base has been strengthened because an
aggregate net proceeds of HK$94,280,000 was raised from the placing of
new shares and issuing of convertible notes during the year.

At 31 March 2018, the Group has total bank borrowings of
HK$1,092,660,000 (2017: HK$779,700,000). The Group’s gearing ratio,
which is calculated as a ratio of total bank borrowings to shareholders’
equity, was approximately 0.40 (2017: 0.32). As at 31 March 2018, the
Group’s current ratio was 3.5 (2017: 3.4).

The Group financed its operations primarily with recurring cash flow
generated from its operations, proceeds raised from the capital market and
bank financing.

Fund Raising Activities

Issue of shares during the year

(1) On 3 July 2017, the Company and a placing agent entered into a
placing agreement pursuant to which the placing agent agreed to
place, on a best effort basis, up to 325,000,000 placing shares at a
price of HK$0.08 per placing share with the aggregate nominal value
of HK$3,250,000 under the refreshed general mandate granted to
the Directors by a resolution of the independent shareholders of the
Company at the special general meeting of the Company held on
26 April 2017, to not less than six placees, who were independent
professional, institutional or individual investors and who and whose
ultimate beneficial owners were independent third parties. The closing
price of the shares on 3 July 2017 was HK$0.08. The placing was
completed on 19 July 2017 and the net proceeds (representing
net issue price of approximately HK$0.079 per placing share) were
approximately HK$25,740,000, which were intended to be used for
the acquisition of the Remaining Units of Matheson Building. The net
proceeds were fully utilised during the year as intended. The Directors
were of the view that the placing was fair and reasonable and in the
interest of the Company and its shareholders as a whole. Details of
which are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 3 July
2017 and 19 July 2017.
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On 30 November 2017, the Company and a placing agent entered
into a placing agreement pursuant to which the placing agent agreed
to place, on a best effort basis, up to 447,000,000 placing shares at a
price of HK$0.055 per placing share with the aggregate nominal value
of HK$4,470,000 under the general mandate granted to the Directors
by a resolution of the shareholders of the Company at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 24 July 2017, to not less
than six placees, who were independent professional, institutional or
individual investors and who and whose ultimate beneficial owners
were independent third parties. The closing price of the shares on
30 November 2017 was HK$0.065. The placing was completed on
21 February 2018 and the net proceeds (representing net issue price
of approximately HK$0.054 per placing share) were approximately
HK$24,340,000, which were intended to be used for the acquisition
of Fung Wah Factorial Building (“FW Building”). The net proceeds
were fully utilised during the year as intended. The Directors were of
the view that the placing was fair and reasonable and in the interest
of the Company and its shareholders as a whole. Details of which are
set out in the Company’s announcements dated 30 November 2017,
20 December 2017, 31 January 2018 and 21 February 2018.

of convertible notes during the year

On 1 March 2017, the Company as an issuer and Goodco
Development Limited (the “Subscriber”), a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability and a wholly
owned subsidiary of Easyknit International Holdings Limited,
being a substantial shareholder of the Company, as a subscriber
entered into the subscription agreement, pursuant to which the
Company has conditionally agreed to issue, and the Subscriber has
conditionally agreed to subscribe for, the convertible notes in the
aggregate principal amount of HK$16,000,000 (the “2017CN1”)
which may be converted into 100,000,000 conversion shares at
the conversion price of HK$0.16 per conversion share (collectively,
the “Subscription1”). The interest rate of 3.0% per annum of the
2017CN1 on the outstanding principal amount. The Subscription1
was completed on 11 May 2017 and the maturity date is 11 May
2022. The net proceeds were approximately HK$15,500,000, which
were intended to be used for the general working capital of the
Group. The net proceeds were fully utilised during the year as to
HK$9.2 million for repayment of bank loan and interest and HK$6.3
million for payment of general operating expenses. Details of which
are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 1 March 2017,
28 April 2017 and 11 May 2017 and the Company’s circular dated 5
April 2017.
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On 7 August 2017, the Company as an issuer and the Subscriber
entered into the subscription agreement, pursuant to which the
Company has conditionally agreed to issue, and the Subscriber has
conditionally agreed to subscribe for, the convertible notes in the
aggregate principal amount of HK$28,200,000 (the “2017CN2”")
which may be converted into 470,000,000 conversion shares at
the conversion price of HK$0.06 per conversion share (collectively,
the “Subscription2”). The interest rate of 3.0% per annum of the
2017CN2 on the outstanding principal amount. The Subscription2
was completed on 26 September 2017 and the maturity date
is 26 September 2020. The net proceeds were approximately
HK$27,800,000, which were intended to be used for the general
working capital of the Group. The net proceeds were fully utilised
during the year as intended. Details of which are set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 7 August 2017 and 26 September
2017 and the Company’s circular dated 28 August 2017.

On 18 October 2017, the Subscriber exercised its right attached
to the 2017CN2 for the amount of HK$16,920,000 to convert
282,000,000 conversion shares of the Company and where are
issued and allotted to the Subscriber on the same date.

Previous fund raising activity

During the year, the Company further utilised the net proceeds from the
placing took place on 27 February 2017. Updates on the actual use of
proceeds during the year are as follows:

Net proceeds
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3 January 2017 Placing of 350,000,000 HK$55 million Acquisition of Fully applied
shares under specific FW Building as intended
mandate
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Charges of Assets

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had bank loans amounting to

HK$1,092,660,000 (2017: HK$779,700,000) which were secured by

the Group’s investment properties and properties held for development
for sale with an aggregate net book value of HK$986,740,000

and HK$1,634,964,000 respectively (2017: HK$785,873,000 and
HK$597,868,000).
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Material Acquisitions

Acaquisition of the Remaining Units of the Matheson Building

Prior to the date of the auction, the Group already owns 12 units out of
14 units of the entire Matheson Building; and the value of the Remaining
Units represents 42% of the bidding price. The auction was held on 29
September 2017 and the Group won the bid. Therefore the consideration
for the acquisition of the Remaining Units by the Group is HK$185,220,000
(i.e. 42% of the final bidding price), it should be financed partly by internal
resources of the Company and partly by bank financing. The completion
date for the acquisition took place on 30 October 2017. The Directors have
a view that the Matheson Building site will be redeveloped together with an
adjacent property already owned by the Company into a new composite
commercial building and it shall reap the benefits of scale both in terms of
development costs, and future sales or leasing of such properties.

Details of the acquisition are set out in the Company’s announcements
dated 22 August 2017 and 29 September 2017 and the Company’s circular
dated 12 September 2017.

Acaquisition of FW Building

On 14 August and 15 August 2017, Treasure Arts International Group
Limited (“Treasure Arts”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, as the purchaser, entered into an agreement for sale and
purchase and a provisional agreement with the respective sellers who are
independent third parties respectively, pursuant to which amongst other
things, Treasure Arts conditionally agreed to acquire, and the sellers agreed
to sell workshop A, 1/F of the FW Building, shares 4/120th undivided shares
of the entire FW Building with a total saleable area of approximately 1,910
sq.ft. and workshop D, ground floor of the FW Building, shares 6/120th
undivided shares of the entire FW Building with a total sale able area of
approximately 1,637 sq.ft. at a total consideration of HK$81,300,000. The
completion of the acquisition took place in mid-November 2017.

On 20 November 2017, Treasure Arts as the purchaser, entered into an
agreement for sale and purchase agreement with the sellers who are
independent third parties respectively, pursuant to which amongst other
things, Treasure Arts conditionally agreed to acquire, and the sellers
agreed to sell workshop space A1, ground floor of the FW Building at a
total consideration of HK$53,000,000. The property was divided into 3
portions, portion-1 and protion-2 are leased with tenancies and protion-3
is self-occupied by the sellers. In addition, Chan Kai Wah and Chan Choi
Fong as the licensee shall have the rights after the completion date to take
up a licence to occupy Portion-3 for a monthly license fee of HK$30,000
(inclusive of rates, Government rent and management fees and payment
of HK$116,790, payable every 3 months, being temporary waiver for
change of land user) until 30 June 2018 and the licensee further has the
option to extend the licence period to 31 December 2018. The property is
currently on lease for HK$61,100 per month (inclusive of government rent
and management fees, exclusive of other outgoings), amount of deposit
held under the tenancy agreements was HK$122,200 and currently used
for commercial purpose. The completion of the acquisition took place on 9
February 2018.
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Details of the acquisitions are set out in the Company’s announcements
dated 16 August 2017, 29 September 2017 and 23 November 2017 and the
Company’s circulars dated 29 September 2017 and 4 January 2018.

Acaquisition of Wing Cheong Building

On 28 March 2017, the Group through Wealth Plan Development Limited
(“Wealth Plan”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into the 17 provisional agreements with each of the 17 vendors,
which are independent third parties, pursuant to which Wealth Plan has
agreed to acquire the respective properties from the relevant vendors
for an aggregate cash consideration of HK$226,052,500. The properties
included 18 industrial units and 2 car park units of the Wing Cheong Building
(collectively, the “Wing Cheong Properties”) and 11 units of the Wing
Cheong Properties are subject to the tenancy agreements that by the terms
may still be in force as at 28 March 2017. Such tenancies would be expired
between April 2017 and April 2020. The acquisition of the Wing Cheong
Properties took place on 28 June 2017.

Details of which are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 29
March 2017 and the Company’s circular dated 12 May 2017.

Acaquisition of Capital Centre

On 11 January 2018, Lion Capital Investment Limited (“Lion Capital”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the provisional
agreement with Brilliant Circle Holdings International Limited, a company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and the shares are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1008), as
vendor (the “Vendor”), pursuant to which (i) Lion Capital has conditionally
agreed to purchase and the Vendor has conditionally agreed to sell the
sale interests (the “Sale Interests”) (comprising the entire issued share
capital of Empire Sail Limited (the “Target Company” and its subsidiaries,
collectively, the “Target Group”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Vendor and the shareholders’ loan due and owing by the Target Group to
the Vendor and Vendor’s subsidiaries amounted to approximately HK$221
million (the “Sale Loans”)) for a consideration of HK$295 million (subject
to adjustments); and (i) Lion Capital has agreed, subject to completion, to
grant a lease back to the Vendor or its nominee for each of Unit 1201A of
Capital Centre, No. 151 Gloucester Road, Hong Kong (the “Property 1”)
and Unit 1202 of Capital Centre, No. 151 Gloucester Road, Hong Kong
(the “Property 2”) at the monthly rentals of HK$256,240 and HK$62,559
respectively for two years commencing from the next date immediately
following the completion date. The Target Company owned the office units
01, 02, 08, 05, 06, 07, 08 and 09 on the 12th Floor (with a total saleable
area of approximately 11,316 sq.ft.) and carparking spaces numbers 329,
330 and 331 on the 3rd Floor of Capital Centre, No. 151 Gloucester Road,
Hong Kong. The acquisition of the Target Group took place on 30 April
2018.

Details of which are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 11
January 2018 and the Company’s circular dated 15 March 2018.
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Save as disclosed above, the Group had no material acquisitions of
subsidiaries or associated companies during the year.

Exposure on Foreign Exchange Fluctuations

Most of the Group’s revenues and payments are in United States dollars,
Hong Kong dollars, Singapore dollars and Renminbi. During the year, the
Group did not have significant exposure to the fluctuation in exchange rates
and thus, no financial instrument for hedging purposes was employed. The
Directors considered the risk of exposure to the currency fluctuation to be
minimal.

Contingent Liabilities
The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31 March
2018 (2017: nil).

Capital Expenditure and Capital Commitments

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group invested HK$1,433,000
(2017: HK$3,558,000) in the purchase of property, plant and equipment,
and spent HK$201,710,000 (2017: HK$13,778,000) on addition of
investment properties. These capital expenditures were financed from
internal resources and funds from previous fund raising activities of the
Company.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had capital commitments in respect of
capital expenditure contracted for but not provided in respect of investment
properties of HK$265,975,000 (2017: HK$9,842,000).

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had 46 employees (2017: 42). Staff costs
(including directors’ emoluments) amounted to HK$17,065,000 for the
year under review (2017: HK$15,264,000). The Group remunerates its
employees based on their performance, experience and prevailing industry
practice. The Group has set out the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
for the Hong Kong’s employees and has made contributions to the state-
sponsored pension scheme operated by the PRC government for the PRC
employees. The Group has a share option scheme to motivate valued
employees.
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PROSPECTS

Hong Kong'’s property market is expected to grow on the back of a healthy
economy, rising confidence in economic growth and continuous inflow of
foreign capital. Driven by strong investment appetite and abundant liquidity,
property prices continue to beat market expectation in 2017 and expect to
move up moderately in 2018 although buyer’s sentiment may be affected
by the advent of the U.S. interest rate upcycle. Office market will continue
to benefit from a strong GDP growth and optimistic business outlook by
major industries while the high rental cost will make the companies look
for alternative solutions in emerging business districts. As for the industrial
market, the new revitalization policy will further enhance the industrial
property values which will attract new investments. The Group expects
rising demand and shortage in the supply of newly built commercial
buildings in Hong Kong for the near future. The Group will proactively
look for feasible development projects to richen the Group’s land bank
and launch property project(s) into the market with an accurate product
positioning as well as effective sales and marketing strategy.

Through the fund raising activities in the capital market, the Group has
successfully raised funds for property development projects and general
working capital with relatively low financing cost as compared with bank
financing.

The Group remains optimistic about the property market in Hong Kong
which is expected to grow steadily and will place emphasis on strengthening
the property development and investment businesses by enhancing
efficiency and diversifying the development project portfolio to include
various types of commercial properties in prime locations. This will ensure
the Group and work to the best interest of the Group and its shareholders
as a whole.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EECEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

MR. KWONG JIMMY CHEUNG TIM
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Kwong, aged 75, is an executive director, chairman, chief executive
officer and authorised representative of the Company and chairman of
the Executive Committee. He serves as director of various subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Kwong was also an executive director, president,
chief executive officer and authorised representative, and chairman of the
Executive Committee of Easyknit International Holdings Limited (“Easyknit”)
until his resignation from the Board and all of his duties on 18 April 2017.
Mr. Kwong graduated from The University of Hong Kong in 1965 and was
admitted as Barristerat-Law in the United Kingdom in 1970 and in Hong
Kong in 1973 respectively. He has over 30 years of experience in the legal
field. Mr. Kwong was appointed to the Board as an independent non-
executive director in 2003, and was subsequently redesignated as an
executive director in 2007. In 2007, Mr. Kwong was appointed as chairman
and chief executive officer of the Company.

MS. LUl YUK CHU
Deputy Chairman

Ms. Lui, aged 60, is an executive director and deputy chairman of the
Company and a member of the Executive Committee. She is also an
executive director and vice president, and a member of the Executive
Committee of Easyknit. Ms. Lui has been involved in the textiles industry
for over 30 years and has extensive experience in design, manufacturing,
marketing and distribution of apparel. She serves as director of various
subsidiaries of the Company and Easyknit. Ms. Lui was appointed to the
Board as an executive director in 2003 and was appointed as deputy
chairman in 2006.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

MR. KAN KA HON

Mr. Kan, aged 67, is an independent non-executive director of the Company
since 20083. He is also a member and chairman of the Audit Committee, a
member of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee. He
holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Science from The University of Hong Kong and
is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He has over 30 years of experience in accounting and finance. Mr. Kan
is also an independent non-executive director of Victory City International
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 539).
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Biographical Details of Directors

EECEE

MR. LAU SIN MING

Mr. Lau, aged 56, is an independent non-executive director of the Company
since 2004. He is also a member and chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee.
He is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has over 30 years of experience in accounting and auditing
and is now working as a tax consultant.

MR. FOO TAK CHING

Mr. Foo, aged 84, is an independent non-executive director of the
Company since 2007. He is also a member and chairman of the Nomination
Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee. He is currently a Partner of Messrs. Liu, Choi & Chan, a firm of
solicitors and notaries in Hong Kong and has been practising in the legal
field for more than 30 years. He obtained his LLB from the University of
London in the United Kingdom in 1968 and a diploma in Chinese Laws
from the University of East Asia in Macau in 1987. Mr. Foo was admitted
as a solicitor in England and Wales in 1972 and in Hong Kong in 1973 and
admitted as a barrister and solicitor in the State of Victoria, Australia in
1982. He is a Notary Public and a China Appointed Attesting Officer.

MR. WU Koon Yin Welly

Mr. Wu, aged 32, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 1 January 2017. He is also a member of Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee. Mr.
Wu holds a Master in Finance degree from the University of Essex and a
Bachelor of Commerce degree in the University of Sydney. Mr. Wu is the
Vice President of Sales in Orchid Hill Consulting Limited which is a member
of FXCM Inc. FXCM Inc. is a listed company on the New York Stock
Exchange (NASDAQ: FXCM) which is an online provider of foreign exchange
trading and services to retail and institutional customers. Mr. Wu has over 9
years of experience in Forex broking and client servicing.
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Corporate Governance Report
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Eminence
Enterprise Limited (the “Company”) is dedicated to maintaining the
good standard of corporate governance within a sensible and practical
framework. The Board firmly believes that the principles of transparency,
accountability and independence are essential for upholding the interests of
the stakeholders and maximizing shareholder’s value.

The Board is committed to excellence in corporate governance. It is
responsible for developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance as well as compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the principles
and the code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange and Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). During the year, the Company has fully
complied with the code provisions of the CG Code, except for the deviation
disclosed herein.

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim serves as chairman as well as chief
executive officer of the Company and this dual role leadership has been
in practice by the Company for decades. Such deviation is deemed
appropriate as it is considered to be more efficient to have one single person
to be Chairman of the Company as well as to discharge the executive
functions of a chief executive thereby enabling more effective planning
and better execution of long-term strategies. The Board believes that the
balance of power and authority is adequately ensured by the operations and
governance of the Board which comprises experienced and high calibre
individuals, with half of them being independent non-executive directors of
the Company. The Company will review the current structure when and as
it becomes appropriate.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The overall management of the business of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) is vested in the Board, which assumes the
responsibility for leadership and control of the Company and oversees the
Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and performances.
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Board Composition

During the year ended 31 March 2018 and up to the date of this annual
report, the Board comprised six Directors, including two executive Directors
and four independent non-executive Directors. Details of their composition
by category are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu (Deputy Chairman)

Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy (resigned on 18 April 2017)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky (resigned on 18 April 2017)
Mr. Lai Law Kau (resigned on 18 April 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Kan Ka Hon

Mr. Lau Sin Ming

Mr. Foo Tak Ching

Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly

Details of background and qualifications of all Directors are set out in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors” of this annual report.
Each independent non-executive Director has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a fixed term of three years from the date
of a letter of appointment until terminated by either party giving not less than
one month’s prior notice.

The Board possesses a balance of skills and experience which are
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Group. A balanced
composition of executive and independent non-executive Directors also
generates a strong independent element on the Board, which allows
independent and objective decision making process for the best interest of
the Group. The Company will review the composition of the Board regularly
to ensure the Board possesses the appropriate and necessary expertise,
skills and experience to meet the needs of the business development of the
Group.

The Company has received written annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. Despite the fact that each of Mr. Kan Ka Hon, Mr.
Lau Sin Ming and Mr. Foo Tak Ching, has served as an independent non-
executive Director on the Board for more than nine years, the Board is of
the view that their duration of service will not interfere with their exercise of
independent judgement in carrying out their duties and responsibilities as
the independent non-executive Directors and believes that their valuable
knowledge and experience in the Group’s business will continually benefit
the Company and the Shareholders as a whole. Accordingly, the Company
considers that all independent non-executive Directors have met the
independence guidelines of Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-Laws”), all Directors
are subject to retirement by rotation at annual general meeting of the
Company (the “AGM”) no later than the third AGM since the last re-election.
Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
only until the next following general meeting of the Company after his or her
appointment, or any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company after his or her appointment and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

Board Meeting

The Board meets regularly four times a year, i.e. at approximately quarterly
intervals. During the year, the Board convened a total of four regular
meetings and the attendance of the Directors are set out as below section
headed “ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEE
MEMBERS”.

The Board is responsible for the approval and monitoring of the Group’s
overall strategies and policies, approval of business plans, evaluating
the performance of the Group and oversight of management. It is also
responsible for promoting the success of the Company and its businesses
by directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.

The Board focuses on overall strategies and policies with particular attention
paid to the growth and financial performance of the Group.

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to the executive
Directors and senior management of every business segment, while
reserving certain key matters for its approval. Decisions of the Board are
communicated to the management through executive Directors who have
attended Board meetings.

All Directors have been provided, on a monthly basis, with the Group’s
management information updates to give them aware of the Group’s
affairs and facilitates them to discharge their duties under the relevant
requirements of the Listing Rules.
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Professional Development

During the year, the Company provides regular updates on the business
performance of the Group to the Directors. The Directors are regularly
updated on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable statutory requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of
good corporate governance practices.

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
developments (the “Continuous Professional Development”) to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to
the Board remains informed and relevant. According to the confirmations
received from the Directors, all Directors have participated in the
Continuous Professional Development for the year ended 31 March 2018 in
the following manner:

HEBR

NER - AAFEHRESREAREEBE
ROBRMER  TMEHMEBEBFRHEBN LTR
B BB FOREMENRIER - RS
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AEEHBHES2HFETEERE ([HERE
R ) DABEE LB EHAB R AR - ARER
HEFAGEEREARDAMENER THE
EeEHER - REZESEIRENEREZ - 28
EENHE2018F3A31 HILFELEFER
EERRBELOAT :

Name A Trainings
3
(Note)
(P &E)
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim BRANEE v
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu EEHREZ T v/
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy (resigned on 18 April 2017) BRIt (R2017F4 5 18 HEET) N/A 73 F
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky (resigned on 18 April 2017) BB A (R2017F4 518 ABHE) N/A 7~ F
Mr. Lai Law Kau (resigned on 18 April 2017) FBRRIRSE (R2017E 4 5 18 HEHE) N/A 738 F
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHITES
Mr. Kan Ka Hon e v
Mr. Lau Sin Ming 2IZmAEE v/
Mr. Foo Tak Ching HiEEEE v/
Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly REESLE v

Note:

Continuous Professional Development through attending briefings/seminars/webcast/
conferences/forums
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Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance functions
as set out below:

(@) To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance, monitoring of the corporate governance
practices and procedures; and maintenance of appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems of the Group
to ensure compliance with applicable rules and regulations;

(b)  To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

()  To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d)  To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and

(e)  To review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report in the Company’s
annual reports.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Board had performed the above-
mentioned corporate governance functions by reviewing the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance and compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance and Indemnity

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover for the Directors’
liabilities in respect of legal actions against the Directors and officers of the
Group arising out of corporate activities of the Group.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

Board Committees

The Board has established four Board Committees, namely, Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and
Executive Committee, to assist in the execution of the Board’s
responsibilities and to oversee particular aspect of the Group’s affairs. Each
Board Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its
duties properly, and holds meetings in accordance with the Bye-Laws, its
specific written terms of reference and, where applicable, the proceedings
of the Board meeting. The terms of reference of the Board Committees
are reviewed and updated regularly to ensure that they are aligned with
prevailing governance practices. The terms of reference of each of the
Board Committees are available on the Company’s website. The attendance
of the each member of the Board Committees are set out as below section
headed “ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEE
MEMBERS”.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises four independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Kan Ka Hon (chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr.
Lau Sin Ming, Mr. Foo Tak Ching and Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly and held 2
meetings during the year ended 31 March 2018.

The chairman of the Audit Committee, Mr. Kan Ka Hon, possesses
appropriate professional qualifications in finance and accounting and meets
the requirements of Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. No member of the Audit
Committee is a former partner of the existing auditing firm of the Company
during one year after he ceases to be partner of the audit firm.

The principal functions of the Audit Committee included:
- to oversee the relationship with the external auditor;

- to review the interim and annual financial statements before
publication;

- to oversee the Group’s financial reporting system and internal control
procedures; and

- to review of the internal control and risk management framework.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Audit Committee has reviewed
(i) the reports from the Company’s auditor, accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, management representation letters,
and management’s response in relation to the annual results for the year
ended 31 March 2017 and the interim results for the six months ended 30
September 2017; (i) the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2017 and the six months ended 30 September 2017 and recommended
the same to the Board for approval; and (iii) the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee reviewed the 2017/2018 consolidated financial
statements in conjunction with the external auditor of the Company. Based
on this review and discussions with management, the Audit Committee
was satisfied that the consolidated financial statements were prepared in
accordance with applicable accounting standards, and fairly present the
Group’s financial position and results for the year ended 31 March 2018.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises four independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lau Sin Ming (chairman of the
Remuneration Committee), Mr. Kan Ka Hon, Mr. Foo Tak Ching and Mr.
Wu Koon Yin Welly, and one executive Director, namely Mr. Kwong Jimmy
Cheung Tim. The Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting during the year
ended 31 March 2018.

The principal functions of the Remuneration Committee included:

- to recommend to the Board on the Company’s policies and structure
for the remuneration of the Directors and senior management of the
Group;

- to recommend to the Board on the remuneration package of all
executive Directors and senior management of the Group; and

- to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to corporate goals and objectives by the Board from
time to time.

The primary objective of the Company’s remuneration policy is to attract,
retain and motivate the personnel by providing fair reward for their
contributions to the Group’s performance. In this context, the remuneration
policy is to set the overall remuneration package at a competitive level
and in a form that permits additional remuneration to be earned for high
performance over a sustained period. The remuneration packages are
determined with reference to the time commitment and responsibilities of
each individual, the Company’s performance and the prevailing market
conditions.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Remuneration Committee
reviewed the remuneration policies and structure for the Directors and
senior management of the Group.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprising four independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Foo Tak Ching (chairman of the Nomination
Committee), Mr. Kan Ka Hon, Mr. Lau Sin Ming and Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly,
and one executive Director, namely Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim. The
Nomination Committee held 1 meeting for the year ended 31 March 2018.

The principal functions of the Nomination Committee included:

- to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board;

- to identify and nominate suitable candidates of directors for the
Board’s consideration; and

- to assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors.

FMEZES
FWEESRANBE L IERITESHEN - B
FRE=RHLE(FWNEZESERE) Bult
o HEELERREBLEN—BWTES
(BBERIEAE) - HZE2018F3A31HILFE -
TMEESERTIRgE -

YFNEZEEe 2 T EREBRE

- BEAREEERSRERAS ZFHHMK
RERBAEFSROES

- BAREZERTEERSAEEAS
ZEFHFBRERSREERE R

- Z2REFFTHRENCEXERRR
E - BE RBUEEIRESOHI T -

ARRFMBR 2 EZBNARS| - BRERE
BIAN - BRERAERERBEL Z BRI
HRATmE - HERUL - FHMHBER S EHIFTA
BFENNERHFMNGTE - TEPR LARTRY
BERBRARSHEIINGI - HHFBE2EHE
BIALTHHBREREBE  ARR 2 EERE
N RBITTIREETE »

MEZE2018F3ABNHILFER - HFEES
EENASEERNSRELE 2 HHBEE R
BB -

RELZES
REZECHANBBEIFATESER - B
EHEEAEREZESER) B=xPk
o BERLERREBLER—RWTES
(BBRIREAE) « HE2018E3 A1 AILEE -
RELZEBEDEITIREH -

RELZEGZIBRERRE

- BRYUEFENRE RERKEAX
(BIEREE - AR ER)

- DEIRBAENESREANHES
LR Rk

— FHREMIEMITESREMIE -

WiEBRATE | 201854

a

25



26

Corporate Governance Report
TEERBE

The Board adopted a nomination policy which set out the approach
to achieving board diversity in the Company in order to enhance the
effectiveness of the Board and its corporate governance standard. The
Company recognizes the importance of having a diverse team of board
members, which is an essential element in maintaining a competitive
advantage. The Nomination Committee has been delegated the authority to
review and assess the diversity of the Board and its skills and experience
by way of consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited
to, gender, age, cultural and educational background, and professional
experience. The Nomination Committee will give consideration to the policy
when identifying and selecting suitably qualified candidates. The policy will
be reviewed on a regular basis.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Nomination Committee (i)
reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board; and (ii)
assessed the independence of independent non-executive Directors.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee currently comprises all the executive Directors,
namely Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim (chairman of the Executive
Committee) and Ms. Lui Yuk Chu.

It meets as and when required between regular Board meetings of the
Company, and operates as a general management committee under the
direct authority of the Board. Within the parameters of authority delegated
by the Board, the Executive Committee is committed to the implementation
of the Group’s strategy set by the Board, monitors the Group’s investment
and trading performance, funding and financing requirements, and reviews
the management performance.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu have been re-appointed as the external
auditor of the Company at the 2017 Annual General Meeting until the
conclusion of the forthcoming 2018 Annual General Meeting.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the audit and non-audit fees paid
or payable to the Company’s external auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,
was made up of an audit fee of approximately HK$2,089,000 and a non-
audit related service fee of approximately HK$1,873,000. The latter included
taxation service and professional service.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEE

MEMBERS

Details of the attendance of each individual Director at the Board meetings,
the Board Committee meetings, the AGM and the special general meetings
of the Company (the “SGMSs”) held during the year ended 31 March 2018 is

EENEEERENHFERLE

HZE2018F3ASIHIEFE  AREELE
FBRzEEeSE EEXE9eR KRR
BFERERARARREFRIAE 2 IBRFHED

as follows: T
Attended/Eligible to attend
HE/ BEREE
Audit Remuneration  Nomination
Board  Committee =~ Committee ~ Committee
Name Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting AGM SGMs
E3888 BNZEgE §MzEe Rezeg RRBE ey

#e S g3 g3 A& A&
Executive Directors HiTESE
Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim BRAGE 44 NIATER 11 11 11 1
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu EIGuL 4/4 N/ATEF NARER N/ATER 0/1 07
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy Bl

(resigned on 18 April 2017) (R2017E4 F 18 HEHF) NATER N/AZRER N/AZER N/ATER N/ARER N/AZER
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky Eip Syt

(resigned on 18 April 2017) (R2017%4 /18 A8F) NATER  NAMEE  NATER  NATEE  NATER  NATEA
Mr. Lai Law Kau BEREE

(resigned on 18 April 2017) (R2017E4 F 18 HE#HF) NATER N/AZRER N/AZER N/ATER N/ARER N/AZER
Independent Non-executive Directors BuknTEs
Mr. Kan Ka Hon BEDHLE 4/4 2/2 11 11 11 5/7
Mr. Lau Sin Ming 2205 4/4 2/2 11 11 11 n
Mr. Foo Tak Ching BEREE 4/4 1/2 11 11 11 47
Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly REBLA 4/4 2/2 il 1 11 6/7

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company, Mr. Lee Po Wing, assists the
Board by ensuring good information flow within the Board and that the
Board policy and procedures are followed. In accordance with Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules, Mr. Lee Po Wing confirmed that he has taken no less
than 15 hours of the relevant professional training during the year ended 31
March 2018.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board leads and maintains effective controls over the Group’s activities,
with executive responsibility for the running of the Group’s business being
delegated to management. The management provides all members of the
Board with monthly updates in order to give a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’s performance, position and prospects to enable
them to discharge their duties.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature
and extent of the risks and it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s
strategic objectives and ensuring that the Group establishes and maintains
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control systems and
reviewing their effectiveness. The Board is also responsible for overseeing
the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management and
internal control systems. The risk management and internal control systems
are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate risks
of failure in operating systems or in achievement of the Group’s business
objectives.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, conducts a review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
by requiring all department managers to undergo a detailed self-risk
assessment process using a common risk management framework. It
covers all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls, on an annual basis. It also considers the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programs and budget of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting function.

Under the enterprise risk management framework, policies and procedures
are in place to identify, assess, manage, control and report risks. Such
risks include strategic, credit, operational (administrative, system, human
resources, reputation), market, liquidity, legal and regulatory risks. Exposure
to these risks is continuously monitored by the Board through the Audit
Committee.

The internal control system includes a defined management structure with
specified limits of authority. The Board has clearly defined the authorities
and key responsibilities of each division to ensure adequate checks and
balances. The internal control system has been designed to safeguard
the Group’s assets against unauthorized use of disposition, to ensure the
maintenance of proper accounting records for producing reliable financial
information, and to ensure compliance with applicable laws, regulations and
industry standard.

The Group does not have an internal audit function. During the year
under review, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Group and there were no major issue but areas for
improvement have been identified by the Audit Committee and appropriate
measures taken. The Board is of the view that the enterprise risk
management and internal control systems in place for the year and up to the
date of issuance of the annual report is effective and adequate. In addition,
the Board is currently of the view that there is no immediate need to set up
an internal audit function within the Group in light of the size, nature and
complexity of the Group’s business. The situation will be reviewed from time
to time.
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Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Group which give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group and the Group’s financial performance and
cash flows for the relevant accounting periods, and in compliance with all
the relevant statutory requirements, the Listing Rules requirements and
applicable accounting standards. In preparing the financial statements
of the Group, the appropriate accounting policies are selected, applied
consistently and in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and appropriate and reasonable judgment and estimates
are made. The Directors have prepared the financial statements for the
reporting year on a going concern basis.

The Board is committed to present a clear, balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’s performance and financial positions in all its
financial reporting and to ensure relevant publications in a timely manner.

Auditor’s Statement

The statement by the Company’s external auditor about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2018 is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 45 to 50 of
this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE OF THE LISTING RULES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiry by the Company, the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the required standard as set
out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2018.

SHARESHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedure for convening a special general meeting

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to convene a SGM
of the Company. Shareholders holding in aggregate of not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company as at the date of deposit
carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company may send a
written request to the Board to request for a SGM. The written requisition
must state the purposes of the meeting, and must be signed by the
Shareholder(s) and deposited at the Company’s principal place of business
in Hong Kong at Block A, 7th Floor, Hong Kong Spinners Building, Phase
6, 481-483 Castle Peak Road, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong (for
the attention of the Company Secretary).

The Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary
arrangements, and the Shareholders concerned would be responsible
for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the
requirements under Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the
“Companies Act”) once a valid requisition is received.
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Procedures for putting forward proposals at the shareholders’
meetings

The following Shareholders are entitled to put forward a proposal (which
may properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a general meeting
of the Company:

(@)  any number of members representing not less than one-twentieth of
the total voting rights of the Company on the date of the requisition;
or

(b)  not less than 100 members holding shares in the Company.

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the Shareholders
concerned, together with a statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in the proposal or the business to be
dealt with at the general meeting must be deposited at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong at Block A, 7th Floor, Hong Kong
Spinners Building, Phase 6, 481-483 Castle Peak Road, Cheung Sha Wan,
Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company would take appropriate actions and
make necessary arrangements, and the Shareholders concerned would be
responsible for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance
with the requirements under Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act once
valid documents are received.

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person other a retiring director for
election as a director at a general meeting, the Shareholder should follow
the “Rules and Procedures Governing the Election of Director”, which can
be found on the website of the Company.

Procedures for putting enquiries by the Shareholders to the Board
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing via the following channel:

The Company Secretary

Block A, 7th Floor

Hong Kong Spinners Building

Phase 6, 481-483 Castle Peak Road
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon

Hong Kong

E-mail: info@eminencehk.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general
meetings of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company has not made any
changes to its Bye-laws. A consolidated version of the Memorandum of
Association and Bye-laws of the Company is available on the website of the
Company.
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The Directors present this annual report together with the audited financial
statements of Eminence Enterprise Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018 are set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
on pages 51 to 52.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and review on the business activities of the Group as
required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622) of Hong
Kong including an analysis of the Group’s performance, material events
that have occurred since the year end date and an indication of likely
future development in the Group’s business are contained in the preceding
Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis set out on
pages 4 to 16 pages of this annual report. Details of the Group’s financial
risk management are disclosed in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.

In addition, relevant details of the Company’s environment policies and
performance will be reported in the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report of the Company to be published separately. The Directors were not
aware of any non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group during the year.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 149.

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2018 (2017: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year are set
out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties were revalued as at 31 March 2018
by independent professional property valuer and the gain/loss arising as
changes in fair value of investment properties, which had been charged
directly to profit or loss. Details of the Group’s properties as at 31 March
2018 are set out on pages 150 to 152 of this annual report.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2018 are set
out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity on
pages 55 to 57.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to its Shareholders as at
31 March 2018 and 2017 comprise:

Contributed surplus AR
Accumulated losses REER

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed
surplus shall not be distributed to the shareholders if there are reasonable
grounds for believing that:

(@) the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(b)  the realizable value of the Company’s assets would thereby be less
than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and
share premium account.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
approximately HK$286,000.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu (Deputy Chairman)

Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy (resigned on 18 April 2017)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky (resigned on 18 April 2017)
Mr. Lai Law Kau (resigned on 18 April 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Kan Ka Hon

Mr. Lau Sin Ming

Mr. Foo Tak Ching

Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly

The biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this Report are set
out on pages 17 to 18 of this annual report.

In accordance with Bye-Law 99 of the Bye-Laws of the Company, Mr.
Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim, an executive Director, and Mr. Kan Ka Hon, an
independent non-executive Director, will retire from office by rotation and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes of
information required to be disclosed by Directors are set out below.

Pursuant to the Company’s policies and practices and in consideration
of the increasing level of duties and responsibilities as well as the market
conditions, the remuneration package of the following Directors were
reviewed and revised with effect from 1 April 2017, details of the breakdown
are in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements:

(1) Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim — annual emoluments was revised
from HK$1,128,000 to HK$1,983,600.

(2)  Ms. Lui Yuk Chu - annual emoluments was revised from
HK$2,232,000 to HK$2,060,760.

(3)  The annual director’'s fees of HK$140,000 per annum for all
independent non-executive Directors remains the same.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received annual written confirmation pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
from each of the independent non-executive Directors as regards their
independence to the Company for the year ended 31 March 2018. Despite
the fact that each of Mr. Kan Ka Hon, Mr. Lau Sin Ming and Mr. Foo Tak
Ching, has served as an independent non-executive Director on the Board
for more than nine years, the Board is of the view that their duration of
service will not interfere with their exercise of independent judgement
in carrying out their duties and responsibilities as the independent non-
executive Directors and believes that their valuable knowledge and
experience in the Group’s business will continually benefit the Company and
the Shareholders as a whole. Accordingly, the Company considers all the
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors and the independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a service contract or a letter of appointment with
the Company for a term of three years.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has an unexpired service contract with the Group
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract for the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company was entered into or existed
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transaction” below, there was no contract of significance relating to the
business of the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transaction” below, there was no contract of significance between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder or any of
its subsidiaries subsisting during or at the end of the year, and there was no
contract of significance for the provision of services to the Company or any
of its subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2018, the interests and short positions of the Directors and
the chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)),
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as
follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the
Company
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Approximate
percentage of
Number of Number of the total
ordinary underlying issued shares
Name of Director Capacity shares held shares held Total of the Company
EARRD#T
FREEBER HEEE R EE
EEERE 5t RH#E RAEE st BHRDL
Lui Yuk Chu Beneficiary of a trust and 739,330,692 288,880,281 1,028,210,973
EE% interest of controlled
corporation (Note i)
ERZaAR
REHEE
e (M)
Interest of spouse (Note i) - 11,300,000 11,300,000
Bid s (Fati)
Beneficial owner (Note iii) - 11,300,000 11,300,000
BEafia A (i)
1,050,810,973 35.43%
Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim Beneficial owner (Note iv) - 11,300,000 11,300,000 0.38%
BRA EnfaA (MWt
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Notes:

(i)

(v)

In the 739,330,692 shares, 93,549,498 shares and 645,781,194 shares are
registered in the name of and beneficially owned by Landmark Profits Limited
(“Landmark Profits”) and Goodco Development Limited (“Goodco”) respectively,
both are the wholly-owned subsidiaries of Easyknit International Holdings Limited
(“Easyknit”). Sea Rejoice Limited is interested in approximately 21.95% of the total
number of issued shares of Easyknit and it is wholly-owned by Ms. Lui Yuk Chu.
Magical Profits Limited (“Magical Profits”) is interested in approximately 36.74% of
the total number of issued shares of Easyknit. Magical Profits is wholly-owned by
Accumulate More Profits Limited which in turn is wholly-owned by The Winterbotham
Trust Company Limited (“Winterbotham Trust”) as the trustee of The Magical 2000
Trust (the beneficiaries of which included Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and her family members
other than her spouse). For the 288,880,281 underlying shares comprise (a) 880,281
convertible shares (subject to adjustment) to be issued upon the full conversion of
the 2014 convertible note (“2014CN”), (b) 100,000,000 convertible shares (subject
to adjustment) to be issued upon the full conversion of the 2017 convertible note 1
(“2017CN1”), and (c) 188,000,000 convertible shares (subject to adjustment) to be
issued upon the full conversion of the 2017 convertible note 2 (“2017CN2”), which are
held by Goodco.

These underlying shares are share options granted by the Company under the Share
Option Scheme on 14 October 2016 to Mr. Koon Wing Yee, the spouse of Ms. Lui
Yuk Chu. By virtue of SFO, Ms. Lui Yuk Chu is deemed to be interested in these
11,300,000 underlying shares held by Mr. Koon Wing Yee.

These underlying shares are share options granted by the Company under the Share
Option Scheme on 14 October 2016 to Ms. Lui Yuk Chu.

These underlying shares are share options granted by the Company under the Share
Option Scheme on 14 October 2016 to Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, none of the Directors or
chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which
would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model

Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2018, so far as is known to the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company, the interests and short positions of the persons
or corporations other than a Director or chief executive of the Company, in
the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as

follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the
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Company
Approximate
percentage of
Name of Number of Number of the total issued
substantial ordinary underlying shares of
shareholder Notes Capacity shares held shares held Total the Company
ERAFE
BEEBR BERE R
TERRER i3 2t RHHE RH#E st ZBRAES
Koon Wing Yee i &ii Interest of spouse 739,330,692 300,180,281 1,039,510,973
EkE ReBEs
i Beneficial owner - 11,300,000 11,300,000
EREBA
1,050,810,973 35.43%
Goodco P&l Beneficial owner 645,781,194 288,880,281 934,661,475 31.51%
Ex EREBA
Easyknit i &i Interest of controlled corporation 739,330,692 288,880,281 1,028,210,973 34.67%
*E REtEE s
Magical Profits P& Interest of controlled corporation 739,330,692 288,880,281 1,028,210,973 34.67%
XA 2 #R
Accumulate More Profits Limited Interest of controlled corporation 739,330,692 288,880,281 1,028,210,973 34.67%
BSALIVAEPA 3
Winterbotham Trust P& Trustee 739,330,692 288,880,281 1,028,210,973 34.67%
B HBRET BEA
Winterbotham Holdings Limited v Interest of controlled corporation 739,330,692 288,880,281 1,028,210,973 34.67%
REEE 2 R
Markson International Holdings Limited i Interest of controlled corporation 739,330,692 288,880,281 1,028,210,973 34.67%
REHEE 2 BR
Christopher Geoffrey Douglas Hooper v Interest of controlled corporation 739,330,692 288,880,281 1,028,210,973 34.67%
REtEE s
lvan Geoffrey Douglas Hooper v Interest of controlled corporation 739,330,692 288,880,281 1,028,210,973 34.67%
REEE 2 R
Madian Star Limited v Beneficial owner - 537,500,000 537,500,000 18.12%
EREBA
Hu Rong Beneficial owner 400,000,000 - 400,000,000 13.49%
fits E&HEA
Able Merchant Limited Beneficial owner 162,222,222 - 162,222,222 5.13%
ERABA
SIWEHEERAT | 2018 F3

37



38

Directors’ Report

EEEHRS

Notes:

)

(i)

(v)

In the 739,330,692 shares, 93,549,498 shares and 645,781,194 shares are
registered in the name of and beneficially owned by Landmark Profits and Goodco
respectively, both are the wholly-owned subsidiaries of Easyknit. Sea Rejoice
Limited is interested in approximately 21.95% of the total number of issued shares
of Easyknit and it is wholly-owned by Ms. Lui Yuk Chu. Magical Profits is interested
in approximately 36.74% of the total number of issued shares of Easyknit. Magical
Profits is wholly-owned by Accumulate More Profits Limited which in turn is wholly-
owned by Winterbotham Trust as the trustee of The Magical 2000 Trust (the
beneficiaries of which included Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and her family members other than
her spouse). For the 288,880,281 underlying shares comprise (a) 880,281 convertible
shares (subject to adjustment) to be issued upon the full conversion of the 2014CN,
(b) 100,000,000 convertible shares (subject to adjustment) to be issued upon the full
conversion of the 2017 2017CN1, and (c) 188,000,000 convertible shares (subject to
adjustment) to be issued upon the full conversion of the 2017CN2, which are held by
Goodco.

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, an executive Director, is also a director of Landmark Profits,
Goodco, Easyknit, Sea Rejoice Limited and Magical Profits.

These underlying shares are share options granted by the Company under the Share
Option Scheme on 14 October 2016 to Mr. Koon Wing Yee, the spouse of Ms. Lui
Yuk Chu.

Winterbotham Trust is trustee of The Magical 2000 Trust (the beneficiaries of
which included Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and her family members other than her spouse).
Winterbotham Trust is owned as to 75% by Winterbotham Holdings Limited
(“Winterbotham Holdings”) and 25% by Markson International Holdings Limited
(“Markson”) respectively. Winterbotham Holdings is owned as to approximately
99.99% by Mr. Christopher Geoffrey Douglas Hooper. Markson is owned as to 60%
by Mr. Christopher Geoffrey Douglas Hooper and 40% by Mr. lvan Geoffrey Douglas
Hooper respectively.

The noteholder of a convertible note issued by the Company to Madian Star Limited
on 12 June 2015 in the aggregate principal amount of HK$86,000,000 for a term of
2 years and conferring rights to convert shares on the basis of the then conversion
price of HK$0.33 per share. The terms of this convertible note are revised for a term
of 7 years at a conversion price of HK$0.16 per share with effect from 11 May 2017.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, the Company had not
been notified by any persons (other than Directors or chief executives of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
required to be recorded in the register kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 29 June 2012, a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
was adopted and approved by the shareholders of the Company for a
period of 10 years commencing on the adoption date. Since the adoption
date, the Board, may at its discretion, grant share options to any eligible
person to subscribe for the shares in the Company subject to the terms and
conditions as stipulated in the Share Option Scheme.
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Further details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 24 July 2017, the
scheme mandate limit for the Share Option Scheme was refreshed to allow
the Company to issue a maximum of 223,683,205 share options under the
Share Option Scheme, representing 7.54% of the total number of issued
shares of the Company (i.e. 2,965,832,059 shares) as at 31 March 2018.

The movements in the share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme during the year are shown below:

Directors’ Report

ESEHE

BRIBRER B 2 — S FEHA RS MR
FKMiTE27 -

R2017F7 24 8T 2 AR A REBAF
AL BREFEZAERERECDESR
o AHARRREBEBERETEETRS
223,683,205 10 BE AR 4 - 15N QA AR 20184 3
A31 BB 81T 7B E(812,965,832,059% A%
1) 27.54% °

RAEE - RIBB AR BRI 2 g2
W

Number of share options
EhRiER
Balance  Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed Balance Exercise
Category and Date of asat during during during during asat  Exercise price per
name of participant grantof  01/042017  theyear  theyear  theyear  theyear 31/03/2018 period share
R7E M08k
ERRSEL 4818 3A%1A
#4/%8 RLAH BB EREE O EARR O EREE ERRN bii k8 SROEE
ddimmiyy dd/mmiyy (HKS)
B/f/% B/B/E (B
Directors £
Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim BRA 147102016 11,300,000 - - - - 11,300,000 14/10/2016- 0.176
13/10/2019
Lui Yuk Chu Ik 1471022016 11,300,000 - - - - 11,300,000 14/10/2016- 0.176
131072019
Koon Ho Yan Candy BAM 147102016 11,300,000 - - (11,300,000 - - 14/10/2016- 0.176
(resigned on 18 April 2017) (R201754 7 1865 13/10/2019
Employees Ee 14/10/2016 79,100,000 - - (11,300,000 - 67,800,000 14/10/2016- 0.176
131072019
Total Bif 113,000,000 - - (22,600,000 - 90,400,000

The consideration paid for each grant of share options was HK$1.00. The
vesting period for the share options granted is 36 months from the date of
grant. The closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant was
HK$0.126 per share.

The total number of share available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme is 314,083,205 which represents approximately 10.59% of the
total number of issued shares of the Company as at 31 March 2018.

EERBREAN ZRER1.008TT I
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than the Share Option Scheme disclosed above, at no time during the
year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate, and none of the directors or any of their spouses or children
under the age of 18, was granted any right to subscribe for the equity
or debt securities of the Company or any other body corporate nor had
exercised any such right.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the equity-linked agreements including the convertible notes
of the Company, the placing agreements and the Share Option Scheme
have been disclosed in notes 23, 26 and 27 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively. Save as disclosed, the Company did not enter into
any equity-linked agreements during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 26 August 2015, Easyknit Worldwide Company Limited (‘EWCL”, an
indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) as tenant entered into
a tenancy agreement with Wellmake Investments Limited (a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Easyknit which is a substantial shareholder of the Company)
as landlord in relation to the formal renewal of the tenancy of a premises at
Block A, 7th Floor, Hong Kong Spinners Building, Phase 6, 481-483 Castle
Peak Road, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong, including decoration,
electrical appliances, furniture, air conditioning facilities and a car parking
spaces on 4th floor (the “Premises”) for a term of 2 years from 1 September
2015 to 31 August 2017 at a monthly rental of HK$208,000 (the “2015
Tenancy”). The annual cap is HK$2,496,000, being the aggregate annual
rental for the Premises based on the monthly rental of HK$208,000.

On 19 October 2016, EWCL received a notification from Grandcorp
Development Limited (“GDL”, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Easyknit),
informing that GDL is the new landlord with effect from 18 October 2016
and mentioning that the remaining period of the tenancy shall continue to
follow all the terms and conditions as mentioned in the 2015 Tenancy.

On 24 August 2017, EWCL and GDL entered into a new tenancy agreement
(the “2017 Tenancy”) for the Premises for a term of three years from 1
September 2017 to 31 August 2020 at a monthly rental of HK$208,000.
The annual cap of the rental to be paid by EWCL is HK$2,496,000, being
the aggregate annual rental for the Premises based on the monthly rental of
HK$208,000.

Details of the 2015 Tenancy and 2017 Tenancy are set out in the

Company’s announcements dated 26 August 2015 and 28 August 2017
respectively.
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During the year ended 31 March 2018, EWCL paid the aggregate rental for
the Premises of HK$2,496,000 (2017: HK$2,496,000) to GDL pursuant to
the 2015 Tenancy and 2017 Tenancy respectively. The aggregate rental
amount does not exceeded the relevant amount capped in accordance with
the Company’s announcements as mentioned above

Annual Review of Continuing Connected Transaction

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transaction in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor of the Company
has issued an unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transaction disclosed by the Group in
accordance with Listing Rule 14A.56. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, the independent non-executive Directors
have reviewed the above continuing connected transaction and the report
of the auditor and confirmed that the continuing connected transaction was
entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(ii) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the
Group than terms available to (or from) independent third parties; and (iii) in
accordance with the 2015 Tenancy and 2017 Tenancy governing it on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions which were undertaken in the
normal course of business are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements. For those related party transactions that constitutes connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions (as the case may be) (other
than those described in the above section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions”) under the Listing Rules, these transactions are exempt from
reporting, annual review, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Bye-law 178 of the Company’s Bye-laws provides that, among other,
every director and other officers of the Company shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which
they or any of them shall or may incur sustain by or by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or
supposed duty, in their respective offices and related matters provided
that the indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud
or dishonesty which may attach to any of them. In this connection, the
Company has arranged directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage
for the directors and officers of the Company during the year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS
During the year, the 5 largest suppliers of the Group accounted for
100% of the Group’s purchases and the largest supplier accounted for
approximately 99% of the Group’s purchases.
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The 5 largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately 29% of
the Group’s revenue and the largest customer accounted for approximately
9% of the Group’s revenue.

None of the Directors and their respective close associates or any
shareholders of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) have any
interest in the 5 largest suppliers or customers of the Group.

PROPERTY VALUATION

Property valuations in respect of the Group’s investment properties in
Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China have been carried out by
Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited and Knight Frank Petty Limited as at
31 March 2018 and 2017, both are independent qualified valuers. For the
investment property in Singapore, the valuation as at 31 March 2018 was
carried out by Edmund Tie & Company (SEA) Pte Ltd, another independent
qualified professional valuer. Their valuations were based on residual
value approach, income capitalisation approach and/or direct comparison
method as the valuation methodologies and were used in preparing
2017/18 final results.

The Group’s investment properties were valued at HK$1,657 million (2017:
HK$1,320 million), a increase over 2017 after adjusted for the exchange
adjustments additions of investment properties. The increase in fair value of
approximately HK$72 million was recognized in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income for the year. Development properties and non-
investment properties of the Group were stated at cost less impairment, if
any, in these consolidated financial statements.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group is exposed to various risks in its businesses and operations.
Through internal control systems and procedures, the Company has taken
reasonable steps to ensure that significant risks are monitored and do not
adversely affect the Group’s operations and performances. The relevant
risks are managed on an ongoing basis. A non-exhaustive list of principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Group is set out below.

Market Risk

The Group’s revenue is principally derived from Hong Kong and PRC. The
conditions of the economy as a whole and the property market may have
significant impact to the Group’s financial results and conditions.
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Compliance Risk

The Group’s operations require compliance with local and oversea laws
(including those of PRC, Bermuda, Singapore and British Virgin Islands)
and regulations, including but not limited to property sale, management
and construction as well as companies and securities laws. The Group has
constantly monitored its compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group.

ACCOUNT OF KEY RELATIONSHIP

The Group adheres to the standards of business ethics, this underpins how
we conduct business with our customers, suppliers and contractors.

Employees

We value our employees who are the Group’s most important assets. We
reward our staff with competitive remuneration packages and benefits. We
are committed to fostering a conducive, harmonious and discrimination-free
working environment. We have training budget to subsidize the employees’
continued professional development.

Occupational health and safety is the top priority across our operations.
Safety guidelines are established to safeguard the employees from any
occupational hazards.

Customers

We strive to provide high quality and reliable services to our customers. The
privacy of our clients’ information is well protected through a privacy policy.
Any complaints from customers are handled and investigated in a thorough
and efficient manner.

Suppliers

We are committed to forging collaborative partnership with our suppliers
and have a database of approved suppliers and vendors who are assessed
on a regular basis.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments policy of employees of the Group is set up by the executive
Directors on the basis of their performance, experience and prevailing
industry practice.

The emolument of the Directors is determined by the Board after reviewed
and recommended by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the
time commitment and responsibilities of individual Directors, the Company’s
performance and the prevailing market conditions.

The Company had adopted the Share Option Scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible employees. Details of the Share Option Scheme are
set out in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” above.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-Laws although
there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws in Bermuda
where the Company is incorporated.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
sufficient public floats as required under the Listing Rules throughout the
year ended 31 March 2018.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee is to review
and supervise the financial reporting process and risk management and
internal control systems of the Group. The Audit Committee comprised of 4
independent non-executive Directors.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2018.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report” from pages 19 to 30 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2018 will be published as a separate report from this
annual report in compliance with relevant requirements under the Listing
Rules on or before 31 July 2018.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant events occurring after the end of the reporting
period are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 were audited by
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-appoint
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board
KWONG JIMMY CHEUNG TIM

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 18 May 2018
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(REFETMA A BRAF])

Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF EMINENCE ENTERPRISE LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Eminence
Enterprise Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 51 to 148, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2018, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2018, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.
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Key audit matter

BERETER

Valuation of investment properties

REYFZ1GE

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key
audit matter due to the significant judgments and assumptions
made by management of the Group in determining the fair
value.

B BEEEEBEENEEQFERSREKRZHERRR -
HMRAREYEZ HER ARSI R -

At 31 March 2018, the fair value of investment properties was
approximately HK$1,657 million (consolidated statement of
financial position), with a fair value gain recognised in profit or
loss of approximately HK$72 million (consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income).

201843 A31 A + HEMHEATFEL1,657,000,00078 7T (47
BHMBARRRK) - RERERZ AT AWK 72,000,000% 7T
(freBm kEMEENER)

The Group’s investment properties are stated at fair value
based on valuations performed by independent firms of
qualified professional property valuers (the “Valuers”). Details
of the valuation techniques and key inputs used in the
valuations are disclosed in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.
BEEEREMEZ NTHENRBE & ERFEMEMT(E
BEE]) 1EH 2 AT o MEMRAZEETEREZH AR
B2 IBERGE M MR M TE 14 AHREE o
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

MM ETOMERIEEREBR

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment
properties included:
BPIEHREY R GEZ AR F B

o Obtaining an understanding from the Valuers and
management of the Group about the valuation
techniques, performance of the property markets,
significant assumptions adopted, critical judgmental
areas, key inputs and data used in the valuations;
wEEmMEk BEXETRETREBERE WEMSE
B FRAZEERR  TE2HEEHE - HEMKBZ
FERAREUE

. Assessing the integrity of information provided by
management of the Group to the Valuers by comparing,
on a sample basis, details of rentals to the respective
underlying existing lease agreements;
FRAMEAT A EBERREEO 2 HEF1E U
i BREEEERMEMARE ER 2 TR

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the Valuers; and

FHEMERMNER - N RERME - R

o Assessing reasonableness of key inputs used by the
Valuers and management of the Group by comparing
with relevant market information with similar properties.
FBRLLBRFAAERY AT SERAAREM R &
SEERERAETERAREBSBIE -



Key audit matter

BERETER

Impairment assessment of loans receivable

FERES 2T

We identified the impairment assessment of loans receivable as
a key audit matter due to estimation uncertainty inherent in the
management’s credit risk assessment process in respect of the
collectability of loans receivable.

MR EE B R E R TR E M 2 EERR EEEFED
WBE 2 fhEt - BRAIEAEKRERZRENE A —BRETF
I8 o

The loans are assessed for impairment individually. In
determining the impairment on loans receivable, management
of the Group considers financial background, current
creditworthiness, collateral and past collection history of each
borrower.

METDRERERFE - REEREERZRER @ HEEE
EREEERMENERAZHBS S - BHEE - HIREE

At 31 March 2018, the carrying amount of loans receivable
was approximately HK$265 million (note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements) and no impairment allowance on loans
receivable was made in the current year (note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements).

7201843 A31 B R E R Z BREI{E ) 4 265,000,000 % 7T
(47 & MR R M T 16) RO AN [ 30 48 e LK B SR 4/ L Rk (B 38
18 (B FITE3RaRMTRE4) o

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report,
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMHET O ARIERERET B

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of loans
receivable included:
B RERE R 2R E TG 2 BRI

. Understanding the Group’s policy on granting loans to
the borrowers and the related credit control including
ongoing loan monitoring procedures;

TR BEEERLERTERAZBERMAEERE
EREEIE 2 E B

. Evaluating the management’s assessment on the credit
quality of the borrowers by examining records including
financial background, current creditworthiness, collateral
and past collection history of the borrowers; and
HEEEEARSHBRERAMBESR  HREE -
ERMRBEBRBERZ BT EERAZEEER
K

o Checking the existence and recoverable amount of the
underlying collateral, if applicable.
BEEEER R 2 FERE AT S5 - ER -

HifE 8

BERREFTHEMEEAE - HUES K
TENFHRANGEES - ETREFSMBEHRER

but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s REMEZ SR RS o
report thereon.
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the R GEMBERERNERY TR EZEME

other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion

B BT EZEEAE R BEREAT A

thereon. BB o
In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, HEERMEFEEVFWMENET - RMIORE

our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,

consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the BRGHLRE M BRI B MESTBER

consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report

in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s
report is Yen Sau Yin, Emily.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

18 May 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meBmkHMEEKER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 A31 HILFE

Revenue
Cost of goods sold and services rendered

Other income

Other gains and losses

Other expenses

Distribution and selling expenses

Administrative expenses

Net loss on modification of terms of
convertible note

Gain (loss) on changes in fair value of
investment properties

Impairment loss on available-for-sale
investments

Loss on fair value change of investments
held for trading

Loss on fair value change of financial
assets designated as at fair value
through profit or loss

Finance costs

Profit (loss) before taxation
Taxation

Profit (loss) for the year attributable to
owners of the Company

e
SHE MR AR ARAS

Hi g A

H bz K518
HAFI

RESHRAR

TR

F R AR SRR
2R

BEMERZ AFE
ZH) e (B1R)
AHEEREZ
REEE

FHEEBEIRE 2T
BEEBEIA

BATEARRZ
ERMEEZRATE
EHER

BA KA

B A A (B518)
B

ARFBERENS
AEREH (FR)

NOTES

(o3

23(b)

14

10

11

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FT
49,605 36,518
(2,880) (a71)
46,725 36,347
7,677 17,573
1,552 (286)
(121) (492)
(40) (13)
(35,525) (32,911)
(1,023) =
72,337 (12,792)
(3,406) (14,176)
(2,195) (2,374)

- (1,255)
(31,373) (19,213)
54,608 (29,592)
(1,069) 2,965
53,539 (26,627)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meEakAtEZEBER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 431 HILFE

Other comprehensive income (expense) EftZEUIA (Fix)
Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on
translation of financial statements
of foreign operations
Change in fair value of available-for-sale

investments

Reclassification adjustment upon
impairment of available-for-sale

investments

Release upon disposal of available-
for-sale investments

Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income (expense)
for the year attributable to owners

of the Company

Earnings (loss) per share

— Basic

— Diluted

BEZ REERT DI E

Bam s HA

BEBINSENTTE

BRZEHER

AHEEREZ

ATERH

A ERERRER

ZEH D RHE

HEHEERER

FRER

REFEMPEPA

RRBRREMRFRE

2HEEA (F)
#F

FhkaF (FHR)

—EAK

— 88
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NOTE
B aE

12

12

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FHT
37,095 (16,038)
45,029 13,995
3,406 14,176
(45) (5,059)
85,485 7,074
139,024 (19,553)

HK2.31 cents

(HK1.95 cents)

HK2.15 cents

(HK1.95 cents)




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

At 31 March 2018 722018 43 A 31 H

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Loans receivable
Available-for-sale investments
Deposits paid for acquisition of
investment properties

Current assets

Properties held for development for sale

Deposits and prepayments for
acquisition of properties held
for development for sale

Trade and other receivables

Loans receivable

Investments held for trading

Other financial assets

Bank deposits with original maturity
of more than three months

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Tax payable
Convertible notes
Secured bank borrowings

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Convertible notes
Deferred tax liabilities
Secured bank borrowings

FRBEE

W BB kR

S 8=CVES

M E R

AHHERE

WiEREYEZ
ENRE

mEBEE
FIEHEZRRME
BASEHERR
MEZEER
SRR

B 5 R H b YRR
EME K
FIEEEKRA
HitteBEE
HB={EA2Hz
RITER
RITHEBERE

nEaE

B 5 R EA R FOR
e TR
AHBERE
BHEIPRITEE

mEEEFE
BERBERRBEE

FRBEE
CEres
BEERIARIE
BEMRITEE

NOTES
B aE

13
14
15
16

35

17

18
15
19
20

21
21

22

23
24

23
25
24

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TR TET
3,958 3,616
1,656,633 1,320,369
46,924 44,326
207,213 158,541
29,500 =
1,944,228 1,626,852
1,634,964 1,035,792
- 12,791
49,876 40,171
218,373 220,069
3,436 4,605
35,618 53,980
- 103,606
125,422 409,884
2,067,689 1,880,798
89,718 48,712
9,530 9,430
69,656 81,981
420,410 420,400
589,314 560,523
1,478,375 1,320,275
3,422,603 2,847,127
- 13,820
35,065 21,854
672,250 359,300
707,315 394,974
2,715,288 2,452,153
SILEEERAR | 2018 F3
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

At 31 March 2018 72018 43 B31 H

NOTE
gz
Capital and reserves BEAR K
Share capital &N 26
Reserves i

The consolidated financial statements on pages 51 to 148 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 18 May 2018 and are
signed on its behalf by:

Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim
BRR
DIRECTOR
=2
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2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
T TET
29,658 19,118
2,685,630 2,433,035
2,715,288 2,452,158

EESN2018E5 A 18 A ERRELRRSE
51 2148 B Z IR A MS3RE - WA THESK

rKEE
Lui Yuk Chu
E Rk
DIRECTOR
EE



At 1 April 2016

Exchange differences arising on
translation of financial statements
of foreign operations

Change in fair value of available-for-sale
investments

Reclassification adjustment upon
impairment of available-for-sale
investments

Release upon disposal of available-for-
sale investments

Loss for the year

Total comprehensive (expense)
income for the year

Issue of new shares

Transaction costs attributable to issue
of new shares

Recognition of equity component of
convertible note

Deferred tax liability on recognition
of equity component of
convertiole note

Issue of shares on conversion of
convertible note

Deferred tax liabilty released
upon conversion of
convertiole note

Recognition of equity-settied
share-hased payments

At 31 March 2017

R2016F4 718

BEBEE
REHRE
LERER

THHEREL
ATEE

AftHERE
RifEkZ
EfNERE

HETHE
RERRE

AERRR

AEERE(FR)
YAEE
SR
VA
REUE
BAUARSR
EERS
TTARRE
YA
BRGERE
AATERZRE
EG10)
AETAR
SERER
i
BNERES
LB

R2017£3A31A

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEREER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 431 HILF[E

Convertible Investment  Property Share
Share Share noteequty ~ Capital Contributed  Exchange  revaluation revaluation  options Accumulated
captal  premum  reserve  reseve  suplus  reserve  reseve  reseve  reserve profits Total
TAREE REER  pEEM ERE
Ry KhRE EsERE  RAEE  HARR  ENRR i | i ] B ZithA 4%
HKS'000  HK$000  HK§'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS'000
Thn Tt TEr TAr TEr  TEn TR TR TEr  TEr TEn
11,166 1882461 21,181 531%4 261,126 2002 (12204 4064 - 6874 2304444
- - - - - (16039) - - - - (1603)
- - - - - - 139% - - - 139%
- - - - - - 14,176 - - - 14,176
- - - - - - (6,009) = = = (6,009)
- - - - - - - - - (6627)  (26621)
- - - - - (160%) 23112 - - (26627)  (19599)
5780 90410 - - - - - - - - %140
- (%1) - - - - - - - - (%1)
- - UM - - - - - - - AU
- - (4,025) - - - - - - - (4,025)
2200 41778 (24.891) - - - - - - - 25609
- - 4,025 - - - - - - - 4025
- - - - - - - - 2,083 - 2,083
19,118 2019688 21,181 53194 261,126 394 10908 40624 2083 20247 2452153
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEREER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 431 HILFE

Convertible Investment  Property Share
Share Share noteequity  Capital Contributed ~Exchange revaluation revaluation  options Accumulated
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  surplus  reseve  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total
TERZE REEf  WEER  ERE
Rx  ROBE EafE BAEE  A0ER  ENRE fife ik B Zeed ]
HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
Thr TEn TEr  TEn  TErn  TEn  TEr  TEm  TEr  TEn  TEn
Exchangg differences arising on AEHIEE
translation of financial statements g e
of foreign operations Eiz2 - - - - - 37,005 - - - - 31,00
Change In fair value of available-for- THHEREL
sale invesiments ATEEY - - - - - - 450 - - - 4509
Reclassfication adjustment upon ARHERERE
impaiment of avaiable- FRZENIE
for-sale investments it - - - - - - 3,406 - - - 3,406
Release upon disposal of HEMHIE
avalable-for-sale investments RERER - - - - - - (45) - - - 45)
Profit for the year REREA - - - - - - - - - 53539 B3S5%
Total comprehensive income FEEZERA
for the year % - - - - - 37,09 48,390 - - 53,539 139,024
Issue of new shares Bk 7720 42865 - - - - - - - - 50,585
Transaction costs atirioutable to Bk Rs
issue of new shares A - (505) - - - - - - - - (505)
Recogniton of equity component of BAARSEL
convertible notes R - - 9% - - - - - - - 279
Deferred tax iabity on recognition AAREEL
of equity component of BaAkz
convertble notes EXREEE - - 4619 - - - - - - - 4619
Transfer upon modification of terms FHAARER
of convertle note BiEEE - - (14304 - - - - - - 14304 -
Deferred tax liabilty released upon FUMARZE
modifcation of terms of AR
convertble note EtiEaRE - - 465 - - - - - - - 465
Recognition upon modication of tems B ARER
of convertile note i - - 50092 - - - - - - - 50992
Deferred tax iabity on recognifon of X ARHZHE
equity component upon BRERD
modiication of terms of Banh et
convertile note HEAE - - By - - - - - - - Ay
Issue of shares on conversion of RATERZER
convertble note L) 2820 14100 (11,145) - - - - - - - 5,175
Deferred tax iablty released upon HRATARSER
conversion of convertiole note ERELHEaE - - 1,838 - - - - - - = 1,838
Transfer upon cancelation of HHERERER
share options - - - - - - - - (431) 431 -
At 31 March 2018 R2018%E3A31A 20658 2,076,148 63,988 53194 261,126 41,079 59,298 40,624 1,652 88,521 2,715,288
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEREER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 A31 HILFE

The capital reserve of the Group represents the credit arising from the
reduction of share capital of the Company in March 2004 and September
2005 and can be applied in the future for distribution to the shareholders.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the credit arising from the
reduction of share capital of the Company in February 2003, October 2009,
December 2012, November 2013, October 2014, March 2015 and October
2015, part of which was applied to set off against accumulated losses of
the Company in October 2009, December 2012, November 2013, October
2014, March 2015 and October 2015. The balance may be utilised by the
directors in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws and all applicable
laws, including to eliminate the accumulated losses of the Company.

The property revaluation reserve of the Group represents the gain on
revaluation of certain leasehold properties and prepaid lease payments of
the Group when these leasehold properties and prepaid lease payments
were transferred to investment properties.

AEE 7 BAFEREALT R 2004F3 A&
2005 F 9 AR IR ANFTE £ 2 HEER - Al{i5
RDEFRE °

NEE 2 BARBREANARN2003F2A -
20094108 2012412 A - 2013411 A -
2014510 A » 201543 A Kk 20154 10 A Al
RIS AN B T EE 4E 2 HEBR - B3 B 2009 4F 10
A~ 2012412 A - 2013411 A - 20144E10
A - 201543 A K% 20154 10 A B{EEHEA LD
Al REtEIE - EERREAQA R ERMAIKL
Fra A 2 A0 FAE Rz - BIERANIE
AR R)Z BEHEE -

AEE 2z MESHRFEERIAEEEHELEY

ENENHEFREREYEREHETHE
MERIANEEFTIR 2 s
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 431 HILFE

Operating activities
Profit (loss) before taxation
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Interest expense
Depreciation
Net loss on modification of terms
of convertible note
(Gain) loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
(Gain) loss on changes in fair value
of investment properties
Impairment loss on available-for-sale
investments

Gain on disposal of available-for-sale

investments

Loss on fair value change of
investments held for trading

Gain on fair value change of
convertible note

Loss on fair value change of financial
assets designated as at fair value
through profit or loss

Equity-settled share-based payment
expense

Dividend income from listed
investments

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital

Increase in properties held for
development for sale

Increase in deposits and prepayments
paid for acquisition of properties held
for development for sale

Increase in trade and other receivables

Increase in loans receivable

Increase in investments held for trading

Increase in trade and other payables

Cash used in operations

Income tax paid

Dividend received from investments
held for trading

Net cash used in operating activities

B
i Al A (&5 18)
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A SMA
PN
e
BRI SR AR 15K
Z 1R

HEWE - BB &ER
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2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHIT
54,608 (29,592)
(2,367) (6,421)
31,373 19,213
1,067 444
1,023 =
@ 1
(72,337) 12,792
3,406 14,176
(45) (5,059)
2,195 2,374
(217) -

= 1,255

= 2,083
(4,537) (4,247)
14,162 7,019
(575,313) (393,338)
= (12,791)
(10,276) (4,340)
(902) (188,395)
(1,126) (935)
16,394 18,901
(557,061) (573,879)
(441) (133)

M 117
(557,461) (573,895)




Investing activities
Additions of investment properties
Purchase of other financial assets

Payment of deposits for acquisition

of investment properties

Purchase of available-for-sale
investments

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Withdrawal of bank deposits with
original maturity of more than
three months

Proceeds from disposal of other
financial assets

Interest received

Proceeds from disposal of
available-for-sale investments

Dividend received from
available-for-sale investments

Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment

Placement of bank deposits with original
maturity of more than three months

Settlement of debts assigned in
acquisition of subsidiaries

Net cash outflow on acquisition of
assets and liabilities through
acquisition of subsidiaries

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities

Bank borrowings raised

Proceeds from issue of new shares

Proceeds from issue of convertible
notes

Interest paid

Repayment of bank borrowings

Transaction costs attributable to
issue of new shares

Net cash from financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning

of the year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at end
of the year, represented by bank
balances and cash

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HEBEESRER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 A31 HILFE

2018 2017
NOTE HK$’000 HK$’'000
gz FHET FHT
REEE
RBREYE (201,710) (13,778)
BAEMEREE (64,519) (375,976)
W B
Re it (29,500) =
AR &
wE (2,226) (35,900)
BAME - BE
P& (1,433) (3,558)
IREE® =& A
B2 BT
T 103,606 =
HEEMEREEY
Frf55IE 86,608 321,767
B FILE 2,951 6,567
HEAMEEEREZ
Frf5 508 1,678 23,133
REFHIEERE
2 BIRARE 1,401 4,130
LEME - BER
S 2 TS 5E 65 15
AR E =18 A 2 A
ZIRITTFR - (103,606)
AT EE R B A RlRs 2
BEIREE 32 - (82,135)
FRKEBARREA
BERBREZ
W& FEE 32 - (34,372)
AR B RS 2R S FRE (103,079) (293,713)
@ﬁ%@

EIRITEE 318,071 684,595
%ﬁ%&Z%%ﬁ 50,585 96,140
BT ER 2

Frf550E 44,200 50,000
BRFE (31,688) (10,678)
EEﬁﬂ% (5,359) (5,027)
BITHRZR 5

B AN (505) (961)

REBME RS 2 HEFRE 375,304 814,069
BehFRBEEZ
T (285,236) (53,539)
FNzEeRERRE
409,884 465,279
HNIEFE R EB) 2 & 774 (1,856)
FRZESRERRS
RIRTTREHBER S
125,422 409,884
SILEEBRAR | 20185F#H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 431 HILF[E

GENERAL

Eminence Enterprise Limited (the “Company”; the Company and its
subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the “Group”) is incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
the principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
“Corporate Information” section of the annual report.

The Company is an associate of Easyknit International Holdings
Limited (“Easyknit International”), an exempted company
incorporated in Bermuda with its shares also listed on the Stock
Exchange. At 31 March 2018, Easyknit International had 24.93% of
the issued share capital of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$” or “HKD”) which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note
37.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses

Amendments to HKFRS 12 As part of the Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group'’s financial performance and positions for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &= 201843 A 31 HILF/E

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 “Disclosure Initiative”

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time in
the current year. The amendments require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
cash and non-cash changes. In addition, the amendments also
require disclosures on changes in financial assets if cash flows from
those financial assets were, or future cash flows will be, included in
cash flows from financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to be disclosed: (i)
changes from financing cash flows; (i) changes arising from obtaining
or losing control of subsidiaries or other businesses; (iii) the effect of
changes in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair values; and (v)
other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of these
items is provided in note 28. Consistent with the transition provisions
of the amendments, the Group has not disclosed comparative
information for the prior year. Apart from the additional disclosure in
note 28, the application of these amendments has had no impact on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

2.

FERE] RSB B BUBRESE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 431 HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15
HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17

HK(FRIC)-Int 22

HK(FRIC)-Int 23

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40

Amendments to HKFRSs

Financial Instruments'

Revenue from Contracts with Customers and
the related Amendments'
Leases?

Insurance Contracts*

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments?®

Classification and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” with
HKFRS 4 “Insurance Contracts™

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture®

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement?
Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures?
As part of the Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle'

Transfers of Investment Property’

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 A31 HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs and interpretations
mentioned below, the directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs and
interpretations will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general hedge
accounting and impairment requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group are:

. all recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that are held within a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods.
Debt instruments that are held within a business model whose
objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms
that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, are generally measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”). All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may
make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only dividend
income generally recognised in profit or loss; and

° in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to
an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected
credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit
event to have occurred before credit losses are recognised.
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28

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk management
policies as at 31 March 2018, the directors of the Company anticipate
the following potential impact on initial application of HKFRS 9:

Classification and Measurement:

o Debt instruments classified as loans receivable carried at
amortised cost as disclosed in note 15: these are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding. Accordingly, these financial assets
will continue to be subsequently measured at amortised cost
upon the application of HKFRS 9;

o Listed equity securities classified as available-for-sale
investments carried at fair value as disclosed in note 16: these
securities qualified for designation as measured at FVTOCI
under HKFRS 9. However, the Group plans not to elect the
option for the designation and will measure these securities
at fair value with subsequent fair value gains or losses to be
recognised in profit or loss. Upon initial application of HKFRS 9,
investment revaluation reserve of HK$59,298,000 related
to those available-for-sale investments will be transferred to
accumulated profits at 1 April 2018; and

° All other financial assets and financial liabilities will continue to
be measured on the same bases as are currently measured
under HKAS 39.

Impairment:

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9 will result in
earlier provision of credit losses which are not yet incurred in relation
to the Group’s financial assets measured at amortised costs that are
subject to the impairment provisions upon application of HKFRS 9 by
the Group.

Based on the assessment by the directors of the Company, if the
expected credit loss model were to be applied by the Group, the
application of the expected credit loss model would not have a
material impact on the financial assets measured at amortised cost as
at 1 April 2018 upon the application of HKFRS 9.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 A31 HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS
11 “Construction Contracts” and the related interpretations when it
becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

o Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a

performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods
or services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been
added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore,
extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued clarifications to HKFRS 15 in relation to
the identification of performance obligations, principal versus agent
considerations, as well as licensing application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more disclosures, however, the
directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of
HKFRS15 will have a material impact on the timing and amounts of
revenue recognised in the respective reporting periods.
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28

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of
lease arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors and
lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the related
Interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of
whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer. Distinctions
of operating leases and finance leases are removed for lessee
accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases by
lessees, except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently
measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement
of the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease
payments, as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst
others. For the classification of cash flows, operating lease payments
are currently presented as operating cash flows. Upon application of
HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated
into a principal and an interest portion which will be presented as
financing cash flows by the Group.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating
lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group as lessee has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$6,137,000 as disclosed in note
34. A preliminary assessment indicates that these arrangements will
meet the definition of a lease. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the
Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability
in respect of all these leases unless they qualify for low value or short-
term leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 A31 HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental deposits
paid of HK$425,000 and refundable rental deposits received of
HK$9,200,000 as rights and obligations under leases to which
HKAS 17 applies. Based on the definition of lease payments under
HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments relating to the right to
use the underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts of such
deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost and such adjustments
are considered as additional lease payments. Adjustments to
refundable rental deposits paid would be included in the carrying
amount of right-of-use assets. Adjustments to refundable rental
deposits received would be considered as advance lease payments.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements may result in
changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated
above.

Amendments to HKAS 40 “Transfers of Investment Property”

The amendments clarify that a transfer to, or from, investment
property necessitates an assessment of whether a property meets, or
has ceased to meet, the definition of investment property, supported
by observable evidence that a change in use has occurred. The
amendments further clarify that situations other than the ones listed
in HKAS 40 may evidence a change in use, and that a change in
use is possible for properties under construction. For example,
change in use for transfer from properties under development for
sale in the ordinary course of business to investment properties
could be evidenced by inception of an operating lease to another
party. Currently, the Group accounts for such transfer only upon
commencement of an operating lease.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of these
amendments will result in early recognition of such transfers on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements in future periods should
there be a change in use of any of its properties.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 431 HILF[E

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for investment properties and certain
financial instruments, which are measured at fair values, at the end of
the reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS
2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS
2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which are
transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that unobservable
inputs is to be used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that the results of the valuation
technique equals the transaction price.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 A31 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The significant accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of an
investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights are
sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights
in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

o the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the
size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group or other vote holders;

. rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

° any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the
Group has, or does not have, the current ability to direct the
relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made,
including voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” and
HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits” respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured
in accordance with HKFRS 2 at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below); and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations” are measured in accordance
with that standard.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 A31 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition-
date. If, after re-assessment, the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests
in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately
in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Acquisition of subsidiaries not constituting a business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities that do
not constitute a business, the Group identifies and recognises the
individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed by
allocating the purchase price first to the financial assets and financial
liabilities at the respective fair values, the remaining balance of the
purchase price is then allocated to the other individual identifiable
assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the
date of purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or
bargain purchase gain.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and
services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts
and sales related taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the Group and when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group’s activities, as described below.

Sale of goods and properties held for development for sale
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and titles have passed.

Revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary course of business is
recognised when the respective properties have been completed and
delivered to the purchasers. Deposits and instalments received from
purchasers prior to meeting the above criteria for revenue recognition
are included in the consolidated statement of financial position under
current liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 431 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Dividend and interest income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Rental income
The Group’s policy for recognition of revenue from operating leases
is described in the accounting policy for leasing below.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate
benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on
a straight-line basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 A31 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchange prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are
included in profit or loss for the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expenses are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of exchange reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 431 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation” as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 A31 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment properties
that are measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely through
sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively. When current or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in
the accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 431 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation (including properties under development for such
purposes).

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values. All of the
Group’s property interests held under operating leases to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation purposes are classified and account for as
investment properties and are measured using the fair value model.
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
development are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of the
investment properties under development. Investment properties
under development are measured at fair value at the end of the
reporting period. Any difference between the fair value of the
investment properties under development and their carrying amounts
is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed as evidenced by end of owner-
occupation, any difference between the carrying amount and the fair
value of that item is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in property revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale
or retirement of the asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be
transferred directly to accumulated profits.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the property
is derecognised.

Properties held for development for sale
Properties held for development for sale are classified as current
assets and stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs relating to the development of properties, including purchase
costs of the properties for development, development costs
and borrowing costs capitalised, are capitalised and included as
properties held for development until such time when they are
completed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 A31 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into three categories
including financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”),
available-for-sale financial assets and loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL,
of which interest income is excluded in net gains or losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 431 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial assets
is (i) held for trading or (ii) it is designated as at FVTPL on initial

recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
near future; or

on initial recognition it is a part of an identified portfolio of
financial instruments that the Group manages together and has
a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be
designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets
or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire combined contract
(asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or
losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 431 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a) loans and
receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments, or (c) financial assets at
FVTPL.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period except for unquoted equity investments
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured. Dividends on available-
for-sale equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when
the Group’s right to receive the dividends is established. Changes
in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in investment revaluation reserve, until the financial
asset is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Loans and receivables (including trade and other receivables, loans
receivable, bank deposits with original maturity of more than three
months and bank balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any impairment.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than financial assets at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash
flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For available-for-sale equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered to
be objective evidence of impairment.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is recognised as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade and other receivables and loans receivable, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When an item of trade and other
receivables or loans receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments previously
recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in investment
revaluation reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 431 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity instruments in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and secured
bank borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Convertible notes containing liability and equity components

The component parts of compounds instruments (convertible notes)
issued by the Company are classified separately as financial liabilities
and equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument. A conversion option that will be settled by the exchange
of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number
of the Company’s own equity instruments is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is
estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-
convertible instruments. This amount is recorded as a liability on
an amortised cost basis using the effective interest method until
extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument’s maturity date.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined by
deducting the amount of the liability component from the fair value
of the compound instrument as a whole. This is recognised and
included in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not subsequently
remeasured. In addition, the conversion option classified as equity
will remain in equity until the conversion option is exercised, in which
case, the balance recognised in equity will be transferred to share
premium. Where the conversion option remains unexercised at the
maturity date of the convertible notes, the balance recognised in
equity will be transferred to accumulated profits. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the
conversion option.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Convertible notes containing liability and equity components
(Continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible notes are
allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to the
allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the
equity component are charged directly to equity. Transaction costs
relating to the liability component are included in the carrying amount
of the liability portion and amortised over the lives of the convertible
notes using the effective interest method.

When the Group modifies the terms of convertible note, the equity
portion of the original convertible note is transferred to accumulated
profits in equity. When such modification results in the discounted
present value of the cash flows under the new terms including any
fees paid net of any fees received is at least 10 per cent different
from the discounted present values of the remaining cash flows of the
original financial liability, it is accounted for as an extinguishment of
the original financial liability and a recognition of a new financial liability
or equity instrument or compound instrument with the difference,
being the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and
the fair value of the financial liability, equity instrument, compound
instrument issued and/or hybrid instrument, recognised in profit or
loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated
as separate derivatives when they meet the definition of a derivative,
their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the
host contracts and the host contracts are not measured at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 A31 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Impairment

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
asset individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the state-sponsored pension scheme operated by the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) government or the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered services entitling them to the
contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits
the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as
wages and salaries) after deducting any amount already paid.

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments determined
at the grant date without taking into consideration all non-market
vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments
that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share
options reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected
to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting
conditions. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the
share options reserve. For share options that vest immediately at the
date of grant, the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 A31 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payment transactions (Continued)
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Share options granted to employees (Continued)

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised
in share options reserve will be transferred to share capital and
share premium, as appropriate. When the share options are forfeited
after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to accumulated profits.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgments, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors of the Company have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and
that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax
assets arising from investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the management has reviewed the Group’s
investment properties portfolios and concluded that while the
Group’s investment properties located in Hong Kong and Singapore
are depreciable, they are not held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time. Therefore, in
determining the Group’s deferred taxation arising from investment
properties located in Hong Kong and Singapore, the management
determined that the presumption that investment properties
measured using the fair value model are recovered through sale is not
rebutted.

3.

FTEEEE (F)
URHBERL N 2R S ()
UEnBEZRBERZNZXZ ()

T 2 E ()
EBRBETER - 2 AT BRI
POHERR 2 HR R 6 B 8 2 PR A B R A
8 MR - % BRRER BB R IR
e sk A B BRI ARATAERS 2 ATRARE
BB R O HERR 2 SRS S B
7 -

TEEHHERTREMT 2EE
HIR

R ESMt 2 A B & st B K
K ARRERALEERB EMKIR
MBERSEEERBEREEN @ {Fi
HE - AEt RRER o At RAERRR
ERBELRIAEMAREER - BRE
RAaeE RN EMHE -

st KA E KT - mEst
et ZIERTE R E %A - BT ERE
ETlET 2 BARIRERR - AME T B AN
RARRHAR - BIRAME 7T HAR R oK 2R AR
TR ©

RSB 2 EEHE

B RS hEr (AT UTRA
AAEENERAEE 2 @5t RRIBE
hREREPBRRTERL AR
BEAFBZTEHE -

REWFEILELRE
SEtERARFEEAFENREDE
FIEAMELCHBARGIRELEN AR
EmE  ERECRIARBEZKED
FEALRR  BARAAKRBELNEER
IR 2B MER TIE - BRI3E
IRIBE TS B IR R R HRER B WP
BEHBRID LB EBR A
B o Bt - REAEBLNEL S
A 2 3% B ) SE P S AR RO IR E R IR B
BIEEATEEBHERERA AT ER
N B ZREMEZ BRRDEHES -

WiEEBRAT | 20185

It

85



86

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 431 HILFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies (Continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties (Continued)

For the Group’s investment properties located in the PRC, the
management concluded that they are depreciable and are being held
under a business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, in determining the
Group’s deferred taxation arising from investment properties located
in the PRC, the management determined that the presumption
that investment properties measured using the fair value model are
recovered through sale is rebutted.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets within the next financial year.

Investment properties

Some of the Group’s assets are measured at fair value for financial
reporting purposes. The Group has a designated team to determine
the appropriate valuation techniques and key inputs for fair value
measurements.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment properties,
the Group uses market-observable data to the extent they are
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages
independent firms of qualified professional property valuers to
perform valuation of the Group’s investment properties. At the
end of the reporting period, the management works closely with
the independent firms of qualified professional property valuers to
establish and determine the appropriate valuation techniques and key
inputs for fair value measurements. Where there is a material change
in the fair value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be
reported to the directors of the Company. Information about the
valuation techniques and key inputs used in determining the fair value
of the Group’s investment properties is disclosed in note 14.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 431 HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment assessment of loans receivable

Management regularly reviews the recoverability of loans receivable,
which amounted to HK$265,297,000 (2017: HK$264,395,000) at 31
March 2018. Appropriate impairment loss for estimated irrecoverable
amount is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence
that the amount is not recoverable.

The amount of the impairment of loans receivable is estimated based
on credit reviews of the outstanding balances from loans receivable
and an evaluation of the amounts expected to be recovered with
reference to financial background, current creditworthiness, collateral
and past collection history of the borrowers. Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected or being revised downward due to
changes in facts and circumstances, a material impairment loss or
further impairment loss may arise. No impairment allowance on loans
receivable is made for both years.

Determination of net realisable value of properties held for
development for sale

Management regularly reviews the recoverability of the Group’s
properties held for development for sale, which are situated
in Hong Kong and amounted to HK$1,634,964,000 (2017:
HK$1,035,792,000) at 31 March 2018, with reference to current
market environment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may exceed its net
realisable value. Appropriate write-down for estimated irrecoverable
amount is recognised in profit or loss when the net realisable
value is below cost. The estimates of net realisable value are
determined based on best available information and with reference
to valuations made less the anticipated costs to completion. Actual
realised amount may differ from estimates, resulting in a decrease
or an increase in the net realisable value of the properties held for
development for sale and additional write-down or reversal of write-
down previously recognised may be required.
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EEIFFH ERRYFE 2 i E B FEE

EEETHEMAAEEZHEHEERRE
Mz A REIRE S - BRI EBRK 2018
F3A31H 245 51,634,964,000/87C
(20174 : 1,035,792,000/8 7T ) Jh & %
WEMISRER 2 M RIBERZRER
DENEEZREEREBBEAEE
FREE o B Al S IR FREN K AR R B
TR G AR Bl &5 2 @ E R(E o
EE A 2R FE B ERERES
WERRZEEELZEE  MRET
REER 2 TBRTAA - BRI B SR8 ]
BERR(EFT R - BB A B TR Rl ok i
IFEH EREMEZ AIE R FHELE
SIS Sk B B 2 ATRERR 2 RSN o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 431 HILFE

5

REVENUE

Revenue represents the aggregate of the amounts received or
receivable for goods sold, net of discounts, rental income from
property leasing and interest income from loan financing during the
year. An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows:

Sales of goods B
Rental income

He
Interest income from loan financing 2K B

HE
Hﬁz)\
HEEZHSWA

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Group’s chief executive officer, being
the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”), for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses
on types of goods delivered or services provided. This is also the
basis of organisation, whereby the management has chosen to
organise the Group around differences in products and services.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments under HKFRS 8
“Operating segments” are: (a) property investment, (b) property
development, (c) investment in securities and (d) loan financing.
No operating segments have been aggregated in arriving at the
reportable segments of the Group.

In the current year, the directors judge that the previous garment
sourcing and exporting segment is no longer an operating and
reportable segment in accordance with HKFRS 8. As a result of the
changes to reportable segments and segment presentation, the
segment revenue and result for the year ended 31 March 2017 and
segment assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2017 have been re-
presented to conform to the revised presentation. Segment loss
amounting to HK$662,000, including segment revenue amounting
to HK$195,000 and segment expenses amounting to HK$857,000,
are reclassified to “unallocated corporate income” and “unallocated
corporate expenses”, respectively, in the segment result for the year
ended 31 March 2017. Segment assets and liabilities under the
garment sourcing and exporting segment amounting to HK$667,000
and HK$265,000 as at 31 March 2017 are grouped into “others” and
“unallocated”, respectively, under the revised segment reporting.
Capital additions and depreciation under the garment sourcing
and exporting segment amounting to HK$15,000 and HK$66,000,
respectively, for the year ended 31 March 2017 are grouped into
“unallocated” in the measure of segment profit or loss or segment
assets.

EMINENCE ENTERPRISE LIMITED | 2018 Annual Report

ERE

EEBRFAMGANERZERHEEZ
Bl EREE RELENEZES
WA KRB EFRE 2 FBWALRER -
REEZ LEBELITIAT

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiET TET

- 195
33,012 29,384
16,593 6,939
49,605 36,518

HERDERDBRBFTEME - 2
BARBEZTEREREE ([TBLE
REE ) GRETRERZER - TiEH
RERXNSEIRBIRE 2B - LIS
A B - EIR R DU SR
SEERMRBZER -

RIBBRBIERELRESHE [EED
Bl AEEZREREROER : (a)
MERE - b)WEER - ()q ESIRER
() EFEE - REAHEE D BIAKRS
AEBZ 2RO

RER - RIEE BT SR E LR E 857
B 2 AIREB R OKKSEER
BAKERERNE BEREFRHVER
D2 ZHER B E2017F3 A 31
AIEFEDREEEEREEURR 2017
FIASIAZHEEERBRBEEYIN
ST 2 25| —5 - BE2017F 3 A
STALEFEZIBEEBEN 2D EEE
662,000/ 7T * ELHE 4% ¥ 195,000
%m&“*ﬁ%ﬁsﬁ%?oooﬁéx D> R E
PEE[OHEARMAI R [AHEA
A% - 5’\2017¢3H31E|2£«<1 HI
DHEE®R  KEREOKKSEZHA
&= N B 1E667,0007 7T 1 265,000/ 7T
EDRSATHM] R [ADE] - #HE
201743 A 31 B Z FEHRE M H O KK
DI BARRNE RITE D FIA 15,000 7
JT N 66,0008 T ERAI IR B | LAt E
DIEBEHDIEEE °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 431 HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

6. 2DEEH(E

Segment revenue and results DIREEIENEE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by BEER 2RO BOMAER 2 &5
operating and reportable segment: PESLINNE
For the year ended 31 March 2018 B 201843 31 HIFFE
Investment
Property Property in Loan
investment  development securities financing Consolidated
NERE MERR EERE B RE &a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TiER THx TR TiEn
(note)
(M)
Segment revenue NEERE
External IR 33,012 - - 16,593 49,605
Segment profit (loss) PERF (FE) 91,258 (4,880) (1,316) 9,208 94,270
Other gains and losses HEhmRER 1,552
Other expenses Ethp% (121)
Finance costs BEMK (31,373)
Unallocated corporate income ERFARMA 7,677
Unallocated corporate expenses NG| o5 (17,397)
Profit before taxation BB AR A 54,608
For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZE2017F3 431 HIFFZ
Investment
Property Property in Loan
investment  development securities financing  Consolidated
NERE NEEE EHRE BHmE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThL ThL TEL TATL TEL
(note) (Re-presented)
(BizE) (231)
Segment revenue PEERE
External IR 29,384 - - 6,939 36,323
Segment profit (loss) ARERF (BE) 10,769 (6,643) (14,708) 6,774 (3,805)
Other gains and losses iR ER (286)
Other expenses Ethp% (452)
Finance costs BEMK (19,213)
Unallocated corporate income ELRAAMRA 7,272
Unallocated corporate expenses NG |5 (13,108)
Loss before taxation BHAIEE (29,592)

Note: Rental income generated from properties held for development for sale was
included in property investment segment.

et BARELEERVEELEZHESKAD
BREEMERESEN -

S|\LEERAT | 20184F3 89
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 431 HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating and reportable segments
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3.
Segment profit (loss) represents the result of each segment without
allocation of other gains and losses, certain other expenses, finance
costs, and unallocated corporate income and expenses. This is the
measure reported to the Group’s CODM for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

Segment assets and liabilities
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by
operating and reportable segment:

Segment assets PEEE
Property investment MERE
Property development MEER
Investment in securities BHIEE
Loan financing BREE
Total segment assets DIEEERTE
Other financial assets Eth & E

Bank deposits with original maturity B8 = 18 A 2|1 2 1775 7k
of more than three months

Bank balances and cash RITHBRIRS
Others =)
Consolidated assets REBE
Segment liabilities PEEE
Property investment YIERE
Property development YIEER
Investment in securities BEKE

Loan financing EXmE

Total segment liabilities HiaBEEERE
Secured bank borrowings BHEMRTEE
Convertible notes AI AR E IR
Unallocated mohid
Consolidated liabilities HEBE

90 EMINENCE ENTERPRISE LIMITED | 2018 Annual Report

2EER (&)

DERE RN A (E)
REREBOVZ ETBRELEE 2
BETBERAR R AR S AT o 55 3R A
(BR)DEDREE  EPREDR
Efam R EE - ETEMHES  BE
BXA R B B R AR A R BASE » BALERT
BRAAKBZERRERREZ R 1F
REBRDEREKRMEZ2E -

PEEERERE
BIEERERDEINMALEECEER
BEWT :

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
(Re-presented)

(E51)

1,687,359 1,357,950
1,654,046 1,049,590
210,658 163,329
266,015 265,523
3,818,078 2,836,392
35,618 583,980

- 108,606

125,422 409,884
32,799 3,788
4,011,917 3,407,650
46,614 21,095
29,897 22,743

90 90

10,127 107
86,728 44,035
1,092,660 779,700
69,656 95,801
47,585 35,961
1,296,629 955,497




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 A31 HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and allocating

resources between segments:

6.

. all assets are allocated to operating and reportable segments
other than other financial assets, bank deposits with original
maturity of more than three months, bank balances and cash
and assets used jointly by operating and reportable segments.

. all liabilities are allocated to operating and reportable segments
other than secured bank borrowings, liability portion of
convertible notes and liabilities for which operating and
reportable segments are jointly liable.

Other segment information

For the year ended 31 March 2018
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or

segment assets:

Capital additions

Depreciation

Net loss on modification of terms
of convertible note

Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Gain on changes in fair value
of investment properties

Impairment loss on available-for-sale
investments

Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
investments

Loss on fair value change of
investments held for trading

nE
RUHABRRRRE
BR¥E
b6
RENFZ ATEEY N

AfHEREZRERR
HEMHHERE 2 WaE

HEEEREZ
AT TR

Property
investment
HK$'000
Thr

Property
development
NEER
HK$'000
TAR

7EER (&)

PEAERAM ()
RAMEARERA AR 2 ERH R
e :

. GREMEREE BE=EAZ
HZRITHFER - RITEHREES
MEER 2R BARERZE
B MEEEEDEERER

/DM -

. BRAEMRTEER  TRRER
BEHO REER 2R EHR
AiEz BB REREEDE

@A TG 22 ER K
ERERZHRDEE -

Hittp HEH

BHZE201843 431 HIFFZ
ERSETENHBESPBEEZS
B

Investment
in Loan
securities  financing Unallocated Total
R5RE  EIRE EAR ECk
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEx THRL TEx TEx

229,780
215

72,337

958
144

= = 122 230,860
= = 708 1,067

- - 1,023 1,023

= = = 72,337

3,406 = = 3,406

45 = = 45

2,195 = = 2,195
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 431 HILFE

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Other segment information (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2017
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or

segment assets:

Capital additions

Depreciation

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Loss on changes in fair value
of investment properties

Impairment loss on available-for-sale
investments

Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
investments

Loss on fair value change of
investments held for trading

Loss on fair value change of financial
assets designated as at FVTPL

BXRE
&
HEWE  FER
R BE
REMEZATE
295R
ARHEREZ
BEER
HEMHLERE
a6
FEREREL
AHERER
BATE AR SREE
ZAFHEEDER
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6. DEERE)
Hiten 3EH ()
EZ 2017 F3H31 HILFE
EREEFTEDRERINBEEZD
Ll
Investment
Property Property in Loan
investment ~ development  securities  financing  Unallocated Total
nERE NEER  EFRE  ERRE BNl 2%
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TET TEL TEL TEL TAT TAT
(Re-presented)
(E71)
15,162 - - - 3,175 18,337
129 - - - 315 444
- - - - 1 1
12,792 - - - - 12,792
- - 14,176 - - 14,176
- - 5,059 - - 5,059
- - 2,374 - - 2,374
- - 1,255 - - 1,255




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 A31 HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.

Geographical information
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong (place of domicile),
the PRC and Singapore.

The Group’s revenue from external customers based on location of
its customers for segments and information about its non-current
assets (excluding financial instruments) by geographical location of
the assets are detailed below:

7EER (&)

g & R}
AEBZEBURES(EEHZEH
K) ~ BB RENE o

REFRBIREP 2 EEBERARS
FRTEM D RR IR B B 2 FRTE M 58 5 2
FERBEE(TNEBEEMIA) &M
T

Revenue from

external customers

Non-current assets

REIREF 2E %L FRBEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$ 000
FExT FHT FBT F#T
Hong Kong (place of domicile) & (EE M2 ER) 33,109 21,831 1,188,941 914,037
PRC i 13,777 11,406 338,694 267,650
Singapore AN 2,719 3,086 162,456 142,298
The United States of America e - 195 - -
49,605 36,518 1,690,091 1,323,985

Information about major customers
No revenue from customers contributed over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group for any of the two years ended 31 March 2018.

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES /e

Net exchange gain (loss) bE 5 W (B518) F 58
Gain on fair value change AI AR I 2 A FEEE S
of convertible note

FERF2ER
HZE2018F3 A31 HILMAFEAEE
WREFBBLEETE10% A LTS ©

HibE K E1a
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
1,335 (286)
217 =
1,552 (286)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 431 HILF[E

8. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 8. EEREECHE
(a) Information regarding directors’ emoluments (@ EHESMEzER
Details of emoluments to the directors of the Company for the #HZE2018 F£3 A31 HIEFER
year ended 31 March 2018 are as follows: NRAEZMEHIINT :
Non-executive Independent
Executive directors directors non-executive directors
HirEs FHTES BuUFinEs
Kwong Koon Tse Wu
Jimmy Lui ~ HoYan Wing Chiu Lai Kan Lau Foo  Koon Yin
Cheung Tim  YukChu  Candy*  Ricky* LawKau* KaHon SinMing Tak Ching Welly Total
BRA  EI%  EURM @K@ BER  BRE  HE9  @EE  RRE a%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS'000 HKS'000  hk$'000
Thn Tix Tz FEx TEx TEx  TEr  TExr  THEr  TEn
Fees 20k - - - 7 7 140 140 140 140 574
Other emoluments Ao
-Selaries and other benefis  —EEREMEN 1,984 2,043 2% - - - - - - 405
- Contributions to retiement ~ —E B2l
benefits schemes 3 - 18 1 - - - - - - 19
Total directors’ emoluments ~ EZHELE 1,984 2,061 2 7 7 140 140 140 140 4,644
* Resigned on 18 April 2017 * 2017 4 A 18 HEHE

Details of emoluments to the directors of the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2017 are as follows:

Fees
Other emoluments
- Salaries and other benefits

- Equity-settled share-based

payment expense
(see note 27)

- Contributions to retirement

henefits schemes

Total directors’ emoluments

94

HZE2017F3 A31 HIEFEAR

AIEEMEESINT
Non-executive Independent
Executive directors directors non-gxecutive directors
BIEE FHiTES BUFaEs
Kwong Koon Tse Wu
Jimmy Lui ~ HoYan Wing Chiu Lai Kan Lau Foo  Koon Yin
Cheung Tim ~ Yuk Chu ~ Candy Ricky LawKau  KaHon  SinMing Tak Ching Welly Total
BRY EEE  BUR  #AE  BER  BEB  HEW  BEk  REE 2%
HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000  hk$'000  hk§000  hk§'000
Tér Thén TEr Thr TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr TEn
£k - - - 140 140 140 140 140 3% 735
Hit#e
~HERAEN 912 1998 480 - - - - - - 330
-EREE
i AER
(i) 216 216 216 - - - - - - 648
—RINEAEE
3% - 18 17 - - - - - - 3
EEdcct 1,128 2,232 3 140 140 140 140 140 3% 4,808

EMINENCE ENTERPRISE LIMITED | 2018 Annual Report
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 431 HILFE

8. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Information regarding directors’ emoluments (Continued)
Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim is also the Chief Executive of
the Company and his emoluments disclosed above include
those for services rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for
their services in connection with the management of the affairs
of the Company and the Group.

The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were for their services as directors of the Company and the
Company’s subsidiaries.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were for their services as directors of the Company.

Information regarding employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included two
(2017: three) directors whose emoluments were included
above for both years. The emoluments of the remaining three
(2017: two) highest paid individuals, not being directors, are as
follows:

Salaries and other benefits ~ F& K& E 457

Equity-settled share-based — LAREZS#EE Z % {0 A EME
payment expense TRAX

Contributions to retirement  EREFIFHEIHE R
benefits schemes

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

Nil to HK$1,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000

£%1,000,000 7T

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the directors and the other three (2017: two) highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office. In addition, during both
years, no director waived any emoluments.

2,000,001 /& 712 2,500,000 # 7T

8. EBKEEZME (&)

@)

(b)

ERESHE2EH (&)
BRREETRARR L EFEAT
RABH R E A FHE 2 e BRE
BRIERERITRARZ AR Z R
& o

PRETZHATEETHE BEE
BRAARARAEEEEER 2
AR7E

EERARBRARRZMER
BEEZIRTS -

PRERZBIIIFATESHS
RREERERRESEZ RS

EREEEMSER
TEBRARSME A TBIERA
(20175 : =R)EF - BERW
BEEzMESERBELEXA - &
B=R(2017F  WB) WIE
= RaMEe ATHIOT

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiET TR
3,744 2,795

- 216

66 39
3,810 3,050

&2 e F T HIEE

2018 2017
Number of Number of
individuals individuals

EEAH EE A
2 1
1 1
3 2

MNREFE - NEBEE S
ETEEREM=2(20175F:
ME) &xmez AL fERD
ATRA DA S B Ry 2 82 = 2K
KRG ZFME - tbsh - R E S
B RAEEHEEMHE -

SIEEBRAR | 2018 F%K
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 431 HILFE

9. FINANCE COSTS

Interest on bank borrowings
Effective interest expense on
convertible notes

Less: Amount capitalised in the
cost of qualifying assets

RITEEFS
AHRRREZ BRI B R

B RNAEREEZRA
ERbz e

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on the general
borrowing pool and were calculated by applying a capitalisation rate
of 2.52% (2017: 2.45%) per annum to expenditure on qualifying

assets.

10. TAXATION

The tax charge (credit) comprises:

Current tax:
Hong Kong
Other jurisdiction

Under(over)provision in prior years:

Hong Kong
Other jurisdiction

Deferred tax (note 25)

BB (FFA) BIE

BITHIA
&
HipmlA

BEFENR (BH)BYE
&
HipmlA

EFERLIE (M5 25)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated

assessable profit for both years.
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9. REMRAK

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FHT
25,313 10,110
17,128 11,050
42,441 21,160
(11,068) (1,947)
31,373 19,213
FANREBEEEANEERARE
BB AL FF|E2.52% (2017 : 2.45%)

ATEEREEREAECZ X -

10. %\

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FHT
1 —
112 241
113 241
529 310
(115) (112)
414 198
542 (3,404)
1,069 (2,965)

MBS &8 MG B DR G SHIE AR Bl

Mz 16.5%=1E »
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 431 HILFE

TAXATION (Continued)

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT
Law, the tax rate of the subsidiaries in the PRC is 25%.

No provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been made as the
assessable profit is wholly absorbed by tax losses brought forward for
both years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdiction is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdiction.

Tax charge (credit) for the year can be reconciled to the results per
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as follows:

Profit (loss) before taxation BR A% AE A1) (E518)

Tax charge (credit) at the applicable 1% % 16.5% (2017 £ :
rate of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) 16.5%) stE 2 BB X (Gt A)

Tax effect of income not taxable EAERBIMAZRIBR 2
for tax purposes

Tax effect of expenses not
deductible for tax purposes

Tax effect of tax losses not
recognised

Tax effect of utilisation of tax

TNENTRAZ 2 HBAVE
RERRBBEZHIAZE

BRBERERNBBHREZ

losses previously not recognised  FRIBFZ

Effect of different tax rates of EEREMBNEZ B ATZ
subsidiaries operating in BERER B
other jurisdictions

Underprovision in prior years BREFERBTRE

Others HAth

Tax charge (credit) for the year REEMERZ (GTA)

10.

BiE (&)

RIBPEARKTBE XML EMSHE
(TREMEBED REERBREZ
EHEE - R B ZHEBRRZRE R
25% °

R A R i A B  E P 1  AT B
EEE S IS - SRR R B A
BB -

Soify 7% 3] 2 BOR P EARR A A 2 B
TR -

AEEBIAMN (FTA) EBiraRam R
B E SR A 2 SR

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T FHET
54,608 (29,592)
9,010 (4,883)
(23,550) (11,082)
7,737 8,971
6,911 4,314
(1,077) (556)
1,740 144
414 198
(116) (71)
1,069 (2,965)
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 431 HILFE

11.

PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

Profit (loss) for the year has
been arrived at after charging
(crediting):

Directors’ emoluments (note 8(a))

Other staff’s equity-settled
share-based payment expense

Other staff costs, including
retirement benefits costs

Total staff costs (including
directors’ emoluments)

Auditor’s remuneration

Cost of inventories recognised
as an expense

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

(Gain) loss on disposal on
property, plant and equipment

and after crediting to other income:

Bank and other interest income

Dividend income from listed
investments

Gain on disposal of
available-for-sale investments

AR (B518) 20
GTA) -

E=H< (FIEE8()
HhB T 2 AR a2
Bt RERER 2
HBTER - 8HEENK
BB

BIRABE(BRES
<)

ZELED B =
ERRRAXZFERA

M BERRBITE

HEME  BERREBZ
(fezs) 1R

RREMUBAFTA

BRI A S HA
ETIRE 2 RBWA

HERHEERE NS
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11.

REERF (EFE)
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
4,644 4,808
- 1,435
12,421 9,021
17,065 15,264
2,089 1,916
- 171
1,067 444
) 1
2,367 6,421
4,537 4,047
45 5,059




12.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 431 HILFE

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the following data:

Profit (loss)

Profit (loss) for the purpose of
basic and diluted earnings
(loss) per share

Effect of dilutive potential
ordinary shares:

Interest on convertible notes
(net of income tax)

Earnings (loss) for the purpose of
diluted earnings (loss) per share

Number of shares

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares for the
purpose of basic and diluted
earnings (loss) per share

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary
shares:
Convertible notes

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares for the
purpose of diluted earnings
(loss) per share

wBA (EER)

MEREARREERN (ER)
i1 & 2 27 (&18)

AR BB AR
2R

Rk es waillst
(FRERFISHL)

REREERNTS 2
A (EE)

igny-4=

HERERREERN (EH)
& 2 I 715 @A A £ 2k B

YA S BARAR
2 K

QEes

MEREERN (BR)ME 2
g B 2B

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31
March 2018 does not assume the conversion of 2014 Convertible
Note (as defined in note 23(a)) and 2015 Convertible Note (as defined
in note 23(b)) as their assumed exercise would result in an increase in
earnings per share.

The computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended 31
March 2017 does not assume the exercise of the Company’s
outstanding share options as the exercise would result in a decrease
in loss per share.

Diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 March 2017 is the same
as basic loss per share as conversion of the Company’s outstanding
convertible notes would result in a decrease in loss per share.

12.

BREARBERF (BER)

ARFIRREE 2 BRERREERT
(B518) TORIB A N ERIGTHE

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
53,539 (26,627)
2,675 -
56,214 (26,627)
2018 2017

’000 '000

F ¥
2,315,018 1,368,624
304,997 -
2,620,015 1,368,624

STEEHZE 201843 A31 H I FE M
SERFNIE A BRERITE R IR 2014 F 0]
BXZ 4% (AnHtEE 23(a) BT E S ) &2 20154
AT HARE =45 (A0FT 5 23(0) Fr e 5 ) B
RATE S INEFRAF -

SHTEEHZE 201743 A31 H I FE S
SEBEBIDE A REITERR R MARITE
ZBRERTES RO ERESE -

HZE2017F3 A31 B ILFEEREEE
B EFREAEEAR E X IRAQE
REB 7 TR EER SR SIREE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 431 HILFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% - RERRE
Furniture,
fixtures and Motor
equipment vehicles Total
XA
HERRE RE “azE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FExT FExT
COST AR
At 1 April 2016 H20169F 4 A1H 641 1,348 1,989
Exchange adjustments [E 5 A= (5) (36) (41)
Additions NE 2,992 566 3,558
Disposals & (30) (319) (349)
At 31 March 2017 W201743 A31H 3,598 1,659 5,157
Exchange adjustments M 3, 5 B 13 112 125
Additions NE 475 958 1,433
Disposals & (76) (576) (652)
At 31 March 2018 M 201843 H31H 4,010 2,053 6,063
DEPRECIATION AND MERBE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 April 2016 M20165F 4 H1H 397 1,061 1,458
Exchange adjustments ME 5 A% (4) (24) (28)
Provided for the year NG R 324 120 444
Eliminated on disposals A A SH (30) (303) (3393)
At 31 March 2017 M201743 A31H 687 854 1,541
Exchange adjustments PE 5, R # 11 80 91
Provided for the year NG R 715 352 1,067
Eliminated on disposals A B S (18) (576) (694)
At 31 March 2018 M 20184F3H31H 1,395 710 2,105
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 March 2018 A2018% 3831 H 2,615 1,343 3,958
At 31 March 2017 MR2017€3HA31H 2,911 705 3,616

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the following useful lives:

L RIEYE - BERREHNELRE
RBUAT 2 A REHIFETE

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3to 10 years R~ B R 3E10%
Motor vehicles 5 years JRE 54
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

FAIR VALUE

At 1 April 2016

Exchange adjustments

Additions

(Decrease) increase in fair value
recognised in profit or loss

Reclassification

At 31 March 2017

Exchange adjustments

Additions

Increase in fair value recognised
in profit or loss

Reclassification

At 31 March 2018

AFE

R2016F4 H1H

FE 53 5%

RE

WEHER 2 APME
(R)

EL Y

®201743 H31H
5

5B

RiAZER 2 ATE
20

EH AR

201853 A31H

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 431 HILFE

14. REYHE

Investment

Completed properties

investment under
properties  development Total
ExXHRENE BEFREVE e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FTiExT T T
1,302,977 30,339 1,333,316
(13,625) (1,309) (14,934)
- 14,779 14,779
(15,219) 2,427 (12,792)
18,221 (18,221) -
1,292,354 28,015 1,320,369
33,265 1,235 34,500
203,356 26,071 229,427
70,407 1,930 72,337
57,251 (57,251) _
1,656,633 - 1,656,633

All of the Group’s leasehold interests in land held under operating
leases to earn rentals are measured using the fair value model and are
classified and accounted for as investment properties.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at the end of
the reporting periods were arrived at on the basis of valuation carried
out as at these dates by the following independent firms of qualified
professional property valuers not connected with the Group:

AEEMRAREERNETRRESZ
T AL S TDAR T EENXE RS
BREREMEIR -

REERHE PR ZIEMERFET
BATBAKERAMEZ BILAER
BXEYRHEMITAZS B PETHE
ZEEEE -

Location of

investment RENE
Name of valuer properties REDTER 2Pt
At 31 March 2018 and 2017 R20184 k201743 A31H
Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited Hong Kong BUEET BB AR AR BE
Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited PRC BUET BT EER AR AR HE
Edmund Tie & Company (SEA) Pte Ltd Singapore Edmund Tie & Company EmIE

(SEA) Pte Ltd

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group completed the
construction of certain investment properties under development
in the PRC and these properties were leased out immediately
for rental income. Hence the relevant properties amounting to
Renminbi (‘RMB”) 47,227,000 (equivalent to HK$57,251,000) (2017:
RMB16,000,000 (equivalent to HK$18,221,000)) were reclassified
from investment properties under development to completed
investment properties.

B E2018FE3ABIB L E R K&
ExfEEE TMNRPEZERPE
B E CRER 2 Y AR
HEWA - Bt EFHELBAA
R®( AR # |)47,227,0007T ( 18 &
57,251,000/ 7T ) (2017 4F « AR
16,000,0007C ( #8 % 7 18,221,000/%8
T0)) A ERERTPREMESE
SRR EME o

SIEEBRAR | 2018 F%K

T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 431 HILFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The gain arising on changes in fair value of investment properties
of HK$72,337,000 was recognised in profit or loss during the year
ended 31 March 2018 (2017: loss of HK$12,792,000).

The following table gives information about how the fair values of
the investment properties are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and key inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy
into which the fair value measurements are categorised (Levels
1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements is observable.

EMINENCE ENTERPRISE LIMITED | 2018 Annual Report

14.

rEM= (&)

HZE2018F3A31HILFEZ/EY
% 2~V {EE B) Yz 72,337,000 7% TT
(20174 : E51812,792,000%87T) B R B

STy
ZRAERR o

TRIITEMETRENENDFEL
HR (45 B R FT 6P 2 (6 E 7 A R
BUE) - LARIRIRE ABE 2 ATBAE
BRISHATESR(EIERMZA
T E -



14.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 431 HILFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

14. BEYFE(E)

Investment Valuation
properties held Fair value at Fairvalue  techniques Significant
by the Group 31 March hierarchy  and key inputs unobservable inputs Sensitivity
AEEREZ R3A31AH
REMFE ZATE AFEER HEFERIZERAEE EXTUBEHAZE HEE
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TET
Commercial units in 187,500 192,273 Level 3 Direct comparison Price per square foot, The higher the price
Hong Kong method - based on using market direct per square foot, the
ERE market observable comparables and higher the fair value
REBZEEEN transactions of similar taking into account
properties and adjusted to  of location and other FYHREBRS
reflect the locations and individual factors such AEERS

conditions of the subject
property

BRERE- EREEY
EPADE O 3 R
HEARBR B EME 2L
ERARR

as road frontage, size of
property, etc., which is
ranged from HK$89,400
to HK$289,352

(2017: HK$82,002 to
HK$302,298) per square
foot

BYHREE  KAMS
HEEABOREEME
W R E A AR A & iR
R MEXNNE - FF
A RNT 89,4008 TE
289,352 87T (2017 F
82,002 %570 2 302,298 7
L)

T

BB RAE]

| 20184 %R
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 431 HILFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

14. REWZE(E)

Investment Valuation
properties held Fair value at Fair value  techniques Significant
by the Group 31 March hierarchy  and key inputs unobservable inputs Sensitivity
AEEREZ R3A31A
REMF ZATHE ATEER [FEFERIEBAZE BATTEEBAZE HRE
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET TET
Commercial units in 832,400 593,600 Level 3 Residual value approach - Price per net saleable The higher the price
Hong Kong price per net saleable area  area per square foot, per net saleable area,
R using market direct the higher the fair
REBZEEER #EE— THEFHEEE  comparables and taking  value
B into account of location
and other individual BEARUHERRE

EMINENCE ENTERPRISE LIMITED | 2018 Annual Report

- estimated construction
and professional costs to
complete

R ERR BERE
AR

factors such as road
frontage, size of property,
gtc., which is HK$32,281
(2017: HK$27,581) per
square foot

BYFRALEFERE
B HEAMSERITLER
RREBNEAREME
RIRRMGREER - ME
N)E - BEHR 32,281
BT (2017 4 : 27,581 7%

L)

Estimated construction
and professional costs to
complete per square foot,
which is HK$4,681 (2017:
HK$4,201)

HAERRZEFELR
BENEERA HA
4,681 (2017 F :
4,201%7)

EEAR DTER

The higher the
estimated construction
and professional
costs to complete per
square foot, the lower
the fair value

WHERRZEFH
REAREEAAE
5 AFERE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 = 201843 A 31 HILF/E

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Investment
properties held
by the Group
AEEREZ
REMFE

Fair value
hierarchy

Fair value at
31 March
W3A31H
PANE]
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TR

NFESHR

Valuation
techniques
and key inputs

HESEREERAHE

14. BEYFE(E)

Significant
unobservable inputs

EARARZG AR

Sensitivity

HRE

Industrial units in
Hong Kong

WEEZ TEEA

Residential units in
Hong Kong

REBZEEEMN

83,700 78,160 Level 3

£3R

52,400 46,870 Level 3

£3R

Direct comparison
method - based on
market observable
transactions of similar
properties and adjusted to
reflect the locations and
conditions of the subject
property

BREERE- EREEY
EPA RS biad
HEARBR B EME 2L
B RN

Direct comparison
method - based on
market observable
transactions of similar
properties and adjusted to
reflect the locations and
conditions of the subject
property

BRERE- EREEY
EPARE O 3R
R R B BYE 2
B RN

Price per square foot,
using market direct
comparables and taking
into account of location
and other individual
factors such as size of
property etc., which is
ranged from HK$4,500
to HK$5,163 (2017:
HK$4,202 to HK$5,163)
per square foot

BYHREE  KAMS
BEETKBOREEME
M REERNRR D%
ANE - BEHERNT
4500 TTE 5,163/ 7T
(20175 : 4,202 BLE
5,163757T)

Price per square foot,
using market direct
comparables and

taking into account of
location, age and other
individual factors, which
is ranged from HK$7,326
to HK$18,417 (2017:
HK$6,708 to HK$18,417)
per square foot

BYFREE  HFAM
GEETLBOREE
g FHUREME
RS §FARNT
7,326 B2 18,417 87T
(20174 : 6,708/ L2
18,41737T)

Tt

The higher the price
per square foot, the
higher the fair value

STFREERS
ATEDE

The higher the price
per square foot, the
higher the fair value

BYHREBRS

RYFEDR
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 431 HILFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 14. REW*E (&)
Investment Valuation
properties held Fair value at Fair value  techniques Significant
by the Group 31 March hierarchy  and key inputs unobservable inputs Sensitivity
AEEREZ W3A31H
REM= ZAVE AFESR REFERFERAHE SATUTBEHARE HRE
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET TET
Residential units in 162,456 142,298 Level 3 Direct comparison Price per square foot, The higher the price
Singapore method - based on using market direct per square foot, the
ERE market observable comparables and taking higher the fair value
RIS 2 EEEN transactions of similar into account of location
properties and adjusted to  and other individual BYHREBRR -
reflect the locations and factors such as road AEERS
conditions of the subject  frontage, size of property,
property etc., which is ranged from
HK$18,391 to HK$19,425
EELBE- EREED (2017 HK$16,086 to
XU REERSAE  HK$17,055) per square
REURMAZEYE2M  foot
BERMA
BYARER  KAMS
BEEALBRAORERLE
MR E At (87 A = n s
BE - WEANE B
FARNF 18,391 %L
£19,425 70 (2017 4 :
16,086 BLE 17,065
T)
Industrial units in 338,177 239,153 Level 3 income capitalisation of Capitalisation rate, which ~ The higher the
the PRC net income with provisions  is 7.5% (2017: 8.5%) per  capitalisation rate, the
ERE for reversionary income annum lower the fair value
REz TEEW potential

EMINENCE ENTERPRISE LIMITED | 2018 Annual Report

WNFEEZ WABAR
LELREBRRAEN
At

BRE  BFERTS%
(20174 : 8.5%)

Monthly rental rate, taking
into account of market
comparables, which is
RMBB8.3 (2017: RMB8.5)
per square metre

MEEARE ZEMS
ALER  FFHREA
RE83T(20174F : AR
#8.57T)

BERLZRR  AF
ERE

The higher the monthly
rental rate, the higher
the fair value

mEEARERS -

ATERS



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 431 HILFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 14. BEYFE(E)
Investment Valuation
properties held Fair value at Fairvalue  techniques Significant
by the Group 31 March hierarchy  and key inputs unobservable inputs Sensitivity
AEEREZ R3A31A
REMFE ZAYE AFEER HEFERIZERAEE EXTUBEHAZE HEE
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TET
Investment properties - 28,015 Level 3 Income capitalisation of Capitalisation rate, which  The higher the
under development net income with provisions s nil (2017: 8.5%) per capitalisation rate, the
in the PRC EIR for reversionary income annum lower the fair value
potential
RHE 2 BRPIE BRLE  BERE BRERE AT
WAFEAEZRAER (20175 : 8.5%) EHRE
fLELEHBEBHBAEN
HREE Monthly rental rate, taking ~ The higher the monthly
into account of direct rental rate, the higher
market comparables, the fair value
which is nil (2017: RMB9)
per square metre mEEARERR
ATERS
mEEAME  ZRER
THA LR - §FHK
BE(017F AR
L)
1,656,633 1,320,369
In estimating the fair value of the investment properties, except for WMEEIREMEZ A TER @ BRIEED
those investment properties held for future development, the highest ERFERRERIN  MEZEBILE
and best use of the properties is their current use. AEFERNDEERZERAN -
15. LOANS RECEIVABLE 15. FEWERR
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Fixed-rate loans receivable ESERER 265,297 264,395
Analysed as: DR
Current portion mBE S 218,373 220,069
Non-current portion ERBE 46,924 44,326
265,297 264,395

MR201843 8318 @ AEE 2 ERER
FRRNT4%ZE8.32% (2017 4F : F4F
4% ZE8%) °

At 31 March 2018, the range of interest rate on the Group’s loans
receivable is 4% to 8.32% (2017: 4% to 8%) per annum.

ERHERTINRER - NEEFHEE

Before granting loans to outsiders, the Group assesses the potential

borrower’s credit quality and defines credit limits granted to each EERAZGEEEZRREER TEME
borrower. The credit limits attributed to the borrowers are reviewed HAZEERE - EEETHRIERA
by the management regularly. ZIEER -
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 431 HILFE

15.

16.

17.

LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

The Group has a policy for assessing the impairment on loans
receivable on an individual basis. The assessment also includes
evaluation of collectability of accounts and management’s judgment,
including the financial background, current creditworthiness,
collateral and past collection history of each borrower.

In determining the recoverability of loans receivable, the Group
considers any change in the credit quality of the loans receivable
from the date credit was initially granted up to the reporting date.
This includes assessing the credit history of the borrowers, such
as financial difficulties or default in payments, and current market
conditions.

The management closely monitors the credit quality of loans
receivable and considers loans receivable amounting to
HK$265,297,000 at 31 March 2018 (2017: HK$264,395,000) that
are neither past due nor impaired to be of good credit quality and no
impairment loss was identified. At 31 March 2018 and 2017, no loans
receivable are past due at the end of the reporting period for which
the Group has not provided for impairment loss.

No ageing analysis is disclosed, as in the opinion of the directors of
the Company, the ageing analysis does not give additional value in
view of the nature of business of loan financing.

The loans receivable are denominated in HKD and RMB, functional

currencies of the relevant group entities, at the end of the reporting
period.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

REBLETZ
BAFES - W E

Equity securities listed in
Hong Kong, at market value

PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE

The Group’s properties held for development for sale are situated in
Hong Kong.

At 31 March 2018, the amount of properties held for development for
sale which are expected to be completed within twelve months after
the end of the reporting period is HK$774,478,000, and the remaining
amount which are expected to be completed more than twelve
months after the end of the reporting period is HK$860,486,000
(2017: HK$1,035,792,000).

At 31 March 2018 and 2017, the Group performed assessment of net
realisable value on its properties held for development for sale with
reference to valuations made by independent qualified professional
property valuers not connected with the Group. The valuations were
arriving at by using the residual method. At 31 March 2018 and 2017,
no further write-down is considered necessary.
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15.

16.

PR E R (&)

AR B4 B 5l B 2 BOR AT P A S R
A o %G TR E IR R P A E R
RZAHERRBREEERAZHBES
= BREE  BRRBEERBERZ
EEEZHIE

REE RS2 REAR - AEE
ZERKERERVNREEEEERS
HHZEEERZ M0 - EhaiE
FHEERAZERES - B BR K
BREF - REFHISIRN o

ERERRELBKRBERZEEER
RAMN201843 A 31 )R ABH MR E
2 e B 3R 265,297 00078 7T (2017 4F
264,395,00087L) AERFEEEEK
WHERERE © 20184 K% 201743 A
318 REBMNIRE PRI EWER
BH - MERHRR(EEE

TREREDT  BARREERA -
HREFRMEXBHENS @ RESITL
REBIMEE -

RREFRHBERRAEEEEER
WEEEEETMARKIINE

AHHERE

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiET THET

207,213 158,541

17.

FEHEZRRYE

AEBZHEHEBRRDEDUNE

M2018F3A31H  # 1 H & %
BYEXBEHRREH KRBT =EA
R 5E K 2 & %8 A& 774,478,000 T -
FIEBRREIREBA12EA TR
2 #4 %8 /5860,486,000 7T (2017 4F :
1,035,792,000% 7T) °

R2018F 201743 A31H ' AEEE
MEFEH EREMEETAI R FERT
B2 ERAEBMRIEREZBIYAE
WEEMEGEMGE - ZSHEETD
RIESERSESE - R20185F 201743
A31H  RBEREELHE—PRIE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 A31 HILFE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables B 5 W RIE
Prepayments (note (a)) TERRIE (FI3E (@)
Interest receivable FEUCRI S,
Refundable stamp duty (note (b))  FEEENTERS (HI5E (b))

Other receivables o th jE W 5K IE
Notes:
(a) At 31 March 2018, the amount includes consultant fee of a property

redevelopment project, amounting to HK$13,466,000 (2017: HK$2,000),
which will be reclassified to “properties held for development for sale” when
the property redevelopment project commences.

(b) In accordance with the provisions of the Hong Kong Stamp Duty Ordinance,
the Group will apply for refund of the stamp duty paid when the property
redevelopment project commences. At 31 March 2018, the amount is
included in the Group’s current assets in the consolidated statement of
financial position as it is expected that the refund of stamp duty will be
received within twelve months.

(c) Information about the property redevelopment project referred to in (a) and
(b) above is set out in the Company’s circular of the Company dated 12
September 2017 and announcement dated 29 September 2017.

The Group did not grant any credit period to its tenants in property
investment segment. The aged analysis of trade receivables, based
on the invoice date, at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

0-60 days 0-60 H
61-90 days 61-90 H

The management closely monitors the credit quality of trade and
other receivables and considers trade and other receivables that are
neither past due nor impaired to be of good credit quality.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balances are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of HK$258,000 (2017: HK$173,000)
which are past due at the reporting date for which the Group has not
provided for allowance. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

E 2 R HMERFUR

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
1,789 1,950
16,008 5177
814 1,398
28,463 28,463
2,802 3,183
49,876 40,171

P

@ M201843A31H ' %L BERE—EM
XERIEE 2K #HE /13,466,000 T
(20174 : 2,000%87T) - BMEEZEER
IR Z SIS EN S AR [HEHER
=2ESID

(b) RIBBEBEVEBOABIZ G - EMESE
RIEB K ARBEHRHFEENEX
fTENTER: - M2018F 3 A31H » &
BREEAKBERAMBERARAZRE
AENRERBEEBRABR + @A
Wk o

(© Bt (a) & (b)BATILZ ¥ EREE
EHNAARBEA2017F9A12HZ
BHHRARBAEA2017F9 R 2902
Affi o

AEBEWRBHETROEREN A ZH
FRRERH - REBEEZEH - EHEUK
BRIERRZREDITLAT

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
1,757 1,946
32 4
1,789 1,950

EEEETERE S MEAMEKRRIEAELZ
EEARERARRIEBHNREZES
REMEBRFERERIFEEES -

RikE A AE@B2E S RKEELE
f#he - BREE A $£258,00078 It (2017
 : 173,000 7T) AEREELHRHE
BE - AEEWRERZSEHBREET
R[4 o
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 431 HILF[E

18.

19.

20.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables which are past
due but not impaired:

EiAH1E60H
EiRH61E90H

Overdue by 1 to 60 days
Overdue by 61 to 90 days

The Group’s trade and other receivables that are denominated in
currency other than the functional currencies of the relevant group
entities are set out below:

United States dollars v
(“US$” or “USD”)

INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING

The investments held for trading comprise equity securities listed in
Hong Kong and are stated at fair value which are based on the quoted
market bid prices on the Stock Exchange.

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

At 31 March 2018 and 2017, other financial assets included principal
protected deposits denominated in RMB issued by banks in the PRC.
The principal protected deposits contain embedded derivative, the
interest rate of which is determined with reference to the exchange
rate of USD against HKD and ranges from 1.40% to 4.05% (2017:
1.40% to 3.48%) per annum with original maturity of three months.
The principal protected deposits are designated as at FVTPL at initial
recognition.
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18. B FRkHtEWIE (&)
BBEMBERREZE S RUGIEZ BRER
DHTEAR -

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FiET THT

226 169

32 4

258 173
AEBUEREETRINEEEAINZ
EEIEZE 5 R H AR GRS 10

T~

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FHT

- 223

19. BIEEERE
BEEEREABIEREB Lz &S
BRBMRTZTS EFTRZHEBZ AT
B2 -

20. HhemERE

R2018F K 201743 A31H » Hib & &L
BEAENRBBRAOIETETUAARES
BZRATR - RAGTARESRSITE
BH BRZEBENBEETLLBTLZ
HIE R FEFERNTF1.40% £ 4.05%
(20174 : 1.40% £ 3.48%) R =1A B %
H o RAGFERNIAERBENEBRA
FEFF A °
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 A31 HILFE

BANK DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL MATURITY OF MORE
THAN THREE MONTHS/BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank deposits with original maturity of more than three months
At 31 March 2017, the Group placed time deposits amounting to
US$13,351,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$103,606,000) with
a financial institution in Hong Kong with original maturity of more
than three months. They carried interest at a fixed rate of 1.28% per
annum.

Bank balances and cash

The bank balances and cash held by the Group comprise short-term
bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, at
prevailing market interest rates ranging from 0.001% to 1.28% (2017:
0.001% to 1.5%) per annum.

The Group’s bank balances and cash that are denominated in

currency other than the functional currencies of the relevant group
entities are set out below:

usb =

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables aged within E S EMNRIEE0BENAN
30 days (note (a)) (P 5E (a))

Retention payable (note (b)) EHRIES (KIFE (b))

Rental deposits received and BEEES REKES

rental received in advance
Guarantee money received (note (c)) & UeiRE 4 8 (Ff % ()

Accruals TEIRRE R

Convertible note interest payable A ¥ A% Z2 1% A1 &

Other taxes payable H ot E B TE

Other payables H At AT 5RIE

Notes:

(@) The aged analysis of trade payables is determined based on the invoice date,

at the end of the reporting period. The average credit period on purchases of
goods is 30 days.

(b) Retention payable is withheld from subcontractors for construction works and
will be released within twelve months upon completion of their works.

(c) The amount at 31 March 2018 represents money received from a borrower of
the loan financing business as security for loan granted.

21. BB=EBIHPZRITERRIT
HEEARE S
BB =1{E A ZH 2 RITER
R201743A31H » NEBEBE—FR
BB B S B RS /13,351,000 7T
(#8277 47103,606,000/8 7T) Z BB =
BAZB EHTER - HEEFEXA
1.28% °
IRITHEBRES
AEBHE ZRITEBR IS B IEIRIR
TS ZENT0.001% & 1.28% (2017
F:0.001%E1.5%) 2 =B A2 A
B2 SRR TR o
AEBLEBAEEERNGEEEUINZ
EEBIEZRITRRSEHETWT ¢
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiET FHIT
63 60,229
22, B RHEMENFIE
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
3,770 7,213
16,075 6,233
15,508 11,712
10,000 =
37,721 13,598
= 3,105
4,846 5,802
1,798 1,049
89,718 48,712

B

(@) B 5 RN SRR S R 2 ARk D47 T3
REXZAHETE - BEZ FHBRED
&308 -

(b) BNRESTIRBETIZARN FHAERD
E#R IR+ —EARSA -

(© M20184 3 A31 Bz & BREKREERK

BAXB . fERARBREERER
ERzo e -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 431 HILFE

23. CONVERTIBLE NOTES CONTAINING LIABILITY AND
EQUITY COMPONENTS

(a)

On 27 March 2014, the Company issued 2% convertible
note due 2019 at an aggregate principal amount of
HK$100,000,000 to Easyknit International (the “2014
Convertible Note”).

The 2014 Convertible Note is denominated in HKD and entitles
the holder to convert it into ordinary shares of the Company
at any time between the date of issue of the 2014 Convertible
Note on 27 March 2014 and its settlement date on 27 March
2019 at a conversion price of HK$0.68 per conversion share
(subject to anti-dilutive adjustments). On 3 April 2014 and
29 August 2014, the conversion rights attaching to the 2014
Convertible Note were partially exercised for HK$20,000,000
and HK$60,000,000, respectively, and a total of 122,869,707
conversion shares were issued upon conversion. Pursuant to
the adjustment provisions in the terms and conditions of the
2014 Convertible Note, adjustments have since been made to
the conversion price of the 2014 Convertible Note in a number
of instances. The last adjusted conversion price is HK$22.72
per conversion share with effect from 9 October 2015. On
31 March 2018, the 2014 Convertible Note with principal
amount of HK$20,000,000 remained outstanding. Assuming
full conversion of the 2014 convertible note at an adjusted
conversion price of HK$22.72 at 31 March 2018, the 2014
Convertible Note will be convertible into 880,281 new ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company.

Conversion shares will be allotted and issued upon exercise
of the conversion rights. If the 2014 Convertible Note is not
converted during the conversion period up to the maturity date,
it will be redeemed on the maturity date at par with outstanding
accrued interest. Interest of 2% per annum will be paid semi-
annually in arrears up until the settlement date.

The 2014 Convertible Note contains two components, liability
and equity elements. The equity component is presented in
equity heading “convertible note equity reserve”. The effective
interest rate of the liability component of the 2014 Convertible
Note is 16.98% per annum at the date of initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &= 201843 A 31 HILF/E

23. CONVERTIBLE NOTES CONTAINING LIABILITY AND
EQUITY COMPONENTS (Continued)

(o)

On 12 June 2015, the Company issued 2% convertible note
due 2017 at an aggregate principal amount of HK$86,000,000
to Madian Star Limited (“Madian”), an independent third party
(the “2015 Convertible Note”).

The 2015 Convertible Note is denominated in HKD and entitles
the holder to convert it into ordinary shares of the Company
at any time between the date of issue of the 2015 Convertible
Note on 12 June 2015 and its settlement date on 12 June 2017
at a conversion price of HK$0.85 per conversion share (subject
to anti-dilutive adjustments). The holder may redeem the 2015
Convertible Note, at any time three months after the grant
date, at 100% of the principal amount outstanding together
with all interest accrued thereon up to and including the date of
redemption. The Company may redeem the 2015 Convertible
Note at its own discretion on any business day prior to the
maturity date at 100% of the principal amount outstanding
together with all interest accrued thereon up to and including
the date of redemption. Pursuant to the adjustment provisions
in the terms and conditions of the 2015 Convertible Note,
adjustments have been made to the conversion price of the
2015 Convertible Note from HK$0.85 per share to HK$1.81 per
share with effect from 9 October 2015 as a result of a capital
reorganisation and the completion of the issue of rights share,
and further to HK$0.33 per share with effect from 7 January
2016 as a result of the entering into a deed of amendment
to revise the conversion price which was approved by the
shareholders at a special general meeting of the Company held
on 7 January 2016.

On 1 March 2017, the Company entered into the second
deed of amendment with Madian to further revise the terms
of the 2015 Convertible Note. According to the second deed
of amendment, (i) the exercise period of the 2015 Convertible
Note is revised from 2 years to 7 years (i.e. the settlement date
is extended to 12 June 2022); (ii) the conversion price is revised
from HK$0.33 per conversion share to HK$0.16 per conversion
share; and (jii) the annual interest rate is revised from 2% to 3%
and the interest will be payable semi-annually in arrears instead
of in one lump sum on the settlement date. The second deed
of amendment was approved by the shareholders at a special
general meeting of the Company held on 26 April 2017. The
modification of the terms was determined to be substantial
and hence resulted in the extinguishment of the original
liability component of the 2015 Convertible Note and the
recognition of new liability and equity components (the “New
2015 Convertible Note”), resulting in a net loss on modification
of terms of convertible note amounting to HK$1,023,000
recognised in profit or loss.

23. THRBREBEESEEREZRSD

(%)

)

R2015FE6 A128 » A 2 & N
N4 48 %8 86,000,000 T 1T
2017 BBz 2% Al I EE T
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— & E = A ([2015 F AT AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 431 HILFE

23. CONVERTIBLE NOTES CONTAINING LIABILITY AND
EQUITY COMPONENTS (Continued)

(b)  (Continued)

On 31 March 2018, the New 2015 Convertible Note with
principal amount of HK$86,000,000 remained outstanding.
Assuming full conversion of the New 2015 Convertible Note
at a revised conversion price of HK$0.16 at 31 March 2018,
the New 2015 Convertible Note will be convertible into
537,500,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the
share capital of the Company.

Conversion shares will be allotted and issued upon exercise
of the conversion rights. If the New 2015 Convertible Note
is not converted during the revised conversion period up to
the revised maturity date, it will be redeemed on the revised
maturity date at par with outstanding accrued interest. Interest
of 3% per annum as revised under the second deed of
amendment will be paid semi-annually in arrears up until the
revised settlement date.

Each of the 2015 Convertible Note and New 2015 Convertible
Note contains liability component, equity component, and
holder and issuer early redemption options. As the early
redemption options are closely related to the host contract,
they are not treated as separate derivatives. The equity
component is presented in equity heading “convertible note
equity reserve”. The effective interest rate of the liability
component of the New 2015 Convertible Note is 23.66% per
annum at the date of initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 A31 HILFE

23. CONVERTIBLE NOTES CONTAINING LIABILITY AND
EQUITY COMPONENTS (Continued)

()

On 27 July 2016, the Company issued 2% convertible note due
2019 at an aggregate principal amount of HK$50,000,000 to
Able Merchant Limited, an independent third party (the “2016
Convertible Note”).

The 2016 Convertible Note is denominated in HKD and entitles
the holder to convert it into ordinary shares of the Company
at any time between the date of issue of the 2016 Convertible
Note on 27 July 2016 and its settlement date on 27 July
2019 at a conversion price of HK$0.225 per conversion share
(subject to anti-dilutive adjustments). The holder may redeem
the 2016 Convertible Note, at any time three months after
the grant date, at 100% of the principal amount outstanding
together with all interest accrued thereon up to and including
the date of redemption. The Company may redeem the 2016
Convertible Note on any business day prior to the maturity
date at 100% of the principal amount outstanding together
with all interest accrued thereon up to and including the date of
redemption. On 11 August 2016, 19 August 2016, 26 August
2016 and 7 November 2016, the conversion rights attaching to
the 2016 Convertible Note were exercised for HK$4,500,000,
HK$6,750,000, HK$4,500,000 and HK$34,250,000,
respectively, and a total of 222,222,222 conversion shares
were issued upon conversion. The conversion rights attached
to the 2016 Convertible Note were fully exercised.

Conversion shares were allotted and issued upon exercise
of the conversion rights. Interest of 2% per annum were paid
semi-annually in arrears up until the conversion rights attached
to the 2016 Convertible Note were fully exercised.

The 2016 Convertible Note contains liability component, equity
component, and holder and issuer early redemption options.
As the early redemption options are closely related to the host
contract, they are not treated as separate derivatives. The
equity component is presented in equity heading “convertible
note equity reserve”. The effective interest rate of the liability
component of the 2016 Convertible Note is 23.73% per annum
at the date of initial recognition.

23. EREEESEBEREZKD

(%)

(©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 431 HILFE

23. CONVERTIBLE NOTES CONTAINING LIABILITY AND
EQUITY COMPONENTS (Continued)

(d)  On 11 May 2017, the Company issued 3% convertible note due
2022 at an aggregate principal amount of HK$16,000,000 to
Easyknit International (the “First 2017 Convertible Note”).

The First 2017 Convertible Note is denominated in HKD and
entitles the holder to convert it into ordinary shares of the
Company at any time between the date of issue of the First
2017 Convertible Note on 11 May 2017 and its settlement
date on 11 May 2022 at a conversion price of HK$0.16 per
conversion share (subject to anti-dilutive adjustments). The
holder may redeem the First 2017 Convertible Note, at any
time three months after the grant date, at 100% of the principal
amount outstanding together with all interest accrued thereon
up to and including the date of redemption. The Company
may redeem the First 2017 Convertible Note on any business
day prior to the maturity date at 100% of the principal amount
outstanding together with all interest accrued thereon up
to and including the date of redemption. On 31 March
2018, the First 2017 Convertible Note with principal amount
of HK$16,000,000 remained outstanding. Assuming full
conversion of the First 2017 Convertible Note at a conversion
price of HK$0.16 at 31 March 2018, the First 2017 Convertible
Note will be convertible into 100,000,000 new ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company.

Conversion shares will be allotted and issued upon exercise of
the conversion rights. If the First 2017 Convertible Note is not
converted during the conversion period up to the maturity date,
it will be redeemed on the maturity date at par with outstanding
accrued interest. Interest of 3% per annum will be paid semi-
annually in arrears up until the settlement date.

The First 2017 Convertible Note contains liability component,
equity component, and holder and issuer early redemption
options. As the early redemption options are closely related to
the host contract, they are not treated as separate derivatives.
The equity component is presented in equity heading
“convertible note equity reserve”. The effective interest rate of
the liability component of the First 2017 Convertible Note is
24.57% per annum at the date of initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 &= 201843 A 31 HILF/E

23. CONVERTIBLE NOTES CONTAINING LIABILITY AND
EQUITY COMPONENTS (Continued)

(e)

On 26 September 2017, the Company issued 3% convertible
note due 2020 at an aggregate principal amount of
HK$28,200,000 to Easyknit International (the “Second 2017
Convertible Note”).

The Second 2017 Convertible Note is denominated in HKD
and entitles the holder to convert it into ordinary shares of
the Company at any time between the date of issue of the
Second 2017 Convertible Note on 26 September 2017 and
its settlement date on 26 September 2020 at a conversion
price of HK$0.06 per conversion share (subject to anti-dilutive
adjustments). The holder may redeem the Second 2017
Convertible Note, at any time three months after the grant
date, at 100% of the principal amount outstanding together
with all interest accrued thereon up to and including the date
of redemption. The Company may redeem the Second 2017
Convertible Note on any business day prior to the maturity
date at 100% of the principal amount outstanding together
with all interest accrued thereon up to and including the date
of redemption. On 18 October 2017, the conversion rights
attached to the Second 2017 Convertible Note were partially
exercised for HK$16,920,000, and a total of 282,000,000
conversion shares were issued upon conversion. On 31
March 2018, the Second 2017 Convertible Note with principal
amount of HK$11,280,000 remained outstanding. Assuming
full conversion of the Second 2017 Convertible Note at a
conversion price of HK$0.06 at 31 March 2018, the Second
2017 Convertible Note will be convertible into 188,000,000
new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the
Company.

Conversion shares will be allotted and issued upon exercise of
the conversion rights. If the Second 2017 Convertible Note is
not converted during the conversion period up to the maturity
date, it will be redeemed on the maturity date at par with
outstanding accrued interest. Interest of 3% per annum will be
paid semi-annually in arrears up until the settlement date.

The Second 2017 Convertible Note contains liability
component, equity component, and holder and issuer early
redemption options. As the early redemption options are
closely related to the host contract, they are not treated as
separate derivatives. The equity component is presented in
equity heading “convertible note equity reserve”. The effective
interest rate of the liability component of the Second 2017
Convertible Note is 44.06% per annum at the date of initial
recognition.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 431 HILFE

23.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES CONTAINING LIABILITY AND
EQUITY COMPONENTS (Continued)

The movement of the liability component of the above convertible

notes is set out below:

At beginning of the year

Issue of the 2016 Convertible Note
Issue of the First 2017 Convertible

Note

Issue of the Second 2017
Convertible Note

Derecognition of original liability
component upon modification
of terms of the 2015
Convertible Note

Recognition of new liability
component upon modification
of terms of the 2015
Convertible Note

Conversion

Accretion of interest

Interest paid

Interest payable

At end of the year
Analysed as:

Amount due within one year
shown under current liabilities

Amount due after one year shown

under non-current liabilities

REH
172016 F Rl AR IR
BITHE— 17 2017 Er[ R EE

BITHE 52017 Er[ BRI

A E 2K 2015 G A AR 2=
BARF R BUS R IR A
ZBERHB

R E 24 2015 & Al AR Z i
IERES RN A ER D

S
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ERAE

e A2

RER
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BTRRRBEEZ —FA
Ellp et

BTRNERBBEL —FR
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 A31 HILFE

Carrying amount repayable

24. SECURED BANK BORROWINGS

BB TR Z BREEN T

as follows (based on the (IRIEE R HEAN
scheduled repayment dates ZEZBH) :
set out in the loan agreements):
— within one year ——FQA
— within a period of more than —ZR—FE
one year but not exceeding TR HAE R
two years
— within a period of more than —ZRMFER
two years but not exceeding @I FHER
five years
— within a period of more than — iR A FHEA
five years

Less: Amount due within one year & : RREBEE 2
shown under current —F NI
liabilities

Amount due after one year shown RIFRFBEFEETZ
under non-current liabilities —FREH &5

At 31 March 2018, the Group’s secured bank borrowings carry
interest ranging from Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”)
plus 1.5% to 2.35% (2017: HIBOR plus 1.5% to 2.35%) per annum,
with effective interest ranging from 2.03% to 2.95% (2017: 1.96% to
2.81%) per annum. The loans are secured by investment properties
of the Group with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$986,740,000
(2017: HK$785,873,000) and properties held for development
for sale of the Group with carrying amount of HK$1,634,964,000
(2017: HK$597,868,000). The proceeds were mainly used to finance
acquisition of investment properties and development of properties.

All bank borrowings are denominated in HKD, functional currency of
the relevant group entities, at the end of the reporting period.

24,

BEFRITEE
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
420,410 420,400
593,494 5,623
17,408 286,888
61,348 66,889
1,092,660 779,700
(420,410) (420,400)
672,250 359,300

MR2018F3A31H A&EE 2 F I
HIRITEBEEEN TEHBRITRER
BUEBRTEAERE]D 1.5%=E
2.35% (2017 £ : %;‘%%Eﬁ EEEiis
N1.5%%£2.35%) © BB FF XN
?2.03%12 95% (2017 4F : 1.96% =
2.81%) - ERUAREE 2 REYERE
(ER=E0] 986 740,000 7T (2017 £ -

785,873,000 0) M AN S B H e &5
RYNEEBRE(E 1,634,964,00078 7T (2017
% : 597,868,000 7T ) tEAIEIH - FIE

zﬂ%fﬂ&z%&ﬁ%%&%%ﬁﬁezmﬂ

RBEBRZAAIRITIEESAEES
D EHHETTIIE
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25.

DEFERRED TAXATION

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised and
movements thereon during the current and prior years:

At 1 April 2016

Recognition upon issue of
convertible note

Release upon conversion of
convertible note

Credit to profit or loss for the year

Currency realignment

At 31 March 2017

Recognition upon issue of
convertible notes

Released upon modification
of terms of convertible note

Recognition upon modification
of terms of convertible note

Release upon conversion of
convertible note

(Charge) credit to profit or loss
for the year

Currency realignment

At 31 March 2018

201654 A1 H
BATAARRE

R A FERR
HARAAR R R

5 R
WAFERIERFA
BEE 54 2

201743 A31H
TR R
IRBFRERR
ER I &S
RN B R TR
BRAARER
R R By R
HARTTH AR
TRB AR RR
WNAFEERT
(F0BR) FEA

PEE 3, 5

M 201843 A31H

25. EIEMIE
REABEFEERRAREZE BT
BIEEEAREZENT

Revaluation Convertible
of properties notes Total
MEB AR EE R
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FET
(22,935) (8,297) (26,232)
- (4,025) (4,025)
- 4,025 4,025
1,966 1,438 3,404
974 - 974
(19,995) (1,859) (21,854)
- (4,619) (4,619)
_ 465 465
- (8,414) (8,414)
- 1,838 1,838
(2,491) 1,949 (542)
(1,939) - (1,939)
(24,425) (10,640) (35,065)

At 31 March 2018, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$160,207,000 (2017: HK$127,626,000) available for offset
against future profits. The Hong Kong tax losses of HK$159,534,000
(2017: HK$121,792,000) can be carried forward indefinitely and the
remaining tax losses will expire from 2019 to 2022 (2017: 2018 to
2021). No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
unrecognised tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit

streams.
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MR2018F3A31H  AEBBEXREH
% T8 &5 $8160,207,00078 7T (2017 £F :
127,626,000/ 7T ) JA FB 1E 3K §5 K 2 &
A o F B T IE E5 18 159,534,000 7 JT
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26. SHARE CAPITAL

Notes

By

Authorised: JERE ¢

At 1 April 2016, 31 March 2017

201654 H1H »
20173 H31 H R
20183 H31H

and 31 March 2018

Issued and fully paid: BEITRARE :

At 1 April 2016 M20165F4 A1 H
Conversion of convertible note R AR g (a)
Conversion of convertible note RIRT R EE (b)
Conversion of convertible note AR =R (©)
Issue of new shares AR LT (d)
Conversion of convertible note HIRnT R =R (e)
Issue of new shares RN T 0
At 31 March 2017 R2017% 3 A31H

Issue of new shares AR DT (9)
Conversion of convertible note HrT R R g (h)

At 31 March 2018

Issue of new shares

AR BT (0
K2018 3 A31 R

On 11 August 2016, the 2016 Convertible Note with a
principal amount of HK$4,500,000 were converted into shares
of HK$0.01 each in the Company at the conversion price
of HK$0.225 per share. Accordingly, a total of 20,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued by
conversion of the convertible note.

On 19 August 2016, the 2016 Convertible Note with a
principal amount of HK$6,750,000 were converted into shares
of HK$0.01 each in the Company at the conversion price
of HK$0.225 per share. Accordingly, a total of 30,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued by
conversion of the convertible note.

On 26 August 2016, the 2016 Convertible Note with a
principal amount of HK$4,500,000 were converted into shares
of HK$0.01 each in the Company at the conversion price
of HK$0.225 per share. Accordingly, a total of 20,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued by
conversion of the convertible note.

26. A
Nominal
value Number
per share of shares Amount
BREE BEE g
HK$ HK$’000
BIT FHET
0.01 20,000,000,000 200,000
0.01 1,116,609,837 11,166
0.01 20,000,000 200
0.01 30,000,000 300
0.01 20,000,000 200
0.01 223,000,000 2,230
0.01 152,222,222 1,522
0.01 350,000,000 3,500
0.01 1,911,832,059 19,118
0.01 325,000,000 3,250
0.01 282,000,000 2,820
0.01 447,000,000 4,470
0.01 2,965,832,059 29,658

@ HR2016F8HA11H A&t &
4,500,000 7T 2 2016 4F AT 2 f%
ZERNFR0.225B T Z HIBE
HRAR A B 0.01 B T2k
e Bt - BBEIRATMBRER
& A& K 317 20,000,000 B &F
§%0.01 87T 2 TR -

(b) M2016F8AH19H ~N& &%
6,750,000 T 2 2016 4F A #2 f%
ZEAENR0.2258 T2 KR (E
HABARAGEFR0.01 BT 2R
5o Bt - BB REIR AR ER
& A& & 317 30,000,000 % &
f%0.01 87Tz Rk -

(€ M2016F8H26H * N& & %

4,500,000 JT 2 2016 4F 7] #2 f%
ZEAER0.2258 T2 KB
R ARQEE0.01 B T2
B At BBEBAIRKREE
& A& K %17 20,000,000 i &
§%0.01 87 2 ERARLD -
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26. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(d)

On 22 September 2016, the Company allotted 223,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each by placing to not less than six
placees at a placing price of HK$0.18 per share. The Company
raised HK$39,739,000 (net of expenses) with the intention at
the time of placing to be used towards appropriate acquisition
and investment opportunities of the Group and for the general
working capital of the Group. The new placing shares were
issued pursuant to the general mandate granted to the
directors by a resolution of the shareholders of the Company
passed at the annual general meeting held on 17 August 2016.

On 7 November 2016, the 2016 Convertible Note with a
principal amount of HK$34,250,000 were converted into
shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company at the conversion
price of HK$0.225 per share. Accordingly, a total of
152,222,222 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were allotted
and issued by conversion of the convertible note.

On 27 February 2017, the Company allotted 350,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each by placing to not less than six
placees at a placing price of HK$0.16 per share. The Company
raised HK$55,440,000 (net of expenses) with the intention at
the time of placing to be used to purchase units in a building
(the “FW Building”) for redevelopment. The new placing shares
were issued pursuant to the specific mandate granted to the
directors by a resolution of the shareholders of the Company
passed at the special general meeting held on 13 February
2017.

On 19 July 2017, the Company allotted 325,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each by placing to not less than six placees
at a placing price of HK$0.08 per share. The Company raised
HK$25,740,000 (net of expenses) with the intention at the
time of placing to be used to satisfy part of the consideration
for the acquisition of a unit in a non-industrial building for
redevelopment. The new placing shares were issued pursuant
to the refreshed general mandate granted to the directors by
a resolution of the independent shareholders of the Company
passed at the special general meeting held on 26 April 2017.

On 18 October 2017, the Second 2017 Convertible Note
with a principal amount of HK$16,920,000 were converted
into shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company at the
conversion price of HK$0.06 per share. Accordingly, a total of
282,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were allotted
and issued by conversion of the convertible note.
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26.

IR (%)

©)

201659 H22H » KA BIAF
fid &5 {2 0.18 /5 JL B 5 223,000,000
B FR%0.01 B2 TERRHD T
TNORNBEBRA - AQFESF
39,739,000 L (HBRFAZZ) « &
BITERARASEE A BKER
REMSEIERRERZ —ME
BB o FEL SR TR 2016 F
8 A 17 B ERAFRIAS Himid 2 %
FRBRATES Z —MRITERT -

MR2016F11B7H A& & 58
34,250,00078 7T 2 2016 4 7] #2 %
ZE U EHR0.2258 T 2 KR (E
HBABARRAGEFR0.01 BT 2%
17 o B - B85 BT AR IR
& A& KB 1T152,222,222 fF
B 0.01 BT @A ©

R20174E2 A27 B » ANRARIAFRL
fid & {& 0.16 7 7T B 5 350,000,000
REFRR0.01 BTz MR N T
TORNBAERA - RRFIES
55,440,000 T (FBRFASZR) © &
BITE RER BB S ([L
RE ) EERE - FBL &R TR
201752 B13ARIRERAS L&
BZRFRFGETES ZFRE
PEBEAT o

201757 198 » KR BIAF
fid & {2 0.08 7 s Fid & 325,000,000
BEROO BTz EBBEGL T
TNORRNBERA - XAFIES
25,740,000 T (0B B 2 1% ) -
ERTERERRKE —EET
¥EFEMIEERARZHBMHAR
& - FBE I 1D J9322017 4 B
26 A RIS RS FiRid 2 BT
REAZBTESZ2EN KT
PEBEAT o

R2017F10A 188 » A& 4%
16,920,000 7T,2 5 — {5 2017 ¢
AR B A G AR 0.06 T 2 K,
HBE R IBRBRARER0.01E T
ZREG o Bt 0 BB A A
Z &6 Al & KX #17 282,000,000
A 0.01 87T 2 T @AY -
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26. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

27.

(i) On 21 February 2018, the Company allotted 447,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each by placing to not less than
six placees at a placing price of HK$0.055 per share. The
Company raised HK$24,340,000 (net of expenses) with the
intention at the time of placing to be used to purchase units
in the FW Building for redevelopment. The new placing shares
were issued pursuant to the general mandate granted to the
directors by a resolution of the shareholders of the Company
passed at the annual general meeting held on 24 July 2017.

All shares issued during both years rank pari passu with the then
existing shares in issue in all respects.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

On 29 June 2012, a share option scheme (the “2012 Share Option
Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders of the Company. Under
the terms of the 2012 Share Option Scheme, the board of directors
of the Company may, at its absolute discretion, offer options to
any full-time employee, director or consultant of any member of the
Group (including associated companies) to subscribe for shares in
the Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein.
The 2012 Share Option Scheme is valid during the period of ten years
commencing 29 June 2012, unless otherwise cancelled or amended.

The purposes of the 2012 Share Option Scheme are to encourage
eligible participants to work towards enhancing the value of the
Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued under the 2012
Share Option Scheme must not (when aggregate with any shares to
be issued under any other share option schemes of the Company)
exceed 10% of the shares in issue at the date of adoption of the 2012
Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon the exercise of the
share options granted to each eligible participant of the 2012 Share
Option Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue. Any further grant of share options in
excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting of the Company with such grantee and his associate(s)
abstaining from voting.

26.

27.

IRA (%)

()  H2018F2H21H + ARRIAF
A2 & {E0.055/8 AL & 447,000,000
B F % 0.01 B T2 TR RD T
NORNBEERA o AAFES
24,340,000 T (FBRFAZZ) © &
BITE AR LY B A(E
EiE - FRERN T51Z201747 A
4R RAF RS FiRBE R
SRR TES 2 —RIRIRETT -

FrERMIEFEARETZRONE T E
HER DRI ZERSEN -

LR /ERZ N 2R S

R20126F 6 A29H » AARIIREHAE—
TERE R AEREI ([2012 EERIESTEI D) - 4R
2012 BIAETEI 216K - ARRIES
20 REBHIEE - BIEZET S
HE 2GR RE G RN EBERKE R
Al(PREBEAR) 2ANEBES - £
BB E AT REARRRRG 2B’
1 o 2012 R AERT BIBR IE AR A 5 =5t
tHEERT - BRIHE 201246 A29 B st
10 F A —E AR -

2012 B Bl 5 ER B TR BERSH
ERNRFBARF REBD 2 EENAF
BARRARERERZ I F A o

RIR2012 AR B LR TT 2 IRm ik
BB PR (BRIEARE 2 ERHM
B B T 81T AR & BfET
H)BBNERAN 2012 BREEIERZ
BEETRNZ10% °

REMA 121 B R A - & 2012 AR 7
Tl B EBRSMETHEHMERT
ZHERER BTETZRERMOEK
B UARFEETRNZ1% BR -
EfalE— IR LR IB L PR 58 2 B AR A -
BERERAQNBRE A &S A
1EE - Mz AREBE ABRER

=:=)
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27.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The exercise period of the share options under 2012 Share Option
Scheme is determined by the board of directors of the Company and
shall end on a date which is not later than ten years from the date
of grant of the options. At the time of grant of the share options, the
Company must (a) specify the minimum period(s), if any, for which a
share option must be held before it can be exercised in whole or in
part, and (b) specify the minimum performance target(s), if any, which
must be achieved before the share options can be exercised in whole
or in past. The amount payable on acceptance of an offer for grant of
share options is HK$1.

The exercise price in respect of any particular option of the 2012
Share Option Scheme may be determined by the board of directors
of the Company in its absolute discretion and notified to each offeree
but may not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date of offer, which must
be a business day; (ii) the average closing price of the Company’s
shares on the Stock Exchange as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares on the date of offer.

Details of share options granted under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme are as follows:

27.

RO ABER LN 25 (B)

RI% 2012 BB R AR AT 8 2 B8 B 17 (2 B
HARBERERE - BATENEH
BRREE PR TFZHER - MR
BBAHERS - AR BMA (o) ERBAES
BRS AR D 1T 2 B FF A 2 A2 AR (40
B) - F(o)ERBRERAPHBOITE
ZRIBATR Z RIERBIER (WE) -
SRR HERE . ROEMN BT

AARESSAIREBEHMIERE BT
2012 fERR T8 2 S E BRI 2 1T
FE TASETIEHA  HHBEITE
BABLRORENBH(KEES

A)REER ATz BB REXRAIIAAR
R R P 2 W (E (i) BEZEAH
HATRAEEXR KRBT RE
R ETHI AR BIRRAD FAB A2 Pt 2 S5 M
B R(i)ARARORELNBHZAE
(AEmHEABLE) -

2012 IR At B 2 B R A 1B 0
T

Exercise price

Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period per share

®E B FEH 1T1EHR FRTEE

HK$

BT

14.10.2016 Nil 14.10.2016-13.10.2019 0.176
A
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27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 27. LURHAERIZG2RS (&)
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share TREBERIE2012BRETSIHER X
options held by employees and directors pursuant to the 2012 Share EERBARRICERENFARBE
Option Scheme during the current and prior years: FE2#E) :

Number of share options

BREHE
Outstanding Granted  Outstanding Lapsed  Outstanding
Exercise at during at during at
Date of grant price 1.4.2016 the year 31.3.2017 the year 31.3.2018
”1.4.2016 731.8.2017 7 31.3.2018
i AH 1TEE e FRE L o) FRKK fe] &R
HK$
BT
Directors 7E
14.10.2016 0.176 - 33,900,000 33,900,000  (11,300,000) 22,600,000
Employees ES
14.10.2016 0.176 - 79,100,000 79,100,000  (11,300,000) 67,800,000
- 113,000,000 113,000,000  (22,600,000) 90,400,000
Exercisable at end RERATE
of the year 113,000,000 90,400,000
Weighted average MEFSTEE
exercise price (HK$) () - 0.176 0.176 0.176 0.176
During the year ended 31 March 2017, options were granted NEE2017FEIAIIHIFERN - £
pursuant to the 2012 Share Option Scheme on 14 October 2016. The 2012 B AR REET 2R 2016 E 10 A 14 B %
fair value of the options granted on that date was HK$2,083,000. No HEEREHE - RIBEHZEAREZ AT EE
options were granted during the year ended 31 March 2018. 2,083,000 7T - #1Z 201843 A31H

LFEFEIE AR L RBAE -
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27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The fair value was calculated using the Black-Scholes model with
Binomial Tree method. The inputs into the model were as follows:

Grant date & B E

Share price (HK$) AZ{E (Bx)
Exercise price (HK$) TEE(BT)
Expected volatility B8
Expected life (years) TEETRERR (R HA)
Risk-free rate 12 [ i ) 22
Expected dividend yield TEET AR F =&

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of
the Company’s share price over the previous 3 years. The expected
life used in the model has been adjusted, based on management’s
best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise
restrictions and behavioural considerations. Change in the subjective
input may materially affect the fair value estimates.

The Group recognised a share-based payment expense of nil (2017:

HK$2,083,000) for the year ended 31 March 2018 in relation to share
options granted by the Company.

No share option was exercised under the 2012 Share Option Scheme
in both years since the grant date on 14 October 2016.
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NHET IR AR — HREEAR =X
BEETE - BARBZBAZBBNOT

14.10.2016

0.126
0.176
37.76%
3.0
0.63%

TAEHRIE IR EBESF 2 AR AIRE
Z SR IEEE - ARR 2 FEH R
TIREERE 2 &R EfA - TREEE
2B ATERBIRITAE EmIEE
B THRAZBZNER AT EZG
AHEEEATE -

HZE20184F3 A31 H IFFRAE B
RAEBARRIRH 2 BIRENRG AE
B N RS A% (2017 £ © 2,083,000
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28. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 28. NRERMEITH-EBZHAGE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from TR AEERERMETH ZBEE
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. B BIEESNIEESEE - RERME
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash EBZAENEREERES - JARK
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s REREBEIEANKE AR
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing MEAZKERE T ZEERE °
activities.
Secured
Convertible bank
notes borrowings Total
RREE BEARITEE #HazE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FHEIT FHET
(Note 23) (Note 24)
(FF5E23) (PfFsE24)
At 1 April 2017 R20179F4 A1 H 95,801 779,700 875,501
Bank borrowings raised BERITER - 318,071 318,071
Proceeds from issue of convertible 2517 Al 2% =%
notes PR FE 44,200 - 44,200
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITEE - (5,359) (5,359)
Interest paid AL, (6,623) (25,065) (31,688)
133,378 1,067,347 1,200,725
Non-cash changes: FEEH
— Interest expense on convertible ~ — AJHARREER
notes A B FI 17,128 = 17,128
— Interest expense on bank —RITEEZFE
borrowings X - 25,313 25,313
— Gain on fair value change of — AR R 2
convertible note A EZE W (217) - (217)
— Interest payable on convertible ~ —RBEFEEHHE
notes reclassified to “trade AR AR SRR FE AT
and other payables” in prior FEZESHR
years E A e F0E 3,105 = 3,105
— Conversion of convertible note — AT AR (5,775) - (5,775)
— Recognition of equity —HERIRRER
component of convertible REZRPR 1
notes (27,994) - (27,994)
— Derecognition of original liability ~— — R B A& =%
component upon modification GBS RER
of terms of convertible note RANE &K S (84,977) - (84,977)
— Recognition of new liability — R E BN AR AR =R
component upon modification 16 SR R TSR T
of terms of convertible note =N-40) 35,008 - 35,008
At 31 March 2018 M20184 3 A31H 69,656 1,092,660 1,162,316
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 431 HILFE

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/CONNECTED 29. BEAIRS BERS
TRANSACTIONS
(@)  During the year, the Group had the following transactions with @ FAR AEEEXEBEEZZ2E
wholly-owned subsidiaries of Easyknit International: WEBRRBATRS :
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBT THET
Rental expense HemRx 2,496 2,496
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, a director of the Company, is also one of ARATEEEE% L R 2018
the beneficiaries under a family trust holding 36.74% (2017: FEI3ABBANAREE K& BHKE
36.74%) equity interest of Easyknit International at 31 March 36.74% (2017 % : 36.74%) #E 5
2018. Ms. Lui Yuk Chu also holds 21.95% (2017: 21.95%) RGEEEXBIAZ— c EEHKL
equity interest of Easyknit International through an entity TIE R HELEHAE TR
wholly-owned by her. i #F B K & B §¥21.95% (2017

1 21.95%) HEzS o

(b)  Details of the convertible notes issued to Easyknit International b)) BITABEEERZAIBEER>
are set out in note 23(a), (d) and (e). SEBEETIRKIEE23(@) ¢ (d) K (e) °
(c)  Compensation of key management personnel ) TEEBEBAEZHM
The remuneration of directors and other members of key EEREMTIEEEAERERN
management during the year was as follows: ZMEnT
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
T TR
Short-term employee benefits 52 #i{E 8 487
Salaries and other benefits & & H (& F 8,413 6,803
Equity-settled share-based — LAREZS4EE 2 [ {5
payment expense REMSTNRE - 864
Contributions to retirement B R4& 5+ B4 5k
benefit schemes 104 94
8,517 7,761
The remuneration of directors and key executives are EERTETHRAEZHMEH R
determined by the remuneration committee and executive HEMEES RNTESIHRA
directors, respectively, having regard to the performance of BIATZ RIBRTIBEAMETE -

individuals and market trends.
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29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/CONNECTED 29.
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

BMEALRS BERS (H)

d R2011F1 A ARRHEEFL
(d) In January 2011, the Company entered into an employment ZEZERBEXELERNER
agreement with Mr. Koon Wing Yee, the spouse of Ms. Lui BE - BEREARNDERKE -
Yuk Chu, to act as general manager of the Company. The ZEK—EBRER S 2 EAHE
employment agreement, which constitutes a connected 2011 F2A21HFE K BH
transaction, commenced on 21 February 2011 but may be REMBEBREREA—SHET
terminated by either party at any time by three months’ notice. —EABEAmBKILE - BRF®
The monthly salary has been adjusted to HK$150,000 with 201374 A1 B RAEEEA
effect from 1 April 2013 and further to HK$180,000 with effect 150,000/ * 201744 818
from 1 April 2017. The remuneration of Mr. Koon Wing Yee #B 3 — 20 % 180,000 7% T °
as general manager of the Company during the year ended B E2018F3A31HIEFAE
31 March 2018 was HK$2,340,000 (2017: HK$1,950,000) KEBRAEERBANRD B HELEIE 7 B
and was included in the “compensation of key management & 42,340,000 (2017 4 :
personnel” in (c) above. Details of share options of the 1,950,000/ 7T ) R B BIETEL £
Company granted to Mr. Koon Wing Yee on 14 October 2016 CHEZIEBEBEABZHM]
are set out in (e) below. A > BRIAA AIR2016F 10814
AR TE KRR TCEBRE ZFE

HYIAAT (6)H °
(e)  As set out in note 27, during the year ended 31 March 2017, )  LnffizE27 FTEk - BE201743 A

options were granted pursuant to the 2012 Share Option
Scheme on 14 October 2016. Share options granted to
directors of the Company and their close relatives are as
follows:

31BIEFE - 12016410 A 14
HR#E 2012 FRE MR BT L 2
PERRIE - BERIER TARARIZE
EREAFROT ¢

Number of share options

BREH A
Granted on
14 October 2016 Lapsed
and outstanding at during Outstanding at
31 March 2017 the year 31 March 2018
RN2016 4108 14 H
R R 2017 F M 20184
3 A31 Ak RERKR 3 A 31 Bk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FAT FHEL FTHER
Directors =
Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim BRALE 11,300,000 - 11,300,000
Lui Yuk Chu EEGLL 11,300,000 - 11,300,000
Koon Ho Yan Candy (note) B A Rz £ (f3E) 11,300,000 (11,300,000) -
383,900,000 (11,300,000) 22,600,000
Employees =]
Koon Wing Yee, the spouse BKkELLE  BE%ZL
of Lui Yuk Chu Z BB 11,300,000 - 11,300,000
Koon Chun Ting, a son of BEREELE  EE%KRL
Lui Yuk Chu ZHRF 11,300,000 (11,300,000) -
Ku Wai Ming, a cousin of HEALE  EEHKATL
Lui Yuk Chu KRB 11,300,000 - 11,300,000
33,900,000 (11,300,000) 22,600,000
67,800,000 (22,600,000) 45,200,000
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29.

30.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(e) (Continued)

Note: Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy resigned as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 18 April 2017.

The attributable equity-settled share-based payment expense
recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31 March
2018 was nil (2017: HK$648,000).

(f) During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group received
rental income totalling HK$505,000 (2017: HK$648,000) from
certain close relatives of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and Ms. Koon Ho Yan
Candy.

(9) During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group paid nil
(2017: HK$110,000) to Easyknit Charitable Foundation
Limited, a company controlled by Ms. Luk Yuk Chu and Ms.
Koon Ho Yan Candy, which is recognised in profit or loss as
“donations”.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balances. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts, which
includes convertible notes and secured bank borrowings disclosed
in notes 23 and 24, respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents
and equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital, accumulated profits and other reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital
and the risks associated with the capital. Based on recommendations
of the directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and raising or
repayment of bank borrowings and other debts.
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 31. €@IA
a.  Categories of financial instruments a. S@IAEZHEH
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FET
Financial assets EREE
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 207,213 158,541
Fair value through profit or loss &R AF{EzT ABz
— investments held for trading —RHIEEBRE 3,436 4,505
— other financial assets —HthemEE 35,618 53,980
Loans and receivables (including &z K& EWRIE (B1FH €
cash and cash equivalents) FERRE)
— Trade and other receivables —B 5 REAMEKFKIE 33,443 33,172
— Loans receivable —EWE R 265,297 264,395
- Bank deposits with original —BR=EARE
maturity of more than RITER
three months - 103,606
- Bank balances and cash —HRITEBRRIR S 125,422 409,884
670,429 1,028,083
Financial liabilities SRIBE
Amortised cost b 3[R
— Trade and other payables —B S5 REMENKIE 40,843 22,287
— Convertible notes — AR IR 69,656 95,801
- Secured bank borrowings —BEMIRITEE 1,092,660 779,700
1,203,159 897,788
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group’s major financial instruments include available-
for-sale investments, investments held for trading, other
financial assets, trade and other receivables, loans receivable,
bank deposits with original maturity of more than three
months, bank balances and cash, trade and other payables,
convertible notes and secured bank borrowings. Details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure that appropriate measures are implemented on a timely

and effective manner.

Market risk

(i) Currency risk

All of the Group’s sales and purchases are denominated

in the group entities’ functional currency.

For the year ended 31 March 2017, certain subsidiaries
of the Group had foreign currency sales or purchases
denominated in currencies other than their functional
currencies, which exposed the Group to foreign
currency risk. Less than 1% of the Group’s sales were
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the group entities making the sale, whilst
almost all purchases were denominated in the group

entities’ functional currency.

The carrying amount of the group entities’ foreign
currency denominated monetary assets at the end of the

reporting period is as follows:

usb ET
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the exchange rate
risk on HKD against USD for the foreign currency
denominated monetary assets. Under the pegged
exchange rate system, the financial impact on exchange
difference between HKD and USD will be immaterial, and
therefore no sensitivity analysis has been prepared.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy to eliminate the currency exposures.
However, the management monitors the related foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposures should the need
arise.

(ii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk management

The Group’s primary cash flow interest rate risk relates
to its other financial assets, bank deposits with original
maturity of more than three months, bank balances
and secured bank borrowings. The interest rates and
terms of repayment of the secured bank borrowings
of the Group are disclosed in note 24. The Group is
also exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
fixed-rate loans receivable and convertible notes. The
Group has not used any derivative contracts to hedge
its exposure to such interest rate risk, however, the
management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider other necessary action when significant interest
rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk on financial
liabilities is detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group’s cash flow interest rate
risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR
arising from secured bank borrowings.

31. &€@MIEE)

b. M¥BEMEERRRIBEEK (&)

5 /EEE ()

Y

(i)

It

E¥mpg (&)

HEET

REFBINEINEZ B
EEZEREREEZRR
BATLAERITZER -
REFRERGE - BTl
ETEXREZER 2 MBHE
WARERK - UL H R B
BURED

7 85 50 5 4 50 5 o
TS OB KRR o 24
i ERERE R
B2 SNSRI R i E S
ABEBREANEAR
AT -

FIEm R

Tl [ e B HE
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hEMESBMEE  BB=
AR ZRITER R
TEBRBEBETE
B REBABFRTE
BE2HRREEHREN
MiFE24 R o AN IRk
SN E B ERE R R
BIRERZ AFEFRE
% o NEBILEFE AT
AIHTHE A& #9 LA S5 3% A ==
[ AW BIEEE L
=@ R 6 E B TE
BEARMERERBROIBERT
FEUE M FEITE o

AEBERNESRAEZ X
REBERAMEZ RBE
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued)

Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-
derivative instruments as referred to above at the end
of the reporting period and the stipulated change
taking place at the beginning of the financial year and
held constant throughout the reporting period in the
case of instruments that have floating rates. A 50 basis
points (2017: 50 basis points) increase or decrease is
used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in

interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2017: 50
basis points) higher or lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the
year ended 31 March 2018 would decrease/increase
by HK$4,562,000 (2017: increase/decrease in post-tax
loss by HK$3,255,000). This is mainly attributable to the
Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable rate

borrowings.

The bank balances, bank deposits with original maturity
of more than three months and other financial assets
are excluded from the sensitivity analysis as the
management of the Group considers that the interest

rate fluctuation is not significant.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during

the year.
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 31. £@MITE(H)
b. Financial risk management objectives and policies b. BHERREEBERBE (E)

(Continued)

Market risk (Continued) TSR (4E)
(i) Equity price risk (i) RAIEE)E

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risks. The Group’s equity price
risk is mainly concentrated on equity instruments quoted
in the Stock Exchange of issuers operating in banking
and finance industry sector. In addition, the Group has
appointed a special team to monitor the price risk and
will consider hedging the risk exposure should the need
arise.

BERRERETERAR
% REBAZBABE
Bk EEEEBRFEETD
FERZREHBE AEE
ZER - AEE 2 BAE
R E RPN
WRE2BRATE KT
ARERTREEITE -
Bo - REBEER 5
) B8 P A B PR (B AR 3L e
1% Z BAE T B0 Rz

A
o
N

o

Sensitivity analysis BT
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined N TNERED T EER
based on the exposure to equity price risk at the W& A EFRAE 2 RAE

reporting date.

If the prices of the listed equity securities classified as
investments held for trading had been 5% (2017: 5%)
higher/lower, post-tax profit for the year ended 31 March
2018 would increase/decrease by HK$143,000 (2017:
decrease/increase in post-tax loss by HK$188,000) as a
result of the changes in fair value of investments held for
trading.

If the prices of the listed equity securities classified as
available-for-sale investments had been 10% (2017:
10%) higher:

e investment revaluation reserve would increase by
HK$20,721,000 (2017: HK$15,854,000) as a result
of the increase in fair value of available-for-sale
investments; and

If the prices of the listed equity securities classified as
available-for-sale investments had been 10% (2017:
10%) lower:

e post-tax profit would decrease by HK$250,000
(2017: increase in post-tax loss by HK$620,000) and
investment revaluation reserve would decrease by
HK$20,471,000 (2017: HK$15,234,000) as a result
of the decrease in fair value of available-for-sale
investments.

T

REREE

WMHIERIEEERE 2
TR AESZEBR L
F T B&E5% (2017 4 :
5%) BHIEEEREAT
B22EKEREE2018
FIANALEFER B R
38 6038 4> 143,00078
JC (20174 : Bi1& B4R R
A /1811188,000587T) ©

W ERHHEEREZ £
MR FBHEE EFA10%
(2017 4F - 10%) :

o WEABEHREEHEATHE
HERE 2 ATFEEN
3% 7020,721,0003# 7T
(2017 £ : 15,854,000
BT °

MFIER B EREZ £
MR AR FEHEBE TEK10%
(20174 : 10%) :

o Fi1EEF A A 4
EXRBZAFERD
m % 4>250,0005 7T
(20174 : Fi 1% & 18
# 11620,00078 7T ) &
RESEHFEEBRD
20,471,000/ 7T (2017
£ 1 15,234,000/7T) °
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31.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations as at 31
March 2018 in relation to each class of recognised financial
assets is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position. In view of the
nature of business, the Group targets on a focused market. As
at 31 March 2018, the Group has concentration of credit risk
in the trade receivables balance amounting to HK$1,535,000
(2017: HK$1,788,000) derived from the five largest customers
with good credit history in property investment. In order to
minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has
reviewed the financial position, liquidity and recoverable
amount of each individual trade receivable regularly to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group also had concentration of credit risk in relation
to loans receivable from a few borrowers amounting to
HK$265,297,000 at 31 March 2018 (2017: HK$264,395,000)
with 57% (2017: 42%) of the balance secured by guarantee
money, marketable securities or properties. The largest
borrower of the Group by itself accounted for approximately
19% (2017: 19%) of the Group’s loans receivable at 31 March
2018. At 31 March 2018, all loans receivable are neither
past due nor impaired and the borrowers are assessed to
have satisfactory credit quality with reference to financial
background current creditworthiness, collateral and past
payment of each borrower. In order to minimise the credit risk,
the management has reviewed the recoverable amounts of the
loans receivable regularly to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk
on loans receivable is significantly reduced.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the credit risk
on liquid funds is limited because majority of the counterparties
are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies and banks with good reputation.
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 31. &mMIE(E)
b. Financial risk management objectives and policies b. MERREEBEREE(E)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk TEE LR
In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors MABESRREEME @ A&
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed BEIE R MEFEEER AR AKX
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s FrRekERREAMHAEH
operations. The management monitors the utilisation of BT c B EERET
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants. AW HEREETERIEK ©
As at 31 March 2018, the Group has available unutilised bank M2018F3A31H ' &
loan facilities of HK$328,766,000 (2017: HK$245,000,000). BEABRBITERBEE A
328,766,000 7T (2017 £ :
245,000,000/ 7T) °
The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual TRAVWAEB 2 SRBEZE
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn BRA AR EAEAR o thRTIIRARE
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities ErHERNRZHFENHE 2
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required CHMEBERTRBESREIN R
to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash FABEMNERASHETE °
flows.
Liquidity tables BB
More than
3 months Total
Effective  Less than but less Over undiscounted Carrying
interestrate ~ 3months  than1year  1-2years  2-5years 5years  cash flows amount
BB3fEA AiERS
BRAE  ORSER  EOME 1-2F 2-5%  BiBSE  RELE KEfE
% HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén T THR Thn Tén T T
2018 2018%
Non-derivative financial iabiies ~ 3Ef74£BEE
Trade and other payables BHREBEMNE - 40,843 - - - - 40,843 40,843
Convertble notes EREE 23.46 116,678 20,400 - - - 137,078 69,656
Secured bank borrowings BERREE 278 42821 17248 601598 22298 68159 1,131,124 1,002,660
579,342 37,648 601,598 22,298 68,159 1,309,045 1,203,159
2017 M7E
Non-derivative financial liabiies ~ 3EfT44BEE
Trade and other payables B RAMEMNE = 22,287 - = - = 22,081 22,287
Convertible notes ARSE 11.66 87,720 - 20,400 - - 108,120 95,801
Secured bank borrowings ittt 258 6369 433168 14010 296325 74024 823896 779,700
116,376 433,168 34,410 296,325 74,024 954,303 897,788
BILGEARAT | 20185 137



138

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 431 HILF[E

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

© Fair value

(i)

(ii)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at
fair value at the end of the reporting period. The following
table gives information about how the fair values of
these financial assets are determined (in particular, the
valuation techniques and key inputs used).

Fair value at 31 March

AVER3A3MA

Financial assets SREE
2018

HK$'000

HK$'000

SRTHE(E&)
c. 2DA¥E
() AEERBLEZMEER
ARFEFEZEHBEEZ
AFE

Fair value

hierarchy

RYFERE

MOAKEZ SREER
BEMREATEANE -
NER M A B0 ] B E X
SeREEATELER
B 3 2 b E T R s A 28
&) -

Valuation techniques
and key inputs
FEETEEI PN ¢

Available-for-sale investments

Investments held for trading

Other financial assets

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 in
both years.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
that are not measured at fair value on a recurring
basis

The fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities is determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised costs in the consolidated financial
statements approximate to their fair values.
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(i)

Quoted bid prices in an active market
REBTHMR LE

Quoted bid prices in an active market

NEY IR i et

Discounted cash flows-future cash
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32. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES THROUGH 32. ZBUWEBHMEARWBEERER
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(@) On 1 August 2016, the Group completed the acquisition of (@ %39l6f8ﬁ1 H ’\$%@ﬁéi%
100% equity interest in a subsidiary, Treasure Arts International ?%%i;Efoﬁﬁ1tf§51f)§2,0£
Group Limited, and shareholder loan from an independent third 7’%737:525”@%_%?%%@ Al _i‘
party for a cash consideration of HK$51,982,000. The principal g%ﬂl:ﬁﬁ?/‘* QZJQO%EEE
assets of the subsidiary are properties held for development &Hﬁi%ﬂ o ZMBA EZIE
for sale. The assets acquired and liabilities assumed were as ﬁéﬁ*ﬂ/ﬁﬁj%%E%¥ > Y
fo”ows: ﬁ%&ﬁfﬁ%%wﬂ? :
1 August
2016
20168 A1H
HK$’000
FHET
Properties held for development for sale RELEHEYS 18,550
Deposits and prepayments for acquisition of KRR EL SR
properties held for development for sale ZIEE RIEFAK 33,432
Amount due to the vendor EREHREE (33,432)
Net assets assumed BEAEFE 18,550
Net cash outflow on acquisition: WihE 2 B[ F R
Consideration paid SARE (51,982)
Settlement of amount due to the vendor BRBERBES SR 33,432
(18,550)
(b)  On 13 October 2016, the Group completed the acquisition of (b) H2016%F10813H A& B K
100% equity interest in a subsidiary, Daily Leader Limited, and —ZBUE=ZFEUNRERKRE
shareholder loan from an independent third party for a cash 64,525,000/ 7T TeR I EE — R B
consideration of HK$64,525,000. The principal assets of the Aa] + Daily Leader Limited 2 100%
subsidiary are properties held for development for sale. The ERNIREER - ZWB AT Z
assets acquired and liabilities assumed were as follows: TEEEAFEHEEREDE -
WS ER B EAENT
13 October
2016
2016 10 A 13 H
HK$’000
FHIT
Properties held for development for sale FHIELEERME 15,822
Deposits and prepayments for acquisition of KRR EL EE R
properties held for development for sale ZIEE RIEFAK 48,703
Amount due to the vendor EREHEE (48,703)
Net assets assumed BEAESFE 15,822
Net cash outflow on acquisition: UehE 2 B F R
Consideration paid TRRE (64,525)
Settlement of amount due to the vendor ENERBER S 48,703
(15,822)
Note: B2
The cash flows impact regarding the acquisitions of assets and liabilities EREBRENBARIWBEERABZIRER
through acquisitions of subsidiaries were presented as operating cash flows EVEECREEHERERZVNRELEREN
in the consolidated financial statement of cash flows. g o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 431 HILFE

33. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 33.

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets of the Group
were pledged to banks to secure credit facilities granted to the
Group:

BEER

RIBEHR - NEBBERTINEET —
RRITEAIETAER ZERRE

2018 2017

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Investment properties TEYE 986,740 785,873
Properties held for development BIEHEREME

for sale 1,634,964 597,868

2,621,704 1,383,741

In addition, rentals in respect of the above investment properties and
future sale proceeds and rentals in respect of the above properties
held for development for sale were also pledged to these banks.

BN R EYFER S K i ED
ERRVERRZHEERSTARES
THEHR T IRTT o

34. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 34, REMOTH
The Group as lessee AEBERAAEA
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FET
Minimum lease payments recognised SRR EzEHFER
in profit or loss during the year ZRIEREMAR 2,543 2,543

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows:

R|ERR - REERNATFHREZ
AAHEHE S A 2 RRBZAXTH SR

Within one year —FR
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEERF (BEEEMRT)

ZHEER
2018 2017
HK$’°000 HK$’000
THT FHT
2,550 1,084
3,587 =
6,137 1,084
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 A31 HILFE

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

The table above includes commitments for future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases payable to a
subsidiary of Easyknit International which fall due as follows:

—FN
E_FEFLF (BEERMF)

Within one year
In the second to fifth year inclusive

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for
certain of its office premises. Leases are negotiated for a term of one
year to three years (2017: one year).

Under the leases entered into by the Group, the lease payments are
fixed and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent

rental payments.

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned FREREZ MERS KA
during the year

Less: Outgoings o

Net rental income WA FE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

Within one year —FR
In the second to fifth year inclusive FE_EZFTF(BREEERSF)
Over five years HBAAE

Under the leases entered into by the Group, the lease payments are
fixed and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent
rental payments. The properties held have committed tenants for
terms of one year to six years (2017: one year to seven years).

34.

REBOZH (&)
FEEERFBA (E)

ERBEATEHEH 2 AR HHLE
HH 2 RRKEEE MR T REREBRZ

—FEM B AR ZAES
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
2,496 1,040
3,536 _
6,032 1,040

KEHAONRIEAEBZETHAEY
¥UEMEE - - BOzHESEEA—F
E=FE (20174 : —4F) o

RIBEREHT L2 BL - H2NRE
B5E M I AT S 3k AT A FREHE

REBERHBEA
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TFET
33,012 20,384
(2,300) (754)
30,712 28,630

RERR - AEEEBPFI AT R
RERARFRAIK

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR THET
32,466 27,338
62,411 44,584
9,172 9,866
104,049 81,788

REENEETY 2L BOARE
Bl MW ETS AR SR - #
EMEZBANMFE 2N EY—FE
NEQROI7TFE : —FELEF) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 431 HILFE

35.

36.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure contracted for but 2 &] 4B i AR AR A BT

not provided in the consolidated WERPBEZERAT
financial statements in respect of TR E Y

investment properties

The above amount at 31 March 2018 included HK$265,500,000 for
acquisition of units and carparking spaces in a commercial building
to earn rental and/or for capital appreciation through acquisition
of subsidiaries. Deposits paid amounted to HK$29,500,000 at 31
March 2018 which was presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position as “deposits paid for acquisition of investment
properties”. Details of this transaction are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 11 January 2018 and circular dated 15 March
2018. Completion of this transaction took place on 30 April 2018.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. Under
the MPF Scheme, the employees are required to contribute 5% of
their monthly salaries or up to a maximum of HK$1,500 and they can
choose to make additional contributions. The employer’s monthly
contributions are calculated at 5% of the employee’s monthly salaries
or up to a maximum of HK$1,500 (the “mandatory contributions”).
The employees are entitled to 100% of the employer’s mandatory
contributions upon their retirement at the age of 65, death or total
incapacity.

Employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of the state-
sponsored pension scheme operated by the PRC government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of their
payroll to the pension scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the pension scheme is to make the
required contributions.

EMINENCE ENTERPRISE LIMITED | Annual Report 2018

35.

BAEIE

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
T TET

265,975 9,842

36.

LA ER201843 531 Hz & 5EEAE
FRWEMNBARNKE —REEET
Nz BMRBEMARNAS R REE
#EH- R2018F3A31HEMIZE A
29,500,000 & TR 4R & BT RR R 271
BIKBIEEMEZEMNES] - %R
ZEIEERINA AR BEA20184F 1 A
11EZAH KRB A201843 158
K - ZRBHER2018F 4 A30H5%E
ﬁ °

RAAERETE

AEBREFERIEREDSEG
Pl RILFEEFRFIEATERIRKTR
FEHE (MBS E)) - RBESFE
T EEERESAFHFSHRE% L&
% %/1,5008 7 - BB X AR R
SMER - BREBARFAREREZEH
Hrast EHR6% &S /1,500 T
(FeaHIEESR]) o 1B B 65 pRRARE -
RTRTRRRITRENR  AIZHRE
BRI Z 100%

R B2 [ 8 R B2 8 8 A BT R
Tz BERERAKESFEIKE - HEA
RIARFEE T AN LRRKRSETSIH
o AEBEZ EEERBRBAREFTEIE
HPTARTE 2 5K
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 431 HILFE

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES (Continued)

There were no forfeited contributions utilised to offset employers’
contributions for the year. The employers’ contributions which have
been dealt with in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income were as follows:

Employers’ contributions recognised ~ R EZEHHER 2
in profit or loss BEHER

At the end of the reporting period, there were no forfeited
contributions available to reduce the contributions payable in the
future years.

36.

RRBEREE (&)

REE LB R AT R HEE
Kk - DA BREREMEEKER

FEIEZ BEHFUAT -
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET T
318 275

REBEHR - WRAE R WS AT AR
ERRERE 2 EAHER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 431 HILF[E

37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 37. FEBARIZFERE

K20184F3 431 H K20174F3/31H
ARBEEMBRRZFFBMAT -

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2018
and 31 March 2017 are as follows:

Nominal value Proportion of
of issued nominal value of
Place of share capital/ issued share capital/
incorporation/ paid-up paid-up registered
establishment and registered capital/ capital held by
Name of subsidiary operation stated capital the Company Principal activities
NG
BRAIRE/ BRITRA/
AL/ HREMBER/ SR EMRA
WRARER RYREE I ERRARE HERAL TEER
2018 2017
Directly held:
EEHE
Fanju Investments Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100% Investment in securities
RERERRRA EBRLEE/BE LREk1ET BHRE
Glory Link Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100% Investment in securities
ARRABRAT Bk ERR1ET EHRE
Land Bloom Holdings Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100% Property development
REERERAR ERRAEE/ B EER1ET S
Indirectly held:
EERE -
Capital Well (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% - Property investment
EH(EE)BRAR Bk LER1AT ESE
Chancemore Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100% Property investment
RERUBE/ B LaR1ET NERE
City China International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100% Loan financing
HHERERAR Bk LER1AT EXRE
Clever Wise Holdings Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100% Property investment
BREERERAR ABREHE/ B LAR1ET NERE
Daily Leader Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100% Property development
ERRAEE/ B EER1ET S
Excellent East Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% = Property investment
BREERAR X LER1BT NERE
Gainever Corporation Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100% Investment in securities
KEBRRRE Bk LRk EARA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &= 201843 A 31 HILF/E

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 37. XEBRBIZFE (&)
Nominal value Proportion of
of issued nominal value of
Place of share capital/ issued share capital/
incorporation/ paid-up paid-up registered
establishment and registered capital/ capital held by
Name of subsidiary operation stated capital the Company Principal activities
KARER
BRAIRE/ BRIRE/
TR/ BREMBR,/ HRERRAE
MWEAR LR R R & ERHRAHEE HERAM TEEH
2018 2017
Giant East Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% - Property investment
BRERAR Bk LRR1 BT nERA
Goldchamp International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100% Property investment
tERRERAT Bk LR 10,0007 NERE
Golden Top Properties Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100% Property investment
BIREFERAR) it LRR2BT nERA
Grow Well Profits Limited BVI/Singapore Ordinary US$1 100% 100% Property investment
RERAEE/ FE LER1IET NERE
Janson Properties Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100% Property investment
RBEEFERAR) it LER2ET nERA
Main Lucky Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100% Property investment
BatFAERAT Bk LRRA BT NERE
Top Channel Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100% Property investment
BECRERAR Bk LRRI BT NERA
Total Expect Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100% Property development
RERABE/ BF LER1ET NELE
Treasure Arts International BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100% Property development
Group Limited EBRUER/ BE LER1ET NEER
EEAREEARAA
Wealth Plan Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% = Property development
REERERAA BE LER1AT NEER
(Easyknit Enterprises (Huzhou) PRC Registered 100% 100% Property investment
Co., Ltd.) (‘Enterprises Huzhou’) US$25,544,206 MERE
KEEE (N ERAR Bl
25,544,206 T
* Enterprises Huzhou is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in the * MMEER—HRPBIK L 2 INERE

¥ LEHARS0F - EE20545 128
148 o

PRC, to be operated for 50 years up to 14 December 2054.

WiEEBRAT | 20185

T

145



146

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 431 HILFE

37.

38.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company, which, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected the
results of the year or constituted a substantial portion of the assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors of the Company result in particulars of excessive
length.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. Majority of these
subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong. The principal activities of these
subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

Principal activity Principal place of business

Investment holding Hong Kong
REER BE
Inactive Hong Kong
FEE R B
Inactive PRC
FEm R &

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at 31 March
2018 or 31 March 2017.

EVENT AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

As set out in note 35, acquisition of investment properties (being units
and carparking spaces in a commercial building) was completed on
30 April 2018. The consideration (not including legal costs and other
direct costs) amounted to HK$295 million.

EMINENCE ENTERPRISE LIMITED | Annual Report 2018

37.

TEMB ARz (&)

REARNBDEEZER - ERMAIIRZ
ARARMBAR  REBXERFEZ
EEIBRARBEET RN - RIE
ARRERZBEANHEMMERRZ
HEREEEH BN -

M|EHR - AAF WA H Mt AEE
MEtTREEZMBRR - LS B
RAARBARERBEE - WENB LA
ZEEEGBEOT

Number of subsidiaries
R EPNGIE S
2018 2017

16 16

10 7

28 25

38.

SRAE M B A RIMN20184E3 431 H=.2017
%3 A31 BETIERES °

BEMRESEE

WM FESS TS - B R A E (— &
HEFAN BN KRBA)ER20185F4 A
30 AT c REBE(TBIFEERARE
fth EBERK AN ) % 58 A 295,000,000 57T ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 431 HILFE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Interests in subsidiaries

Current assets
Other receivables
Bank balances

Current liabilities
Other payables
Convertible notes

Net current (liabilities) assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Convertible notes
Deferred tax liabilities

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves (note)

FRBEE
PRI A B4 s

mBEE
Hfth U FRIR
RITHEER

nBEE
HA0 A 5R
AR RE

nE (Bl BERE
RAERMBERE

FrRBEME
AT RE
EIERIREE

AR
BeA
G ED

39. ARDFZYHIMRREK

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT T
2,064 2,640
2,328,706 2,107,822
2,330,770 2,110,462
251 201
46,714 164,628
46,965 164,829
1,396 3,609
69,656 81,981
71,052 85,590
(24,087) 79,239
2,306,683 2,189,701
= 13,820
10,640 1,859
10,640 15,679
2,296,043 2,174,022
29,658 19,118
2,266,385 2,154,904
2,296,043 2,174,022
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #ZE 201843 431 HILFE

39.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

Note:

Movements of the Company’s reserves during the current and prior years are as

follows:

At 1 April 2016

Loss and total comprehensive
expense for the year

Issue of new shares

Transaction costs attributable to
issue of new shares

Recognition of equity component of
convertible note

Deferred tax liability on recognition of
equity component of convertible note

Issue of shares on conversion of
convertible note

Deferred tax liability released upon
conversion of convertible note

Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payments

At 31 March 2017

Loss and total comprehensive
expense for the year

Issue of new shares

Transaction costs attributable to
issue of new shares

Recognition of equity component of
convertible notes

Deferred tax liability on recognition of
equity component of convertible notes

Transfer upon modification of
terms of convertible note

Deferred tax liability released
upon modification of terms of
convertible note

Recognition upon modification of
terms of convertible note

Deferred tax liability on recognition
of equity component upon
modification of terms of
convertible note

Issue of shares on conversion of
convertible note

Deferred tax liability released upon
conversion of convertible note

Transfer upon cancellation of
share options

At 31 March 2018

2016453 A31H
KEERHRR
2EMXER
BITHRE
BITHRDZ
AARRRE
(3505
RBABBRRERRD
ZERHEAR
EE GRS
ESi
EE GRS
BRELHRRE
RN RAE L
Befp mER A

R2017463A31H
TEEERR
2EMXER
BITHR
ELilrd
RHHA
RABRREZ
30%)
RBARBRR 2
KAR BERREE
BRARRRRER
S
BRARRRRER
BRRELHIR
af
FUABRERERHK
R
FUABREREREHK
B HER R P 10
ZEEBERE

SBMRERER
B0
SBMRERERE
WERHAAR
BB ER
B

2018463 A31H

39. AT ZHHMRRE (E)

B

RRRZFEERFARBEFE 2EBIT ¢

Convertible Share
Share  note equity Capital ~ Contributed options Accumulated
premium reserve reserve surplus reserve losses Total
THRRER
RDEE RfEE RA G BABE BRERS Ehy B
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TET FET TET FET FET
1,882,461 21,181 53,194 261,126 = (186,417) 2,031,545
- - - - - (15,951) (15,951)
90,410 - - - - - 90,410
(961) - - - - - (961)
- 24,391 - - - - 24,391
- (4,025) - - - - (4,025)
47,778 (24,391) - - - - 23,387
- 4,025 - - = - 4,025
- - - - 2,083 - 2,083
2,019,688 21,181 53,194 261,126 2,083 (202,368) 2,154,904
- - - - - (2,090) (2,090)
42,865 - - - - - 42,865
(505) - - - - - (505)
- 27,994 - - - - 27,994
- (4,619) - - - - (4,619)
- (14,304) - - - 14,304 -
- 465 - = - = 465
- 50,992 - - - - 50,992
= (8,414) = = = = (8,414)
14,100 (11,145) - - - = 2,955
- 1,838 - - - - 1,838
- - - - (431) 431 -
2,076,148 63,988 53,194 261,126 1,652 (189,723) 2,266,385
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Financial Summary

MBERBE

RESULTS w g

M=

Year ended 31 March
BE=ZA=1t—HLEE
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET FET FE T

Revenue | 156,940 192,489 103,439 36,518 49,605
(Loss) profit before taxation BREE AT (E518) = 7 (2,752) 35,118 (61,238) (29,592) 54,608
Taxation L] 211 (4,032) (8,030) 2,965 (1,069)
(Loss) profit for the year NN EIAR R FE (R AN
attributable to owners of FE (B18) =5
the Company (2,541) 31,086 (69,268) (26,627) 53,539
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERBE
At 31 March
R=A=+—8H
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$’000
TR TR THETT TR TR

Total assets BEE 1,389,502 1,919,181 2,574,086 3,407,650 4,011,917
Total liabilities BwaeE (266,408)  (356,536)  (249,642)  (955,497) (1,296,629)
Equity attributable to owners RNARIRERFE(L

of the Company i 1,123,094 1,562,645 2,324,444 2,452,153 2,715,288
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Summary of Properties
YIEBE

At 31 March 2018 7201843 A 31 H

A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES A. KREWHE

Approximate
gross floor/

Location Ak Purpose saleable/site area Lease-term
WaEm,
A B EER HAHOFH
(sq.ft.)
(FAHR)

1. Ground Floor ERBIT Commercial 578 Long
No. 148 Johnston Road HEzE EES =
Wanchai 148 5540 T
Hong Kong

2. Ground Floor to Fifth Floor BB IREE Commercial 1,836 Long
and Portion of Roof M EE 11 5% EES =
No. 11 Matheson Street TN ERERKEEHD
and Ground Floor to Fifth Floor Rt 13 5%
and Portion of Roof WTERERKE D

No. 13 Matheson Street
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

3. Ground Floor to Fifth Floor B Commercial/ 1,021 Long
No. 15 Matheson Street 15 5% Residential =
Causeway Bay it ERE [SEV s
Hong Kong

4. Ground Floor B Commercial 472 Long
No. 6 Cannon Road =EE 655 EES 3=t
Causeway Bay b
Hong Kong

5. Sixth Floor 2N Industrial 8,608 Medium
Nos. 650-652 SlE I T
Castle Peak Road, and 650-6525% * 612 K&
No. 18A Wing Hong Street JKEEET 18A 5K
Kowloon

6.  Second Floor yah- Industrial 2,981 Medium
Nos. 790, 792 and 794 R EE I%* H EA
Cheung Sha Wan Road 79055k © 792 5% & 794 5%
Kowloon 21

7. Unit B on First Floor NBES LB 646 5% - 64857 Industrial 1,910 Medium
Fung Wah Factory Building R 648ASREET X ANE I% ]
Nos. 646, 648, 648A — 8B
Castle Peak Road,
Kowloon
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Location

Roof
No. 20 Wing Hong Street
Kowloon

Fifth Floor
No. 20 Wing Hong Street
Kowloon

House 9, Villa Castell
No. 20 Yau King Lane
Tai Po

New Territories

Units 1 and 2 on Seventh Floor
Block D and Car Parking Space
No. 46 on Lower Ground Floor
Shatin Heights

No. 8003 Tai Po Road

Shatin

New Territories

Third Floor
No. 161 Wong Nai Chung Road
Hong Kong

15 Ardmore Park #04-03
Singapore 259959

15 Ardmore Park #06-04
Singapore 259959

15 Ardmore Park #18-02
Singapore 259959

An industrial complex located at
No. 108 of Dongliang Road,

Zhili Town, Wuxing District,
Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province
of the People’s Republic of China
with a total of sixteen building
blocks being built

ik

BEKEHI 205K B

NEEKERA 205 A

FAKNBESE 209
FRIFH IR

AP BRI A R 8003 5%
YRR D E-EZ 1 5
25k BN AR B i B
%4657

ERERBE 161 =2

15 Ardmore Park #04-03
7 hn# 259959

15 Ardmore Park #06-04
103 259959

15 Ardmore Park #18-02
7 hn#k 259959

—TEROEFE TR
B e S EEYAL
NGRIE DA

AN T AR B A B R
PRAREE 108 5%

Summary of Properties

MRBE

At 31 March 2018 74201843 A31H

Purpose

Jiikes

Industrial

I

Industrial

T%

Residential
F=E

Residential
F=E

Residential
F=E

Residential
F=

Residential
F=E
Residential

=

Industrial

T%

rEM= (&)

Approximate
gross floor/

saleable/site area Lease-term
BREm,
B hEER HAOFH
(sq.ft.)
(FAR)
2,910 Medium
H A
3,402 Medium
HHR

1,599 Medium
A HR

Medium

H A

2,086

781 Medium
A HR

Freehold
G|

2,885

Freehold
izl

2,885

Freehold
G|

2,885

Medium

]

1,805,534
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Summary of Properties
YIEBE

At 31 March 2018 7201843 A 31 H

B. PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE B. FEHEBRERYX
Approximate Stage of
Location 3yt Purpose sitearea  Lease-term completion
Az BABREE HONEH TR
(sq.ft.)
(EAR)
1. Nos. 14-20 Inverness Road NEENRE Residential 15,502 Medium Under development
Kowloon Tong TEHETE14-205 FE i BREH
Kowloon
2. Unit A1, A2, B1, B2, C2 REHILE646 Industrial 9,206 Medium Under development
and D on Ground Floor, 648 * B4BA%E T% HH ERA
Unit A, B, C, D on First Floor, LETEAE
Unit A, B, C on Second Floor, HRA1 A2 Bl B2 R
Unit A, B, C, D on Third Floor, C2 Efif -
Unit A, B, C, D on Fourth Floor, —1#A'B:C DEf
Unit B, C, D on Fifth Floor, “IEA B CEfi-
Unit A, B, C, D with Roof on =#A B CDEf:
Sixth Floor A B C DEf
Fung Wah Factorial Building fEB: C DEf -
Nos. 646, 648, 648A 7NEA B C- DEfL
Castle Peak Road EXA
Kowloon
3. Portion A and Portion B of NEERDEBME 1215 Industrial 5483  Medium Under development
Car Park on the G/F, Flat A KEIBAEHRTEMUAHS I% i BEREH

and B on First Floor, Flat A
and B on Second Floor, Flat A
and B on Third Floor, Flat A
and B on Fourth Floor &

Flat Roof, Flat A and B on
Fifth Floor, Flat A and B on
Sixth Floor, Flat A and B on
Seventh Floor, Flat A and B on
Eighth Floor, Flat A and B on
Ninth Floor & Roof

Wing Cheong Factory Building
No. 121 King Lam Street
Cheung Sha Wan

Kowloon

LBHS  —BARBEf -~
ARBEfN - Z#ARBER - Mig
A BEfIREETA ' AEAKB
B NEARBER - HIEAKB
B NEARBER - NEA B
B R KA
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